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Executive Summary
ATC’s Digital Communities started as a Digital Village program in India and has evolved over many phases
since its inception in 2012. From just being aimed at providing self-learning through Hole-in-the-Wall education
kiosks (HiWel) in rural communities to more advanced Digital Learning Centres (DLCs) at its tower sites to
provide digital literacy and skills for gainful employment through its implementation partner NIIT Foundation.
ATC CSRFI, the CSR implementation arm in India, commissioned Sattva to conduct an Impact Assessment
Study for its Digital Literacy and Skill Development programs being implemented by NIIT Foundation. The
impact assessment study aims to assess:
Digital communities and Learning Centres (Digital Learning Centres and Career Development Centres)
●
●
●
●

Knowledge of basic digital literacy, empowerment and associated skill-sets in the community
Enrolment or adoption of ‘Guided’ digital learning opportunities for individuals both (parents and students)
Perceived impact of digital literacy and empowerment on the community
Increase in employability through this intervention

Hole-in-the-Wall Learning Program - HiWel
●
●

Adoption/knowledge on digital literacy through shared outdoor public computers
Perceived change in self-learning for the age group of 6-14 years

The insights in this study are mapped based on the aforesaid points. In addition, the study also provides
recommendations on the duration and intensity of the program.
Sattva Consulting followed a mixed-method approach to conduct the impact assessment study, which included
both qualitative and quantitative methods of research for data collection. Surveys were conducted for about
1469 student beneficiaries across all three programs (Hole-in-the-Wall, Digital Learning Centres and Career
Development Centre) as a part of the quantitative data collection. For qualitative data collection, case studies,
FGDs, and interviews were conducted with Parents, centre coordinators, curriculum developers, trainers and
employers. In total, 73 qualitative interviews were conducted. The study was conducted over 4 months, from
April to July 2022.
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Key Insights from the Impact Assessment Study
Overall Insight:
The CDC, DLC, and HiWEL programs have been successful in building effective community partnerships
through mobilisation and sensitisation drives. These partnerships have enabled the community to understand
the importance of digital literacy, and participate in them actively to realise ATC India’s vision of creating a digital
village.
The key insights and recommendations from the impact assessment are categorised programmatically:
1. Digital Learning Centres:
Digital Learning Centres - Non-Learning Management System
89% of the students felt that the program has helped them gain basic digital literacy skills,
leading to higher confidence levels in students
●
●
●

90% of the students reportedly joined the program to learn new technical skills while 46% were motivated
to join the program to improve their job opportunities.
Upon completion of the course, 89% of the students reported that they were well-versed with basic
computer skills, while 69% were confident in using digital platforms independently.
Qualitatively, Centre Heads had observed an improvement in the confidence level of the students as
students were anxious and shy at the start of the program but they eventually became more confident.
84% of the students reported that the program helped them gain clarity on various
opportunities, enabling them to make informed career choices

●
●

91% of the students reported that the program has enabled them to pursue their sectoral interests.
65% of the surveyed students reportedly wanted to transition to career courses offered by the program.
The majority of these students showed interest in transitioning to the Basic IT knowledge (career) course.
The students observed that the program resulted in a significant increase in female enrolment,
highlighting a possible change in perception in the community regarding digital literacy and
working women

●
●

78% of the students reported a significant increase in female enrolment in the program. This was
attributed to the on-ground mobilisation efforts of the Centre Head.
The Centre Head stated that throughout the program, they could observe a significant change in the
confidence level of the students. Women tend to actively participate during classes and frequently follow
up with doubts and questions.
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Digital Learning Centres with Learning Management System
A well-defined mobilisation and selection process has been established to align the
beneficiaries’ career aspirations and skills to appropriate digital literacy courses

●

●

While there were mobilisation drives through social media, newspapers and community sensitisation
initiatives, 47% of the students heard about the program from their friends/ family resulting in them
enrolling on the program. Meanwhile, 37% of the students were introduced to the program in their schools
and colleges.
88% of the students highlighted the attainment of digital skills as their motivation to join the program.

The program successfully managed to make the content available for students through the DLC
LMS platform during the virtual shift of the program
●

●

93% of the students highlighted that they had continuous access to the LMS platform throughout the
duration of the course. Out of these, 52% of the students stated that they were able to navigate the
platform easily because of the support provided by the program team.
According to trainers, it was reported that special training is provided to all students upon joining the
course. This training attempts to address all the operational queries regarding the LMS platform. It was
also stated that students were encouraged to reach out to the trainer in case of any challenges.
The program has enabled 91% of the students to acquire basic digital literacy skills and 88% of
them to have a clearer vision of what they would like to pursue professionally

●
●
●

69% of the students reported that they are able to explore different digital platforms for learning by
themselves, as a result of the program.
72% of the students also highlight that the program helped them increase their awareness of the different
job opportunities in the market.
According to the trainers and the program team, the counselling sessions were significant in guiding the
students regarding career opportunities based on their aspirations and skills.
Despite the unpredictable nature of employment during the COVID-19 pandemic, 32% of the
students were able to secure employment as a result of the program

●
●
●

32% of the surveyed students were able to secure employment as a result of the program. 82% of the
employed youth retained their jobs.
Out of the 32% of employed youth, 94% of students stated that they feel confident to seek employment
opportunities independently as a result of the program.
2/2 of employers reported that the candidates from the program are “disciplined and enthusiastic to learn
at the job”. However, they qualitatively reiterated that there is scope to improve the retention further as
students may drop out due to misalignment with the job description.
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Key Recommendations
Leveraging community support and ownership to plan sustainability of the intervention
During the qualitative focus group discussions (FGD), parents highlighted that they would like to be
physically involved in the functioning of the DLCs. They would like to explore avenues that would
enable them to contribute to the centres. Interested DLC alumni can hence be identified and trained to
help man the Digital Learning Centres along with the centre heads as a stepping stone into achieving
sustainability.
Facilitation and support of the generation of localised employment opportunities for the
DLC-LMS graduates in the respective locations
The DLC graduates do not prefer to shift from their base location for employment opportunities and the
onus of onboarding localised employers lie in the hands of the centre heads.A decentralised approach
to recruitment by supporting the centre heads locally to connect with local employers would help ease
the burden on centre heads and potentially increase the percentage of employed candidates.
Provide adequate sanitation facilities at the Digital Learning Centres to potentially increase the
female enrolment in the program
Through the visits made for the Impact assessment study, it was observed that the Digital Learning
Centres lacked adequate sanitation facilities. Centres that had washroom facilities did not have a
water supply.The installation of these facilities can hence potentially increase the female enrolment
rate as indicated by the centre heads through qualitative interviews.
2. Career Development Centres (CDC)
A well-defined mobilisation and selection process has been established to align the
beneficiaries’ skill sets to appropriate Careeer Development courses.
●
●

48% of the surveyed students reported hearing about the program through friends/ family and the
program’s door-to-door mobilisation.
41% of the students are enrolled in the Professional Edge course, making it the most popular course
amongst students. According to the implementation team, this can be attributed to the short duration of the
course. This allowed beneficiaries who were already employed in part-time jobs or studies to also take up
the course.
Program beneficiaries find the LMS platform easy to navigate but continue to face challenges
due to the inability to access ICT devices without interruptions

●

●
●

59% of the students found the LMS platform to be user-friendly concerning navigating course content and
discussion. Trainer attributed this to the one-week training provided to all beneficiaries regarding the
usage of LMS.
Though 70% of the students prefer the LMS mode of delivery, 46% of the students reportedly faced
connectivity issues.
30% of the students preferred the physical setup due to the unavailability of devices at their end.
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The program successfully supported students in acquiring digital skills and enabled them to
have a clearer vision of what they would like to professionally pursue in the future
●
●

While 61% of the students stated wanting to work/ get a job, 49% also wanted to pursue higher studies.
14% of the surveyed students also highlighted wanting to start something of their own. The program thus
enabled students to get a clearer vision of their professional aspirations.

●

100% of parents expressed their views on their kids sharing their career aspirations with them. They wish
to pursue professional courses to further hone their skills and seek employability.
Of the surveyed students, 26% secured employment and 63% chose to pursue higher education
as a result of the program

●
●
●
●

63% of the students are reportedly pursuing higher education.
26% of the students surveyed were currently employed out of which 17% secured placement
through the program placement process and 9% through independent sources.
63% of the total employed students belonged to either professional edge, BPO, or retail courses.
On average, 50% of the total employed students have been able to retain their jobs for at least 3
months owing to regular follow-ups or aligned aspirations

●
●
●

63% of the employed candidates were able to retain their jobs, 50% of which were able to do so for at
least 6 months.
79% of the surveyed students also highlighted regular follow-ups from the program team after their
recruitment to a new company through the program’s placement process.
As reported by the program team, this resulted in substantially higher retention rates and employers
showing interest in continuing hiring candidates from the program.

Key Recommendations
Re-visit the objectives of the CDC and ascertain how they are different from the DLCs
It was observed that both Digital Learning Centres (LMS) and Career Development Centres’
objectives and courses overlap one another. The outreach of the DLCs is however much larger than
that of CDCs.The employment rate in the students in DLCs also seems to be higher than in CDCs.
Revisiting the objective of CDCs in iicomparison with DLCs can help to ascertain the differences
between the two programs.
Strengthen the soft-skills training component of the program
During the qualitative interviews, 5/5 of employers had indicated that they would like the candidates to
be well versed with soft-skills. The students too had indicated that they need some support in soft
skills and preferably through in-person classes or training. The centre can hence focus on scheduling
additional support for soft skills for the candidates.
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To create a structured plan for a hybrid model going forward
Similar to the DLCs, the CDCs through the learning management system (LMS) have reached out to
students without limiting themselves to the ones who are located in the base locations of the
centres. The CDCs at a time can house a very limited number of students who can access
computers, and students would have to travel from far-off locations to reach the centres. Considering
this, the hybrid model of functioning needs to be thoroughly structured to accommodate these
challenges.

3. Hole-in-the-Wall Learning Program (HiWel)
Effective student and parent mobilisation have instilled a sense of trust within the community
for the program and its implementation.
49% of the students reported hearing about the program through a school teacher or friends/ fellow
community members as a part of the mobilisation campaigns.
42% of the parents reported that the awareness of the program was generated through family/ community
members, while 58% stated that they got to know about the program through the program team's
door-to-door campaigns.
HiWel learning stations are located within the community/village, making it easier for parents and children
to learn about the program and subsequently, access the stations.

●
●

●

The virtual classes during the pandemic since the learning stations could not be accessed
have enabled at least 75% of students to access and possibly explore different digital
resources on their own.
87% of the surveyed students highlighted that the virtual classes enabled them to explore their
age/grade-appropriate resources by themselves.
In focus group discussions, 90% of the parents stated that students were able to search digital content
through Youtube and Google to do their school homework.
An increase in the student's ability to explore and learn independently was reported by 100% of the
interviewed parents.

●
●
●

100% of the parents feel that physical HiWel stations are more effective than virtual platforms
●
●
●

75% of the students reported that the learning modules imparted through the virtual classes are
appropriate for their age and learning levels.
However, the parents indicated that learning from the online classes is not very consistent without the
element of practical learning associated with the physical station.
99% of the students had stated that they would be comfortable going back to learning and exploring from
the HiWel stations.
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Key Recommendations
Strengthen monitoring and evaluation metrics and processes at student and managerial levels
to ensure periodic reviewing of the program
Strengthening the Monitoring and Evaluation metrics at a managerial and student level can help the
team collectively understand the student learning progress against specific goal-oriented metrics.
Re-align the objective of the HiWel stations with a supporting monitoring and evaluation
framework
The focus of HiWel is not only to merely enable access to digital resources but to enable the students
to be able to learn through the digital content being accessed. The program primarily focuses on
enabling access and lays little emphasis on improving learning outcomes through access to digital
resources. Reviewing the objectives of HiWEL can thus help one to articulate the impact of the
program on student learning quantitatively.
Build an adequate ecosystem for the sustainability of the program
The program, through active mobilisation campaigns, has built a good foundation to sensitise the
communities on the importance of digital literacy. However, the program has not leveraged the
community to develop an ecosystem that can sustain itself beyond the life of the program.The
program can hence leverage the strong community connection to build an ecosystem that is
sustainable.
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Chapter 1: Overview
The global economy is constantly restructured by the forces of technology and digitisation. Digital tools and
digital intelligence have led to a paradigm shift across businesses, education, healthcare, and financial
transactions. The COVID-19 pandemic not only accelerated this but also exposed the stark digital divide that
leads to people being left out of this process. India, currently, faces challenges both in terms of digital
infrastructure and literacy.
According to the National Sample Survey Office (NSSO) data from its 75th round national survey (2017-18),
only 4.4% of rural households and 23.4% of urban households own computers. Moreover, while 42% of urban
households have a computer with an internet connection, the same is available to only 14.9% of rural
households. A report by Nielson in 2019 concluded that 70% of the rural population does not have an active
internet facility with states like West Bengal, Bihar, Jharkhand and Odisha having the lowest internet
penetration. Among the age groups 15-29 years, nearly 56% in urban areas and 24% in rural areas were able to
operate a computer. Digital literacy, skillsets and skilling vary based on various factors including region, gender,
education and so on. Despite the growing significance of digital skills, along with a prevalent urban-rural divide,
there also exists a deepening male-female digital literacy gap in India. Data from NSSO’s 75th round national
survey (2017-2018) shows a significant gap between the male and female populations in rural and urban areas
concerning the ability to operate a computer and use the internet. This digital literacy divide between males and
females is a key structural constraint in the proliferation of digital methods of learning that carries multiple
negative impacts on women’s educational attainment, skill development and workforce participation. 1
This chapter discusses the status of digital literacy and skill development among youth in terms of its
significance, existing challenges, and the key initiatives toward strengthening it.
1.1 Significance of digital literacy and skill development
Digital literacy is the ability to navigate various digital platforms and understand, assess, and communicate
through them. According to the Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, digital literacy is defined as
“the ability of individuals and communities to understand and use digital technologies for meaningful actions
within life situations. Any individual who can operate a computer/laptop/tablet/smartphone and use other
IT-related tools is being considered as digitally literate.”
To prepare for the era of digital transformation, building digital skills is as essential as creating digital
infrastructure, starting with a progressive focus on digital literacy and general literacy. It is important to note that
those who are left out of this, are likely to lose out on opportunities, and in turn get pushed to further
marginalisation.

1

Digital Literacy in India: Structural constraints and the NEP 2020, accessed August 3, 2022
https://sprf.in/digital-literacy-in-india-structural-constraints-and-the-nep-2020/
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Figure 1.1: Digital literacy across states and UTs, rural and urban areas combined (%)2

Note: Percentage here indicates the percentage of digitally literate households among total households.

1.2 Significance of digital literacy in the context of education and employment
According to a World Economic Forum report published in 2020, 50% of all employees worldwide will need
reskilling by 2025 as the adoption of technology increases.3 The latest pedagogy at school and college levels
actively uses technology not only in the teaching and learning processes but also in promoting collaborations.
This has led to both private and public sectors taking initiatives to improve access to learning by removing
infrastructural barriers and
promoting upskilling. Digital literacy skills include information, media and
communication literacy. A curriculum designed for them must incorporate methods of how to exploit the
new ICT tools to provide better education in the way the learners want the application of technology as
a prime tool for learning, teaching, and communication in real-life situations.
The skill gap is a critical challenge for youth entering the workforce. In 2021, India's youth unemployment rate
rose to 28.26 per cent, increasing from 24.90 per cent during the pandemic in 2020.4 As per a report published
by India Education Forum 2021, employers are seeking a diverse set of domain skills that range from functional
to technical.5 Data analysis skills (Data Analytics, Artificial Intelligence, and Business Analysis) are a few of the
top domain skills employers want candidates to possess. It is critical to integrate skills training with education to
meet the dynamic demands of the future of work. Both government and private sector organisations have
identified these challenges and have started responding through various initiatives.
2

Source: NSS data,

“The digital dream: Upskilling India for the future”, accessed August 1,2022.
https://www.ideasforindia.in/topics/governance/the-digital-dream-upskilling-india-for-the-future.html
“These are the top 10 job skills of tomorrow – and how long it takes to learn them”, accessed August 1, 2022.
www.weforum.org/agenda/2020/10/top-10-work-skills-of-tomorrow-how-long-it-takes-to-learn-them/
4
“World Youth Skills Day 2022 | Impact of skills gap on India's unemployment problem”, accessed August 1,2022
www.indiatoday.in/education-today/featurephilia/story/world-youth-skills-day-2022-impact-of-skills-gap-on-india-s-unemployment-problem-1975
924-2022-07-15
5
“India Skills Report 2021”, accessed August 1, 2022.
https://indiaeducationforum.org/pdf/ISR-2021.pdf
3
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Taking note of the evolving demands, the Government of India had launched schemes such as the Digital India
Program, and Skill India to name a few, to accelerate digital penetration and inclusion. The section below details
a few of these initiatives:
1.

2.

3.

National Digital Literacy Mission (NDLM), launched in 2014, is a campaign that aims to digitally educate
at least one member of every family in rural areas. It is formulated to provide IT training to 52.5 lakh
individuals, including villagers, Anganwadi and ASHA workers, and ration shop dealers.
Pradhan Mantri Gramin Digital Saksharta Abhiyaan (PMGDISHA), launched in 2017 aims to cover 6
crore persons, one member from every eligible household across all Gram Panchayats in States/UTs,
and make them digitally literate. The objective of the scheme is to empower the citizens in rural areas
by training them to operate computers or digital access devices (like tablets, smartphones etc.), send
and receive emails, browse the Internet, access Government services, search for information, etc. and
hence enable them to use Information Technology to actively participate in the process of nation
building.
Digital Skilling program in emerging and future technologies, launched in June 2022 will focus on
skilling, reskilling and upskilling students via internships, apprenticeships, and employment to 1 crore
students in Emerging Technologies. This is a collaboration on a national scale between the Ministry of
Education, the Ministry of Skill Development and Entrepreneurship, the Government of India, affiliated
NSDCs, Skill India programs (National Educational Alliance for Technology) and AICTE.

The stark digital literacy gap, however, came to light when the country was hit by the pandemic in early 2020. As
the pandemic started raging across the globe, everyone turned to digital technologies to ride out the storm. From
children to working adults, technology became an essential tool to carry out everyday tasks. Overnight, virtual
became the new normal and continues to be so. But what is to be thought of is, where does this transition leave
those who do not have the skills or the tools to use digital technologies? It was observed that millions of children
lost their precious academic years due to a lack of access. Work-from-home options might have saved many jobs
during these unprecedented times, but the reality is not the same for those who are still struggling with basic
access to technology due to various socio-economic challenges. Since digital literacy not only contributes to the
educational aspect of the lives of children but also contributes to skill development and employability in today’s
time; being digitally literate has become a significant factor that is driving changes in modern workplaces. Thus,
students need to develop digital literacy to prepare themselves for these changes and, perhaps more importantly,
adapt as innovations are introduced.6

6

Dimitropoulou, A. Why digital literacy is vital in modern workforces. CEOWORLD magazine, accessed August 2, 2022
https://ceoworld.biz/2021/10/07/why-digital-literacy-is-vital-in-modern-workforces/#:~:text=In%20a%20world%20where%20new,to%20five%20
generations%20working%20together
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Overview of ATC’s Digital Communities Program
About ATC
ATC CSR Foundation India is the implementation arm of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited (ATC India)
for CSR initiatives. Through their Digital Communities Program, ATC is helping communities across India to
bridge the digital literacy gap caused by limited infrastructure, high up-front costs, power outages and
educational and geographical barriers, and provide better access to information and Communication
Technologies (ICT). Digital Communities are spaces where people of all ages gain access to digital literacy,
e-health services and financial inclusion using digital devices, educator-led instruction, and self-learning kiosks.
ATC’s Digital Communities started as a Digital Village program and has evolved over many phases since its
inception in 2012. From just being aimed at providing self-learning through Hole-in-the-Wall education kiosks
(HiWel) in rural communities to more advanced Digital Learning Centres (DLCs) at its tower sites to provide
digital literacy and skills for gainful employment in collaboration with its implementation partner NIIT foundation.

About NIIT Foundation
NIIT Foundation (NIITF) is a not-for-profit education society (NGO) set up by the promoters of NIIT in 2004.
Its mission is to positively impact the underprivileged of the country through educational initiatives and skill
development programs. The NIIT Foundation has set up skill development and vocational training centres
in urban and rural areas. NIIT Foundation has been delivering programs ranging from customised CSR
activities, school programs, college collaborations, community initiatives, career and skill development
courses, digital literacy and financial literacy programs and more. 5
About Digital Communities Program
ATC partnered with the NIIT Foundation to run the following programs that facilitate imparting digital literacy
and employability skills to children, adolescents, and young adults.
1.

Digital Learning Centres
Started in 2018, the Digital Learning Program aims to
minimise the digital divide among the underserved
communities by providing end-to-end solutions to the digital
skilling needs of the community. The pedagogy and
curriculum adopted are innovative with there being a correct
balance between theory and practice, therefore making it
interesting for all. The Digital Learning Centres, located at or
around the ATC tower sites across different states in India,
enable students to learn basic to specialised technical skills,
such as learning how to send and receive emails to navigate
MS Office. The Digital Learning Program gives students the
confidence to navigate the computer and the Internet, and
subsequently, empowers them to leverage it in their personal
and professional lives. Through the program, anyone above
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the age of 13 can learn digital skills. For selected courses, placement drives are also organised for the
students by the program team wherein employers from different sectors look for hiring students who
have completed their respective courses.
2.

Hole-in-the-Wall Learning Stations

Hole-in-the-Wall learning stations. 7

3.

Hole-in-the-Wall learning stations are self-learning kiosks
that encourage students to learn through the process of
exploration and discovery without any formal training or
adult supervision. Based on minimal invasive education,
this form of learning not only enables students to take
ownership of their learning but also contributes towards
imparting key life skills to children living in urban slums
and rural communities. The HiWel learning stations aim
to instil the ability to critically think and solve problems
among children. Given the success of the pilot and the
positive response the project has received from its
beneficiaries, NIIT Foundation was poised to scale up the

Career Development Centres
Career
Development
Centres
provide
short-term
job-oriented
courses focusing on digital literacy and
employability skills. These centres are set up in remote
locations of India, where even basic digital literacy is lacking.
The aim of these centres is to benefit the unemployed youth
living in these locations with the objective of providing them
employment in the organised industry. The Career
Development Centres offers diverse courses to adults
between the age of 18-30-year.

7

Hole in the Wall Learning Station. NIIT Foundation, accessed August 3, 2022
https://niitfoundation.org/hole-in-the-wall-learning-stations/
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Chapter 2: Sattva’s Approach and Methodology
Objectives of the Impact Assessment study
ATC India commissioned Sattva Consulting to conduct an impact assessment of all its programs being run
across India to assess the impact of the program and provide actionable insights and recommendations to the
program team.
Sattva Consulting evaluated the interventions to assess the following:
Digital communities and Learning Centres (Digital Learning Centres and Career
Development Centres)
●
●
●
●

Knowledge of basic digital literacy, empowerment and associated skill-sets in the
community
Enrolment or adoption of ‘Guided’ digital learning opportunities for individuals both (parents
and students)
Perceived impact of digital literacy and empowerment on the community
Acquisition of employability skills and employment

HiWel
●
●

Adoption/knowledge on digital literacy through shared outdoor public computers
Perceived change in self-learning for the age group of 6-14 years

Study Design and Methodology
Sattva Consulting developed a descriptive cross-sectional design to conduct the study from a retrospective lens
where data has been collected from the beneficiaries around the previous and current status of outcome
indicators to quantify the changes affected by the intervention.
The impact assessment study was conducted for the three programs using a mixed-method approach
consisting of quantitative techniques such as surveys, and qualitative research techniques such as focused
group discussions (FGDs), and in-depth interviews (IDIs). Both primary and secondary data collection methods
were used. This helped to gather valuable impact-related insights from a 360-degree angle and served as a
fundamental resource for providing recommendations around ways to inform the program strategy.
The methodology for the impact assessment exercise encompassed developing a set of research questions
based on the DAC framework to draw evidence for each program, which would help draw out a reasonable set
of conclusions for the overall program within the constraints of time, and availability of information and depth of
the research.
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Framework
Sattva adopted the Development Assistance Committee’s (DAC) framework developed by the Organisation for
Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD) as an anchor to conduct the impact assessment.

Approach for the Impact Assessment Study
Sattva conducted the impact assessment study in the following phases as mentioned below:
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Data Sources
The study used two kinds of data, primary and secondary. Primary data was collected via quantitative and
qualitative methods of data collection. Secondary data was gathered from program documents and various
reports.
Primary Sources of Data

Secondary Sources of Data

The data collected from various stakeholders
during the study using the data collection tools
will be treated as primary data.
● Quantitative data collection: Survey will be
administered to assess the perceived and
actual impact of beneficiaries of the
programs.
● Qualitative data collection: Collected through
In-Depth Interviews (IDIs) and Focus Group
Discussions (FGDs) with key stakeholders of
the project.

The data compares the intended objectives
against the extent to which the objectives have
been met. This will help us establish the extent
to which the processes were documented and
followed.
● Program documentation maintained
by the implementation team: The
documents defining the program’s
progress, processes, periodic status
reports, panchayat records, previous
records, etc.

Sampling
A multi-stage stratified random sampling approach was followed for quantitative data collection which is defined
below:
Step 1: Selection of the location - All of ATC’s interventions are spread across 16 states in 4 zones
(N
(North, South, East and West). Sattva selected each zone as one anchor to cover the breadth of each
intervention.
Step 2: Determining the sample size - In each zone, the total number of beneficiaries was sampled using
Cochran's Sampling Method to calculate the sample size at a 95% confidence interval and 5% Margin
of Error. The sample size for the beneficiary surveys of all the programs totalled 1439.
Step 3: Selecting the States - The states that had the highest number of beneficiary populations were
considered for the study. Across the chosen states, the population was proportionally distributed.
Step 4: Selecting the Students - The students at the state level and program level were randomly
iiiselected based on the following criteria:
● HiWel: Students above the age of 5 were randomly selected for the interviews.
● CDC: Students who had enrolled in career courses and had completed them were randomly
selected for the interviews.
● DLC: Students who had completed the courses (LMS and Non-LMS) were randomly selected
for the interviews.
For qualitative data collection, a significant sample size (n≥2) for different stakeholders such as Parents,
Trainers, Employers, and Curriculum developers was considered.
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Outreach
To obtain statistically significant results, the outreach numbers were chosen to meet the Central Limit
Theorem for the Qualitative tools. Additionally, a 95% confidence interval was taken for the Quantitative
sampling frame. The details are as follows:

Program-Wise Stakeholders sampled:
1.

Digital Learning Centres

Survey

Stakeholder

FGDs

Planned

Actual

Students (DLC
LMS)

418

439

Students (DLC
Non-LMS)

408

413

Planned

Actual

Employers*

5

7

Trainers

3

3

Parents

2.

Interviews

Planned

Actual

4

3

Career Development Centres
Survey

Stakeholder

FGDs

Planned

Actual

Employer*

5

7

Trainers

2

2

Curriculum
Developers

1

1

Students
Parents

Planned

Actual

325

334

Interviews

Planned

Actual

1

1

Note: The employers are common across Digital Learning and Career Development Centres since the courses are common.
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3.

Hole-in-the-Wall Learning Program
Stakeholder

Survey

FGDs*

Planned

Actual

278

283

Students
Parents

Planned

Actual

6

6

*Each focus group discussion consists of 4-5 parents

The insights collated below are for the surveyed population. The sampling approach is representative
of the total population. Since the overall program structure is standardised, the findings in the
presentation may be extrapolated to all the locations.

Ethical considerations of the study
The assessment followed the ethical protocols in all aspects and at all stages of the engagement based on the
discussion with the team:
●
●
●
●

As part of data collection, team members followed ethical protocols by explaining the purpose of the study
and ensured informed consent from the participants.
The Interview sessions were conducted in an environment that ensured the privacy of respondents as per
their convenience and comfort.
The respondents were assured about the confidentiality of their personal information and the usage of
data only for research purposes.
The participation of respondents was ensured as being voluntary, and they were not compelled to answer
any questions.

Limitations of the study
●
●

Partial quantitative data collection was conducted virtually. Telephonic interviews were conducted for the
Career Development Centre in Odisha due to the unavailability of beneficiaries in the respective locations.
In several locations, mobilisation of beneficiaries proved to be difficult as they were either out of town
during the summer break, engaged in alternative activities like coaching and part-time jobs, or stayed
farther off the location. This made it difficult for the program team to mobilise students for the study. Sattva
and the program team mitigated this challenge by creating location-specific data collection strategies. For
example, in Uttar Pradesh, door-to-door data collection was conducted.
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Chapteri3: Findings of the Impact Assessment
Study
The following section of the report details the key results and insights of the impact assessment study across
the DAC standard parameters as outlined in the framework for the study. The insights have been drawn using
the 360-degree approach of data collection by gathering data from qualitative and quantitative methods by
engaging with different stakeholders of the program.

Digital Learning Centres (DLC)
Demographics
The demographics of sampled surveys are as follows:
Gender and age-wise split of the surveyed students for DLC Non- LMS (N=413)

70% Males
30% Females
Location-wise split of the surveyed students for DLC Non- LMS (N=413)

Need for the Program
Demand for training youth on digital skill sets to enable better job opportunities.
While the majority of the population continues to struggle with access to basic digital devices and resources, the
demand for digital skills in the job market has increased in an unprecedented manner. According to the latest
22

report, about 27.3 million workers, representing 7% of the country’s workforce, will require digital skills
training for their jobs over the next year.8 Skills such as operating Microsoft Excel, fast typing, and strong
verbal and written communication are now considered fundamental skills for employment.
In this context, it becomes important for government initiatives, non-governmental organisations and the private
sector to provide communities access to better employment opportunities. ATC India, through its
implementation partner NIIT Foundation, introduced the Digital Learning Centres in 2016. These centres were
conceptualised to offer specialised and intermediary digital skills to people over the age of 13 with the broader
objective of bridging the digital divide and creating an inclusive and equitable India. The program is designed to
cater to people of all ages, educational levels and geographical locations.
The objectives of the program are as followed:
➢Bridge the digital gap in access and quality of education provided to the underprivileged section of the
society
➢Provide end-to-end solutions to the skilling needs of the community
➢Support the youth of the community in the development of digital skills to further be able to seek employment

Implementation of the Digital Learning Centres (Non-Learning Management System)

Salient features of the Non- LMS Implementation of Digital Learning Centres
●

The online classes are facilitated by Centre Heads. Before the pivot to online classes due to the
pandemic, the centre heads used to support students in navigating the content on the desktops at the
DLCs.
8

“About 7% of India’s workforce will need digital training skills in next year”, accessed August 4, 2022.

www.thehindu.com/news/national/about-7-of-indias-workforce-will-need-digital-skills-training-in-next-year-report/ar
ticle65249093.ece
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●

●

●

The hiring of Centre Heads for the program is managed by the program team wherein the Centre Head
gets shortlisted by HR, followed by a technical round of interviews. Basic technical and communication
skills are a must to be appointed for the position, as reported to Sattva by the NIIT Foundation.
It is to be noted that the same Centre Head manages both DLCs and HiWels located at the same location
and the Centre Head is responsible for imparting virtual
classes for both HiWel and DLC (Non-LMS) aspects of
the program during the pandemic. Prior to the pandemic,
the Centre head would help the students navigate the
HiWel kiosks.
The curriculum and pedagogy referred to in imparting
the virtual classes are designed by a designated
content/curriculum team. The curriculum is updated
based on market-relevant changes. There is no
standardised timeline or frequency of these updates.

Effectiveness of Intervention
A structured mobilisation and selection process was followed to enrol students into the
program
How did you hear about the program? (n=413)

Was a counselling session organised before your
enrolment? (n=413)

If yes, what was asked during
the first interaction? (n= 341)

●

48% of the students reportedly heard about the program from their school/college when they were visiting
the schools before COVID-19.
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●

●
●

This was further substantiated by the parents of these students who also highlighted that they were
introduced to the program by school teachers/HM. However, the program also organically grew through
word of mouth, and program marketing through friends and family of the students who were already a part
of it.
83% of the surveyed students stated that a counselling session was conducted during their enrolment into
the program.
During this interaction, over 85% of the students reported that they were asked about their career
aspirations. 63% of the students stated that the program team briefed them regarding their potential
career paths, considering their educational background.

A need for offline classes was highlighted due to various factors disrupting the virtual
delivery of the program
Did you have uninterrupted access to virtual
platforms during the online classes? (n=413)

●

●
●

Would you prefer the virtual setup or
the physical setup of the program? (n=413)

While 32% of the students were indifferent between online/virtual classes, 41% of students preferred
offline classes over online classes. Centre Heads and students stated that the offline classes have
proved to be more effective for the acquisition of digital skills as it allows students to physically navigate
the computer and learn practically. Important skills such as typing, and MS Excel require practice.
26% of the students opted for online classes to save time spent travelling since they are not located in
the proximity of the centre.
Qualitatively, Centre Heads have expressed concern about physical/ hybrid classes due to the following
infrastructural challenges1. Lack of water supply in washroom
2. Frequent power cuts
3. Lack of space in the centres
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Though 91% of students were satisfied with the quality of teaching in the classes,
Centre Heads indicated that they see room for improvement in teaching delivery
What would be the three top qualities associated
with your trainer w.r.t instructional delivery? (n=413)

●
●
●
●

What would be the three top qualities
associated with your trainer? (n=413)

91% of the students were satisfied with the quality of the training provided by the trainers, i.e., the centre

head of the particular centre.
97% of the students reported that the centre heads were approachable and friendly. 93% stated that
trainers were patient and dedicated time to clarifying students’ doubts.
Community members and parents of the beneficiaries stated that the centre heads are the ‘backbone’ of
the program since they are constantly in touch with the students and the community.
With the pivot to online classes, centre heads mentioned that they could further improve the quality of the
training with the support of additional on-ground support.

Though DLCs are effective in enabling digital skills among students, M&E processes
have scope for standardisation
Was attendance recorded regularly? (n=413)

●
●

In your opinion, is the duration of the
program appropriate to instil digital literacy among
the candidates? (N=413)

97% of the students reported regular maintenance of attendance during their enrolment in the program.

This was further substantiated by the centre coordinators as they highlighted maintaining the attendance
of students manually after every class.
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●
●
●

●
●
●

As reported by the Centre Heads, the students were distributed in batches of 10-15 after their enrolment
into the program for effective delivery of the program.
The students and parents stated satisfaction with this batch distribution and highlighted it to be an
efficient way of imparting quality education.
While 95% of the students stated that they found the duration of the program appropriate, the remaining
5% of students shared that they needed more time to understand and asked for courses to be of longer
duration.
It was reported that an MCQ form of assessment is conducted for the students post their completion of
the program, as a result of which they are granted the certification of completion by the program team.
Upon asking about the standard M&E mechanisms, the Centre Heads reported that the assessments
varied as per different courses- depending on the duration of the course.
While students were enquired regarding their existing skill sets, it was highlighted that no structured
baseline assessments were conducted to understand the pre-existing learning levels of the students.

Impact of the program
89% of the students felt that the program has helped them gain basic digital literacy
skills, leading to higher confidence levels in students
What was your motivation to join the program? (N= 413)

●
●
●
●

How do you think the program helped
you acquire digital literacy? (N=413)

90% of the students reportedly joined the program to learn new technical skills while 46% were

motivated to join the program to improve their job opportunities.
Upon completion of the course, 89% of the students reported that they were well-versed with basic

computer skills, while 69% were confident in exploring diverse digital platforms independently.
The Centre Heads observed significant improvement in the confidence level of the students as students
were anxious and shy at the start of the program but they eventually became more confident.
The centre heads ensure that the environment in the class is friendly and not authoritative so that the
students intrinsically want to attend the classes. These students also reportedly perform better at school
during their computer classes as many times they have already learned the concepts through the DLC
classes.
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●

However, 17% of the students reported that they struggled with digital skills. Through our qualitative
interviews, the following challenges were identified1. Lack of practical learning in online classes.
2. Short duration of the program
3. Low network connectivity

84% of the students reported that the program helped them gain clarity on various
opportunities, enabling them to make informed career choices
Did the program help you get clarity on
different career opportunities? (n=413)

●

●
●
●

How do you think the program has enabled
you to pursue sectoral interests? (n=413)

The program reportedly encouraged students to explore and understand the different career opportunities
present in the market. Parents reiterated that their children are encouraged to pursue higher education in
related courses.
91% of the students reported that the program has enabled them to pursue their sectoral interests.
Students have stated that they are interested in pursuing higher education to build on their existing
knowledge. Several students have also expressed that they would like to start something of their own.
65% of the surveyed students reportedly wanted to transition to career courses offered by the program.
The majority of these students showed interest in transitioning to the Basic IT knowledge (career) course.
“A youth in UP has started teaching basic computer skills to students in his village.”

The students felt that the program resulted in a significant increase in female
enrolment, highlighting a possible change in perception in the community regarding
digital literacy and working-women
How do you think the program has
influenced female enrolment? (n= 413)

How do you think the community’s perception
on the importance of digital literacy changed? (n=413)

28

●
●

●
●

78% of the students observed a significant increase in female enrolment in the program. This was

attributed to the on-ground mobilisation efforts of the centre head.
The Centre Head stated that throughout the program, they could observe a significant change in the
confidence level of the students. Women tend to actively participate during classes and frequently follow
up with doubts and questions.
During field visits at the time of surveys, Sattva's team observed a lack of sanitation facilities at the
centres which is reportedly also a major deterrent for female students.
Overall, the community has responded positively to the program and actively supports encouraging
students, irrespective of their gender, to enrol in the program.
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Digital Learning Centres (DLC) With Learning Management
Systems (DLC LMS)
Demographics
Gender and age-wise distribution of the surveyed students (N=439)

70% Males
30% Females

Location-wise distribution of the surveyed students (N=439)

Introduction of Digital Learning Centres with Learning Management System (DLC LMS)
In the backdrop of the impending COVID-19 crisis, ATC India pivoted the mode of delivery to a virtual platform
and introduced a program-specific Learning Management System. The intended objective of this transition was
to reach out to more students irrespective of their geographical proximity to the centres, while also introducing
a more efficient approach to ‘online education’. This also allowed the program team to hire trainers from across
the country. As opposed to the Non-LMS mode of delivery, which was spearheaded by Centre Heads,
centralised trainers were hired to train the students.
Upon the success of Digital Learning Centres, an intervention on placements was also introduced. The
employers are identified locally across the centres and the skill sets that the courses cater to. The students are
then subjected to the placement drives organised by each centre where the employers recruit students from
the respective courses.
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Implementation of the Digital Learning Centres (DLC LMS)

87% of the beneficiaries come from a background with a household income of less than
INR 2 lakh per annum

The major focus of the Digital Learning Centres is to make digital skills accessible for underserved
communities across the nation. According to the World Inequality Report (2021), the average national income
in India is rupees 2.04 lakh per household.

Average Household Income of the
surveyed students (N=439)

87% of the program beneficiaries enrolled under DLC LMS have a household income less than INR 2 Lakh per
annum. It can hence be inferred, that as envisioned, the main beneficiaries of the program are people, coming
from low-income households.
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Effectiveness of Intervention

A well-defined mobilisation and selection process has been established to align the
beneficiaries’ career aspirations and skills to appropriate digital literacy courses
How did you first hear about the program? (N=439)

What was your motivation to join the program?
(N= 439)

How were you selected for the program (N=439)

●

●

●

While there were mobilisation drives through social media, newspapers and community sensitisation
initiatives, 47% of the students heard about the program from their friends/ family resulting in them
enrolling on the program. Meanwhile, 34% of the students were introduced to the program in their
schools and colleges.
There is a standardised selection process in place for the students. Students highlighted being asked
about their educational qualifications and attending a 1:1 counselling session before enrolling on the
program.
According to the trainers, the counselling process is an important step that helps them understand the
students’ career aspirations and existing skill sets. It is through this process that they suggest an
appropriate course to the students.

“If a student wants to enrol in a course that requires a basic understanding of Excel but currently struggles to perform tasks
on it, we suggest a course that can support him in building those skills. He can always opt for an advanced course later.”
Trainer
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●
●

88% of the students highlighted attainment of digital skills as their motivation to join the program.
Parents also highlighted the attainment of digital skills as the primary reason for encouraging their
children to join the program. The program opened an opportunity for their children to learn how to use a
computer through the virtual classes.

The program successfully managed to make the content available for students
through the DLC LMS platform during the virtual shift of the program

93% of the students highlighted that

How user-friendly was the LMS
platform in terms of navigating the course
content and discussions? (N=439)

they had continuous access to the
LMS platform throughout the course

●

●

According to trainers, it was reported that special training is provided to all students upon joining the
course. This training attempts to address all the operational queries regarding the LMS platform. It was
also stated that students were encouraged to reach out to the trainer in case of any challenges.
93% of the students reported having continuous access to the LMS platform throughout the program. Out
of these, 52% of the students stated that they were able to navigate the platform easily because of the
support provided by the program team.

Network issues continue to affect the ability to access the LMS platform for a
significant number of students
What were the challenges you faced while using the LMS platform? (N=439)

●

While 51% of the students reported that they faced no challenges while accessing the LMS platform, 34%
of the students highlighted network issues. Additionally, some (19%) students also found the platform
difficult to navigate.
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●

Additionally, the LMS centralised trainers also highlighted the following challenges1. Language barrier on the platform since the platform does not support all vernacular languages
2. Internet connectivity
3. Availability of a device at all times, etc.

Though DLCs are effective in enabling digital skills among students, M&E processes
have scope for standardisation
Is feedback on classes and
assessments taken from you? (N=439)
(n=415)

If yes, how often do you submit the feedback?

98% of the students highlighted that their attendance was recorded daily, making the process smoother
and more efficient.
●
●
●

Additionally, an MCQ form assessment is conducted for the students at the end of the course, as a result
of which, the certification is granted, as reported by the centre heads.
Out of the surveyed students, 95% of the students stated submitting feedback on the classes and
assessments conducted.
However, no standard frequency of submitting feedback was observed as 47% of these students
highlighted submitting feedback once a week while 38% highlighted submitting feedback after every
class. 14% highlighted submitting feedback only once every month.

Shifting to a hybrid mode has made the program more accessible and scalable but
the unavailability of mobile devices and internet connectivity still poses a challenge
for many students
Do you prefer the online model (LMS platform)
over traditional physical classes? (N=439)

If yes, why? (n=215)

34

●

51% of the surveyed population preferred traditional physical classes over the LMS platform. Possible
reasons for this could be the unavailability of devices/ internet connectivity which still remains a
barrier for many students in attending the online classes as shared by centralised trainers.

●

Centre heads, trainers and even program beneficiaries suggested that shifting to a hybrid mode of the
program could be comprehensive for students, as they will be able to learn from experts and practise
their learning at the centre with the help of their peers and centre team facilitating the practical
knowledge.

Impact of the Program
The program has enabled 91% of the students to acquire basic digital literacy
skills and 88% of them to have a clearer vision of what they would like to pursue
professionally
How do you think the program helped you acquire digital literacy? (N=439)

How has your awareness about different job opportunities in
the market increased post joining the program? (N=439)

88% of the students felt that the program has helped
them choose their career paths.

●
●
●
●

69% of the students reported that they can explore different digital platforms for learning by themselves,
as a result of the program.
72% of the students also highlight that the program helped them increase their awareness of the different
job opportunities in the market.
According to the trainers and the program team, the counselling sessions were significant in guiding the
students regarding career opportunities based on their aspirations and skills.
Additionally, parents shared that they were satisfied with how the careers of their children progressed as
a result of the program.
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Despite the unpredictable nature of employment during the COVID-19 pandemic,
32% of the students were able to secure employment as a result of the program
In your opinion, does the DLC enable students to
seek employment independently irrespective
of the courses they enrolled into? (n=141)
the

What activities were conducted as a part of
Pre-placement intervention? (N=439)

32% of the surveyed students were able to secure employment as a
result of the program.

82% of the employed youth retained their jobs.
●
●
●
●

The program reportedly conducted structured pre-placement activities in order to instil skills required for
the students to secure employment.
Out of the 32% of employed youth, 94% of students stated that they feel confident to seek employment
opportunities independently as a result of the program.
Of all the students that were employed, 82% of the employed candidates were able to retain their jobs for
at least 6 months indicating a good retention rate.
2/2 of employers reported that the candidates from the program are “disciplined and enthusiastic to
learn at the job”. However, they reiterated that there is scope to improve the retention further as
students often drop out due to misalignment with the job description.

In addition to developing and honing technical skills, the program has also
enabled students to develop their soft skills like English speaking skills

How have you been able to apply the technical skills
acquired in the course? (n=141)
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●
●

●
●

As a result of the technical skills acquired in the course, 67% of these students were also able to perform
better in their jobs and 22% were reportedly able to learn faster in their current roles.
It was also observed that students were more confident and were able to communicate well in English as
opposed to the skills they possessed at the beginning of the program, as reported by the centre
coordinators and trainers.
42% of the students reported speaking in English regularly and 31% of students reported that they speak
English during client engagements.
2/2 of employers also highly rated (4 out of 5) the technical skills, confidence levels and communication
skills of the hired candidates, also stating it to be one of the reasons for hiring candidates from NIIT
Foundation.

The program has enabled the students to partake in the financial decision-making
process of the household
Which of the following have you started
to practice after getting employment? (N=141)

Do you think the program has enabled you to take part in any financial decision-making process for your
household? (N=141)

About 57% of the students are first-generation
earners in their families.
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●
●
●

94% of the students stated that the program has enabled them to take part in financial decision-making
processes in their households.
Parents also highlighted the students’ ability to contribute to the financial decision-making for their
households and have seen a significant change in their financial practices.
53% of the students have reportedly started to make monthly budgets while 49% have started to save
money. A significant proportion of students also practice activities such as opening a bank account and
depositing/withdrawing money by themselves.

The program led to a significant increase in the participation of women in the
program and the community's perception of working women
How do you think the program influenced
female enrollment? (N=439)

●
●

How do you think the community's perception of
working women changed? (N=439)

● During the mobilisation phase, the community
members were apprehensive of sending their children for these courses. During the inauguration of the
centre, all the villagers were invited and informed about NIIT and the various courses taught for free.
Handing out certificates after the completion of the courses acted as an incentive for other community
members to send their children for these courses, as reported by the centre coordinator.
87% of the students also stated that female enrolment in the program has increased over time.
All course trainers stated that upon joining the program, women didn’t actively participate in the class.
However, with time and encouragement, they saw a significant improvement in their participation.
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Key Recommendations
Leveraging community support and ownership to plan sustainability of the intervention

Observation:
During qualitative focus group discussions (FGD), parents highlighted that they would like to be hands-on
involved in the functioning of the DLCs. They would like to explore avenues that would enable them to
contribute to the centres. Since the DLCs also happen to train the parents of students who visit HiWels and
DLCs, some of the parents are enthusiastic about contributing to the program.
Recommendation
1. Interested women and DLC alumni can be identified and trained to help man the Digital Learning Centres
along with the centre heads as a stepping stone into achieving sustainability.

Support for the generation of localised employment opportunities for the DLC-LMS Graduates
in the respective locations
Observation:
Qualitative interviews with the centre heads suggested that the ownership of scouting for employers for the
DLC graduates lie in their hands. Since the DLC graduates do not prefer to shift from their base location for
employment, the percentage of students who get placed through campus recruitment is also relatively low.
Recommendation
1. A decentralised approach to recruitment by supporting the centre heads locally to connect with local
employers would help ease the burden on centre heads. This would help increase the percentage of
students who can be employed.

Provide adequate sanitation facilities at the Digital Learning Centres to potentially increase the
female enrolments in the program
Observation:
Through the visits made for the Impact assessment study, it was observed that the Digital Learning Centres
lacked adequate sanitation facilities. The centres did not have water supply for the newly constructed toilets.
The centre Heads had indicated that women hesitate to visit the centre physically since it lacks washroom
facilities.
Recommendation:
1. Adequate sanitation facilities should be provided in all centres as they should be accessible to all students
and the on-ground team.
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Career Development Centres (CDC)
Demographics
The demographics of sampled surveys are as follows:
Gender and Location wise split of the surveyed students (N=324)

55% Males
45% Females

Need for the Program
Connecting youth to job opportunities by upskilling them is critical, as India’s unemployment
rates rise, especially post-pandemic.
Although the unemployment rate in India rose from 7.1% in May to 7.8% in June 2022, in urban India the
unemployment rate declined by 0.9 percentage points to 7.3%, which is the lowest rate in India in 16 months.9
In the past few years, the Government of India has attempted to address the issues of unemployment by
highlighting the importance of vocational courses and skill development programs. However, despite the shift
in focus, only 25% of the Indian workforce has undergone a skill development program.10
It is important to note that if unemployment has increased in the past decade, the demand for skilled employees
has also witnessed a significant surge in some industries. The Business Process Outsourcing and Information
Technology Enabled Services posted a strong 11% growth in hiring demand. Demand for jobs surged 7%
year-on-year in February 2022 as the economy opened up after the third wave of the COVID-19 pandemic.11
It is in this backdrop that the courses provided under the Career Development Centres become important as
they are not only providing access to relevant vocational courses but also educating the program beneficiaries
about the fast-paced industries and various job opportunities associated with them.
9

“India sees massive fall in employment in June: CMIE”, accessed August 3,2022.

https://economictimes.indiatimes.com/news/economy/indicators/india-sees-massive-fall-in-employment-in-june-cmie/articleshow/92719917.cms?from=mdr

10

“Skill Development and Employment Opportunity”, accessed August 3, 2022.

https://blog.mygov.in/skill-development-and-employment-opportunity/
11
https://www.fortuneindia.com/macro/job-demand-surges-7-in-february-led-by-bpo-manufacturing/107407#:~:text=The%20BPO%20and%20ITES%20industry,11%
25%20gro
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ATC’s Career Development Centres
The Career Development Centres (CDC) cater to the skilling needs
of the vast employable population residing in and around the ATC
sites. Through this initiative, ATC India envisions raising the target
population’s status and living standards, leading to overall
community development in the long run.
The CDCs provide short-term courses focusing on various
employable skills, with a special focus on digital literacy. These
Centres aim to benefit the unemployed youth living in these
locations and to provide employment to youth in the organised
industry.
The primary objectives of CDC are as follows:
➢

Provide certified courses for digital skilling and youth employability

➢

Provide placement opportunity & support to all the eligible candidates

➢

Impart skilling for enhancing local employability opportunities in sectors such as IT, Accounting, etc.

➢

Focus on the all-round personality development of each student

➢

Work on the capacity building of the centre team to increase the overall impact of the program

Implementation of Career Development Centres
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Effectiveness of Intervention

A well-defined mobilisation and selection process has been established to align the
beneficiaries’ skill sets to appropriate career development courses
How did you hear about the program? ( N=324)
(N=324)

What was your motivation to join the program?

What course were you enrolled in? (N=324)

●
●
●
●

48% of the surveyed students reported hearing about the program through friends/ family and the
program's door-to-door mobilisation.
Learning specific technical skills and securing employment as a result of the program were highlighted to
be the primary reasons for students enrolling on the career development courses.
The ability of the program to educate and evolve students’ skillset was highlighted to be one of the many
reasons for the parents to send their children to the program.
47% of the students are enrolled in the Professional Edge course, making it the most popular course
amongst students. According to the implementation team, this can be attributed to the short duration of
the course. This allowed beneficiaries who were already employed in part-time jobs or studies to also
take up the course.
Was a counselling session organised
during your enrolment in the program? (N=324)

If yes, what was discussed during the first interactions? (n=281)
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●
●
●

87% of the surveyed students reportedly attended 1:1 counselling sessions during the enrolment
process.
72% of these students highlighted being asked about their career aspirations during the counselling
process to enrol into the most suitable course of the program.
On the other hand, more than 50% of students also stated being told about the potential career
prospects and how the program can facilitate the students in evolving the required skills

Program beneficiaries find the LMS platform easy to navigate but continue to face
challenges due to inability to access ICT devices without interruptions
How user-friendly was the LMS platform in terms
of navigating the course content and discussions? (N=324)

Do you prefer the LMS mode over the
traditional physical setup
of the program? (N=324)

If yes, why? (n=98)

●

●
●

●

59% of the students found the LMS platform to be user-friendly with respect to navigating course content
and discussion. Trainer attributed this to the one-week training provided to all beneficiaries regarding the
usage of LMS.
Though 70% of the students prefer the LMS mode of delivery, 46% of the students reportedly faced
connectivity issues.
Students prefered the LMS model for the following reasons1. Saves travel time
2. Saves money
3. Easier to manage with domestic work/ college/ job.
30% of the students preferred the physical setup due to the unavailability of devices at their end.
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96% of the students were satisfied with the quality of training provided as they are
able to easily understand concepts

What would be three top qualities that you would
associate with your trainer w.r.t instructional delivery? (N=324)

●
●
●

98% of the students reported that the trainers were friendly and easy to approach. Additionally, 92%
stated that they were patient and would provide support in doubt clarification.
Regarding the instructional delivery, 96% of the students reported that the trainers explain the concepts
very clearly.
66% of the surveyed students also stated that the trainers gave real-life examples to the students and
would emphasise giving individual attention to everyone.

Feedback regarding classes and assessments are taken from the students but the
frequency needs to be further standardised across all locations
Is feedback taken from you on the classes
and the assessments? (N=324)

●
●
●

How frequently are the feedback taken?(n=301)

93% of the surveyed students stated that feedback regarding classes and assessments were taken from
them.
Out of these surveyed students, from whom feedback was taken, 55% and 36% reported that feedback
was taken once a week and after each class, respectively.
Trainers and program teams also stated that a structured mechanism is in place to take feedback from
employers after students’ placements.
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Impact of the Program
The program successfully supported students in acquiring digital skills and enabled
them to have clearer professional aspirations
How do you think the program helped you
acquire digital literacy? ( N=324)

●
●
●
●

What is your career aspiration for the future? (N=324)

While 61% of the students stated wanting to work/ get a job, 49% also wanted to pursue higher studies.
14% of the surveyed students also highlighted wanting to start something of their own.
The program thus enabled students to get a clearer vision of their professional aspirations.
100% of parents also expressed their views on their kids sharing their career aspirations with them. They
wish to pursue professional courses such as MBA, engineering, etc. to further hone their skills and seek
employability.

Though the program strengthened the students’ technical skills significantly and
improved their confidence levels to a certain extent, emphasis on softer skills is
required
Do you think the program has enabled you
to communicate confidently in English? (n= 324)

●

Do you think that the program has enabled
you to feel confident in expressing
new ideas to people? (n= 324)

As stated by 5/6 employers, communication skills are one of the most important skills for any job,
especially for jobs related to telecommunications and sales.
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●
●
●
●

57% of the students speak in English, out of which 29% speak in English only during meetings.
While 23% of the students don’t feel comfortable speaking in English, 20% don’t speak in English at all.
This further highlights the need for better communication training.
During the focus group discussions, parents highlighted that a few classes should be offline, especially
for spoken English since, despite online training, students still struggle to communicate in English.
42% of the students reported that they feel confident in expressing new ideas to people, irrespective of
educational spaces or workplace.

Of the surveyed students, 26% secured employment and 63% chose to pursue
higher education as a result of the program
83)

●
●
●

What are you currently doing? (N= 324)

Bifurcation of the 26% employed candidates (n=

While the primary objective of the CDC was to enable students to secure employment, the program also
encouraged 63% of the students to pursue higher education.
63% of the students are reportedly pursuing higher education.
26% of the surveyed students were currently employed out of which 17% secured placement through the
program placement process and 9% through independent sources.
Students who stated to be employed
belonged to the following courses (n=83)

●

63% of the total employed students belonged to either professional edge, BPO, or retail courses.
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The salary levels of 50% of the students employed under the professional edge
course are lesser than average market standards
●
●

Students in the professional edge courses either take up jobs as a data entry operator or in the BPO
sector.
The salary bands, as per market standard for BPO and retail inventory ranges from Rs. 15,000 - 20,000/
month
Industry-wise market salaries:
Retail

₹ 10,000 - ₹ 15,000 per month

Data Entry
Operator

₹ 15,000- ₹ 20,000 per month

CRM BPO

(Entry Level -₹ 12,000)
₹ 17,482 - ₹ 19,182/month

The average salary bands being drawn by the students who got placed through the program through the
following courses:
Professional Edge (n=41)

Retail Inventory (n=6)

CRM BPO (n=16)

●

●

The above data highlights that under BPO, 75% of the employed candidates’ salary is lower than the

market standards. Under Retail, nearly 83% of the employed candidates’ salary is lower than the market
standards.
100% of employers however reported that increments are offered to the placed students twice a year,
based on their performance, as a result of which the salaries of the employed youth tend to increase over
time.
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On average, 50% of the total employed students have been able to retain their jobs for
at least 3 months owing to regular follow-ups or aligned aspirations
For how long you have been in the company
you got placed in? (n=35)

●
●
●
●

Did the program team follow up with you after your
recruitment in the new company? (n=56)

Out of the 26% of the surveyed students who were placed through the program, 63% were able to retain
their jobs. 50% of these students were able to do so for at least 6 months.
79% of the surveyed students also highlighted regular follow-ups from the program team after their
recruitment to a new company through the program’s placement process.
As reported by the program team, this resulted in substantially higher retention rates and employers
showing interest in continuing hiring candidates from the program.
Although 3 out of 5 employers highlighted that sometimes the hired candidates tend to drop out in the
initial months of their job, 100% of the interviewed employers also highlighted stronger technical and soft
skills as a reason for hiring candidates from the program.

The program increased the ability of students to apply their technical skills in their
current role; however, there is a need for more hands-on knowledge prior to
placements
How have you been able to apply the
technical skills acquired in the course? ( n=56)

Do you think that the program enabled you to feel
confident in leading programs and presenting them in
your current job? (n= 56)
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●
●

●
●
●

75% of the students highlighted being able to apply the technical skills learnt during the program, to their
jobs practically.
5 out of 6 employers substantiated this by stating that they were happy with the performance of the placed
students. One employer additionally stated that the students need a better understanding of how to
navigate the business aspect of the work.
The technical knowledge possessed by the students was consistently rated 4 out of 5 by all employers.
45% of the students reported that they feel confident in leading programs and presenting them in their
current jobs.
However, 48% of the students continue to feel nervous or hesitant to take leadership roles in their current
job, indicating a need for further training to address the practical knowledge of the students.

The program exposed 91% of students to financial management, and enabled them to
contribute towards their household income
Are you able to contribute financially
towards the income of the family? (n=56)

●
●
●

Which of the following have you started
to practice after getting employment? (n=56)

91% of the employed youth started to contribute financially towards their family income as a result of

securing employment through the program.
73% of them reportedly started to save more money, 50% opened a bank account and 45% maintained
their monthly budgets to keep a track of their income.
The parents also reported children contributing towards the income of their family and taking part in the
financial decisions of the household.
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Key Recommendations
Re-visit the objectives of the CDC and ascertain how they are different from the DLCs

Observation:
It was observed that both Digital Learning Centres (LMS) and Career Development Centres’ objectives and
courses overlap one another. The outreach of the DLCs is however much larger than that of CDCs. The
employment rate of the students in DLCs also seems to be higher than in CDCs.
Recommendation:
1. Re-visit the salient features of both DLC and CDC to outline the purpose of creating two separate programs
that essentially contribute to the same objective.
Strengthen the soft-skills training component of the program

Observation:
During the qualitative interviews, 5/5 of employers had indicated that they would like the candidates to be well
versed with soft-skills. Especially the candidates that get recruited into the BPO sector. The students too had
indicated that they need some support in soft-skills and preferably through in-person classes or training.
Recommendation:
1. The program can strengthen its soft-skills component by inviting the students to the centres at stipulated
time intervals for the soft-skills sessions.

To create a structured plan for a hybrid model going forward

Observation:
Similar to the DLCs, the CDCs through the learning management system (LMS) has reached out to students
without limiting themselves to the ones who are located in the base locations of the centres. The CDCs at a
time can house a very limited number of students who can access computers, and students would have to
travel from far-off locations to reach the centres. Considering this, the hybrid model of functioning needs to be
thoroughly structured to accommodate these challenges.
Recommendation:
1. Explore if a hybrid model would be the right approach going forward, after accounting for the logistical
constraints and necessary infrastructural upgrades.
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Hole in the Wall (HiWel)
Demographics
The demographics of sampled surveys are as follows:
Location-wise split of the surveyed students (N=278)

Gender and age-wise split of the surveyed students (N=278)

62% Males

38% Females

Need for the Program
Origin of HiWel Learning Stations
Hole-in-the Wall (HiWel) concept of learning was introduced in 1999 as an experiment in a slum in Kalkaji,
Delhi for the students. A computer was placed in the opening of a wall in the slum. The computer had online
access and a number of programs that could be used, but no instructions were given for its use. The children
in the area couldn't get enough. They began to click and explore. 12
12

Mitra, S. The Hole in the wall project and the power of self-organized learning. Edutopia, accessed August 3, 2022
https://www.edutopia.org/blog/self-organized-learning-sugata-mitra
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The Hole-in-The-Wall Education Project (HiWel) takes the learning station to the playground, employs a unique
collaborative learning approach and encourages children to learn by exploring. The experiment was aimed at
proving that children could be taught by computers very easily without any formal training. This work
demonstrated that groups of children, irrespective of who or where they are, can learn to use computers and
the Internet on their own with public computers in open spaces such as roads and playgrounds, even without
knowing English.
The primary objective of the learning stations is to enable a self-exploratory approach to digital literacy.
It was believed that unconditional access to the learning stations can lead to the following:
● Both children in-school and out-of-school can use them.
● The unstructured nature of this setting also ensures that children themselves take ownership of the learning
station by forming self-organised groups who learn on their own.
● An unsupervised setting ensures that the entire process of learning is learner-centric and is driven by a
child’s natural curiosity.
The learning station fosters collaborative learning among groups of children instead of following the usual
school model of rote-based learning (unidirectional). This allows children to explore, learn, share and learn
even more as a result of this exchange of knowledge. This ‘multiplier effect’ of collaborative learning is
utilised fully by HiWel learning stations. HiWel learning stations rely more on exploratory learning where
Children can freely experiment in the learning station. Again, groups of children access the Learning Station,
leading to twin advantages of collaborative learning and multiple children using the learning stations at the
same time. This leads to a much greater impact on children than in a traditional lab-based setting.
Apart from addressing the digital skills, HiWel learning stations also address a more fundamental skill set
–the process of learning itself. Encouraging children to explore the Learning Station, seeks to impart their
problem-solving skills and an ability to think critically. 13

ATC CSR’s adoption of HiWel Learning Stations across India
ATC India’s adoption of HiWel learning stations across India addresses the digital literacy gap permeating the
nation. In 2012, the ATC’s CSR wing decided to install HiWel stations in village communities. By 2016, a
conscious step was taken to further standardise the approach by setting up the HiWel stations at the Digital
Learning Centres at ATC tower sites.
The intended objectives and benefits of these stations were:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Enable learning in remote locations with no facilities
Generate access to technology, quality digital and innovative content
and un-interrupted learning
Promote gender equality by making no distinction amongst learners
based on their gender
Reduce the number of out-of-school children and improved
attendance
High impact group learning through knowledge sharing
Development of 21st-century skills – life skills
13

In-the-Wall. Hole. (n.d), accessed August 2, 2022 http://www.hole-in-the-wall.com/aboutHiWel.html
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Implementation of the HiWel Learning Station (Pre-Pandemic)

Pivot to Learning Masti classes during the pandemic
When Covid-19 hit India, the lockdown and the subsequent restrictions
that came with it led to the closure of schools- affecting more than 1.5
billion children and young people worldwide.1 In the wake of the national
lockdown and subsequent closure of HiWel learning stations, virtual
classes were introduced to facilitate access to digital content/resources
and ownership of learning among the students who were earlier
accessing HiWel kiosks.
It is in this context that Learning Masti Modules were created by the
NIIT Foundation to deliver 21st-century skills to students aged between
6-14 years through virtual sessions.
The Learning Masti modules were designed to create an accessible
space for young students to come together and learn through activity-based learning. Like the HiWel Stations,
the Learning Masti modules were also made accessible to out-of-school children. As the name suggests, the
objective of these classes was to break the monotony caused by the COVID- 19 pandemic.
Furthermore, these classes aimed to ensure that, even without the physical HiWel, students can continue to
access digital resources and content.
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Some of the salient features of the virtual classes are as follows:
●
●
●
●
●

The online classes were facilitated by Centre Heads. Prior to the pivot to online classes, the centre heads
would support students in navigating the HiWel stations.
The Learning Masti Modules were not mapped to any particular age group.
Since content is not mapped to any particular age, the classes are not divided into age-appropriate batches.
The virtual classes were not mandatory for students to attend.
Take-home activities were provided to students after each class.

As informed by the program team, the virtual classes consisted of the following activities:
1. Big Question
2. Read, Comprehend and Apply
3. Storytime

Implementation of HiWel Learning Masti Modules
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Effectiveness of Intervention
A well-deﬁned process was followed to help students transition to Learning Masti
Modules
Did you visit HiWel stations near you? (N=278)

●
●
●

●

●

What motivated you to visit the HiWel
stations? (n=184)

Before the COVID-19 pandemic, 82% of the students who visited the HiWel stations reported that getting
access to digital games on computers was a motivation for them to visit the station.
79% of the students stated that they joined the program to gain access to computers.
This was further substantiated by the program beneficiaries’ parents, who highlighted that the students did
not have access to any kind of digital devices prior to the program. However, the program enabled them to
leverage the HiWel stations to learn about computers and explore different digital resources.
During the pandemic, virtual classes were introduced. While there was a significant change in the program
intervention, 66% of the students who were a part of the HiWel stations successfully transitioned to the
virtual classes.
Parents motivated their children to join the virtual classes because they wanted them to learn, explore and
interact with other children, even outside the school setting.
“Despite power cuts, we would always suggest that our child attend the class. We felt that attending classes was more
helpful than playing games outside all the time”
-Parent, Uttar Pradesh

●

However, 83% of the interviewed parents acknowledged that the virtual classes do not substitute for the
HiWel stations. While they agreed that virtual classes are fun for the students, students learn more
through the HiWel learning stations.

Effective student and parent mobilisation has instilled a sense of trust within the
community for the program and its implementation
How did you hear about the program? ( N=278)
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●
●
●
●
●

49% of the students reported hearing about the program through a school teacher or friends/ fellow
community members.
42% of the parents reported that the awareness of the program was generated through family/ community
members.
Sattva's team observed that HiWel learning stations are located within the community/village, making it
easier for parents and children to learn about the program and subsequently, access the stations.
According to the Centre Heads, students were mobilised for virtual classes primarily through Whatsapp
and by telephonically calling parents.
The HiWel program team stated that mobilisation for the Learning Masti classes required different
interventions, but they faced no difficulties in mobilising students.

As the schedule of virtual classes is not standardised, students lack clarity on how
often the classes are conducted
How often were the online classes conducted? (n=278)

●
●

●
●

How often were you able to attend the
online classes? (n=278)

The Centre Head stated that virtual classes were conducted 3-4 times a week.
However, 33% of the students stated that they attend the virtual classes at least thrice a week. This was
further substantiated by parents’ observations. It was observed that students were unclear regarding the
frequency of the virtual classes.
While the classes have managed to sustain a connection between the physical station and the students
through virtual interactions, there is no standardised schedule across locations.
The classes are supposed to be voluntary in nature. However, since the class schedule is not
standardised, the attendance of students is also not consistent. This further makes it difficult for the
Centre Head to follow up and monitor the progress of the students.

The feedback mechanism needs to be further strengthened for all stakeholders,
including parents, and program beneficiaries to understand the effectiveness of
program implementation
●
●

While parents were involved during the mobilisation phase, 61% of the parents reported that no follow-up
calls were made to them regarding the progress of their child after their enrolment.
Additionally, 38% of the parents reported that feedback was taken from them ‘sometimes’ indicating that
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there was no structured mechanism of understanding the extent of parental involvement in the process of
learning.
“We didn’t receive calls regarding our child’s progress from the program team. We do receive calls from the Centre Head
but that’s to follow up if our child has missed multiple classes”
-Parent

●

Through our focus group discussion, it was observed that parents’ role in the program is limited to the
mobilisation phase. This further indicates a general lack of awareness regarding program activities and
their children’s progress.
Have you been asked
for feedback? (N=278)

●

If yes, how often did you
submit the feedback. (n=253)

91% of students stated that they submitted feedback to the Centre Head, with 53% suggesting that the
feedback was submitted after each class.

Impact of the Program
This section aims to understand the impact created by the program through the virtual classes among the
surveyed beneficiaries.

The virtual classes have enabled at least 75% of students to access and possibly
explore different digital resources on their own
How do you think the online classes
enabled you to access and explore digital resources? (n=278)

How often do you complete the
take-home activities? (n= 278)
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How do you think the virtual classes
have facilitated peer learning? (n=278)

●

●
●

Though the Learning Masti classes are not divided into age-appropriate batches nor mapped to the
grade-wise curriculum, 87% of the surveyed students highlighted that the virtual classes enabled them to
explore their age/grade-appropriate resources by themselves.
In focus group discussions, 90% of the parents stated that students were able to search digital content
through Youtube and Google to do their school homework.
An increase in the student's ability to explore and learn independently was reported by 100% of the
interviewed parents.

Through the virtual classes, students were encouraged to attempt take-home activities
at home, and seek support from parents.
●

●

●

As mentioned before, the Centre Head gives take-home activities to students towards the end of the class.
These activities are for students to attempt at home, and are voluntary in nature. Students are encouraged
to discuss their reflections in the next class.
It was reported that 77% of the students attempted the take home-activities at home. Out of these
students, 55% students also reported that they frequently took support from their parents or elder
siblings while completing the take-home activities, involving them in their learning process.
According to research, parental involvement in students’ homework can create a learning environment at
home.14 In low-income families and in the case of first-generation learners, this also allows parents to be a
part of the student's learning process in a limited yet significant manner.

“Sometimes, children come to us with questions we don’t know the answers to but we still try to answer them. Most of the
time, they teach us how to use our phones. So it feels good.”
-Parent, Odisha

●

However, the extent of parental involvement is not mapped or documented.
14
“Impact of Parental Involvement in Homework on Children’s Learning.” Journal of Education Society and Behavioural Science . Accessed
August 3, 2022.
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/353575670_Impact_of_Parental_Involvement_in_Homework_on_Children's_learning
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●

In addition to parental involvement, it was reported that 75% of the surveyed students have reportedly
started to work in groups more frequently and are more likely to seek/provide help wherever needed.

100% of the parents feel that physical HiWel stations are more effective than virtual
platforms
Do you think the learning modules taught in virtual classes
are appropriate for your age and learning level? (n= 278)

What do you think of the quality of teaching
imparted through online classes? (n=278)

Do you think you would be comfortable going back
to learn and explore from the HiWel station? (n=278)

●
●

●
●

75% of the students reported that the learning modules imparted through the virtual classes are
appropriate for their age and learning levels.
The centre heads highlighted that the class modules were designed, keeping in mind the experiential
learning of the students. Students were motivated to learn by doing and later, reflect on activities together
in class.
However, the parents indicated that learning from the online classes is not very consistent without the
element of practical learning associated with the physical station.
99% of the students had stated that they would be comfortable going back to learning and exploring from
the HiWel stations. However, the remaining 1% of the students stated that they would like the virtual
classes to continue because the HiWel learning stations are located far away from their villages.
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Standalone HiWel- Case Study
Standalone HiWel learning stations are located at schools in various geographical locations within India. As opposed to
other learning stations that are attached to Digital Learning Centres and supported by a Centre Head, Standalone HiWel
stations operate autonomously. They are accessible to children as well as community members.

Kusupangi High School, Cuttack in Odisha has dedicated one specific period for
students to work on the station
Kusupangi High School, Cuttack

Head-Master
●

The HM plays the most significant role in the mobilisation process and has taken full responsibility
for its functioning. This also includes involving parents and the School Management Committee
in program interventions.

●

The HiWel station is an asset for them and the students. He reiterated that they had allocated one
specific period for students to work on the computer.

Teacher
●

In addition to the physical HiWel, the teacher also saw a value addition in the virtual classes
(Learning Masti Modules). She reported that virtual classes are necessary as they enable students to
learn and explore new things on the internet independently.
“We teach students a topic in the classroom and when they go home, use
Youtube or Google to add more value to it. We like to believe that instilling a
sense of curiosity in students''
-Teacher 1, Cuttack
“Children have learnt how to use Youtube and Google, they sometimes use it to
support their school homework. It surely has instilled a sense of enthusiasm in
children about learning. My child even bought shoes online. They are all one step
ahead of us”
-Parents, Cuttack
“We have seen significant changes in our children through the online classes but
it would be great if students could start visiting the station again. We want our
children to learn how to use the computer.”
-Parents, Cuttack
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Key Recommendations
Enhance monitoring and evaluation metrics and processes at student and managerial levels to
ensure periodic reviewing of the program

Observation
Student levelVirtual Set-up: During the virtual set-up of the classes, the students’ attendance and learning progress were
not being categorically monitored and recorded. The learning masti modules were set out to impart 21st-century
skills among the students. In the absence of a monitoring system, the extent to which the students have
acquired these skills cannot be gauged.
HiWel stations: When students visited the HiWel stations, their attendance would be recorded in a visit record
to understand the footfall of students at a HiWel at any given time. However, tracking of the student attendance
alone would not help one to understand how the students are using the stations.It is important to understand
how the students are using the HiWeL station to facilitate their own learning.
Managerial LevelThe centre coordinators are subjected to an orientation on the learning masti modules. However, there lacks a
comprehensive MIS system to track the collective and individual performance of the employees.
Recommendation
1. Creation of a robust log frame that maps the input, output, outcome and impact indicators quantitatively.
2. Introducing centralised student tracking mechanisms would enable efficient tracking of student progress
and learning outcomes across various blocks and locations.
3. MIS can be introduced at all hierarchical levels to understand the individual and collective performance of
the team towards the achievement of the set objectives/outcomes.

Re-align the objective of the HiWel stations with a supporting monitoring and evaluation
framework
Observation
The intended objective of the program is to ensure that the entire process of learning is learner-centric,
child-driven and the child takes ownership of his/her learning. The focus here is not only to enable access to
digital resources but to enable the students to be able to learn through the digital content being accessed. The
program primarily focuses on enabling access and lays little emphasis on improving learning outcomes through
access to digital resources.
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Recommendations
1. The objective of usage of HiWel stations to influence the learning outcomes of a child needs to be clearly
articulated at the program level.
2. The intervention should be subsequently structured to enable the achievement of the outcomes.

Build an adequate ecosystem for the sustainability of the program

Observation
The program, through active mobilisation campaigns, has built a good foundation to sensitise the communities
on the importance of digital literacy. However, the program has not leveraged the community to develop an
ecosystem that can sustain itself beyond the life of the program.
Recommendations
1. Identify youth volunteers or DLC alumni who can front lead the HiWel intervention in absence of NIIT’s
facilitation.
2. Build a sustainability model in a phased-out manner to categorically understand and execute community
ownership of HiWel.
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Annexures
Baseline Indicators
The Baseline indicators can be used to track the overall progress of the programs through the
below-mentioned indicators at any point in time.
Digital Learning Centres
Objective

Upskilling the underserved
communities by imparting basic
digital literacy .

Outcomes (LMS)

#% of students completing
the course. (received
certificates under the LMS
#% of students completing
category).
the course. (received
certificates under the
#% of female students
non-LMS category.
completing the course
under the LMS category.
#% of female students
completing the course
#% of students clearing all
under the non- LMS
the assessments under
category.
LMS course(s).
#% of students clearing all
#% of students who
the assessments under
completed the course(s) in
non- LMS course(s).
the stipulated duration
under LMS courses.
#% of students who
completed the course(s) in
#% of students who
stipulated duration under
pivoted to career (LMS)
Non- LMS courses.
courses after completing
the non-career-courses.

#% change in the number
of students who are able to
Focus on spoken English and
converse in English after
soft-skill training of each student. the course ( soft skills
program)

Placement support to be
provided to students wrt to their
eligibility.

Outcomes (Non-LMS)

#% change in awareness
regarding the job
opportunities in the
relevant sector.
# % change in the
acceptance rate of the
students graduating from

#% change in the number
of students who are able to
converse in English after
the course ( soft skills
program)

Impact /Goal

#% of students who have
gained basic digital literacy
skills.
#% of students getting
placed after the completion
of the program.
#% of female students
securing employment.
#% of students who earn
on par with the industry
specific standards.
#% of students who have
reported a change in
aspiration as a result of the
program.
#% of students who have
retained their jobs after
placement.

#% of students who
reported an increase in
# % change in acceptance economic status as a result
rate of the students
of the program.
graduating from the
courses from the non-LMS
courses.
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the courses from LMS
courses.
#% change ( increase) in
the number of employers
who would want to recruit
from NIITF.

Work on the capacity building of
the Centre team to increase the
overall impact of the program.

#% improvement in the
technical skills of the
faculty as a result of
training imparted.

#% improvement in the
technical and
administrative skills of
centre- coordinators as a
result of training imparted.

#% of facilitators who are
#% of facilitators who are
able to monitor the student
able to monitor the student
performances and relay
performances and relay
the feedback effectively.
the feedback effectively.

Career Development Centres
Objective

Outcomes

Impact /Goal

#% of students completing the
course. (received certificates under
LMS category)
Providing end-to-end solutions to the
skilling needs of the community by
enhancing local employability opportunities
in sectors such as IT, Accounting,
Logistics, Data Entry, Retail etc.

Focus on the all-around personality
development of each student

Placement opportunity & support to all the
eligible candidates.

#% of female students completing
the course.

#% of students getting placed after
the completion of the program
#% of students clearing all the
#% of female students securing
assessments in their specified
employment.
course(s) under
#% improvement in the confidence
level of the students to pursue better
#% of students who completed the
job opportunities in future.
course(s) in stipulated duration
#% of students who earn on par with
under LMS ( career) courses.
the industry-specific standards.
#% change in the number of
#% of students who reported an
students who are able to converse in
increase in economic status as a
English after the course ( soft skills
result of the program.
program)
#% of students who have retained
their jobs after placement.
#% change in awareness regarding
the job opportunities in the relevant
sector.
# % change in the acceptance rate
of the students graduating from the
courses from LMS stream.
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#% change ( increase) in number of
employers who would want to recruit
from NIITF
Work on the capacity building of the Centre #% improvement in the performance
team to increase the overall impact of the of faculty as a result of training
program.
imparted.

HiWel Learning Station
Objective
Bridge the digital divide in the
underprivileged community and enable
children to experience technology via
computers.

Outcomes
#% of students who feel that
provision of technology is bridging
the digital divide in the community
and helping them improve their
learning levels.
#% of students who feel that the
program has enabled them to
access grade/age-appropriate digital
learning materials.

Impact /Goal

#% of students who feel confident
about exploring the digital learning
materials by themselves to facilitate
their learning.
#% of students who feel that the
program has facilitated peer group
learning among the students.

#% of students who are able to
Through the use of computers an attempt
support their subject/classroom
to positively impact children’s learning
learning through accessing digital
levels, particularly in subjects like
learning tools/materials.
Computers, English and Mathematics.

#% of students who were able to
acquire subject-related knowledge
via the digital learning materials
Increase parental and community interest
in computer technology.

#% of students who feel that they
can take ownership for their own
learning.
#% of students who feel
autonomous learning helps them
develop critical and creative thinking
abilities
-

HiWel Virtual
Objective
Providing access to digital learning

Ensure learning is not hampered during
the pandemic

Outcomes

Impact /Goal

#% of students who feel confident
#% of students feel that the program
about exploring the digital learning
has enabled them to access digital
materials available to facilitate their
learning materials.
learning.
#% of students who feel that
learning has not been interrupted
during the pandemic.

#% of students who feel that the
program has facilitated peer group
#% of parents support their students learning among the students.
in learning.
#% of students who feel that they
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#% of students who feel that the
can take ownership for their own
virtual classes have motivated them learning.
to learn on their own.
# of teaching learning materials
created to deliver the learning
modules.
#% improvement in the necessary
Capacity building of the centre
skill sets as a result of the training
coordinator to ensure effective delivery of
imparted.
the learning modules.
#% of centre facilitators who are
able to monitor the student
attendance and performance and
relay feedback effectively.

Research Indicators for Impact Assessment
DLC
DAC

Key Hypothesis Sub Hypothesis

Research Questions

A systematic and
scientific
methodology
was undertaken
When and how was the needs
to understand assessment conducted to establish
the needs and program objectives and activities?
expectations of
the target
beneficiaries

Relevance

A systematic
needs
assessment was
Project
done to establish
objectives and
program
activities have
relevance and
been mapped to
address the
the needs of the
community's
target group
pressing needs
A systematic and
documented
methodology
was used to
select the
location and
profiles of the

Research
Indicators

Need Assessment

Need Assessment
What are the needs of the target
groups that have been identified
and prioritised?

Alignment of the
program objectives
and activities with
the needs of
beneficiaries

What is the socio-demographic
profile of the students?

Socio-economic
demographics of the
students

How were the locations selected
for the program intervention?

Location Selection
Process
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students

There is a
well-defined
mobilisation,
selection and
enrolment
process for the
student
beneficiaries.

Effectiveness

Is there a well-defined and
standardised process to mobilise
the candidates for the program?

No. of students
mobilised through
the intervention
across different
mediums
(online/offline)
SOP
Mobilisation process

Is there a well-defined and
standardised process of enrolling
the candidates into the program?

Enrolment process
(Counselling, Any
aptitude/
psychometric tests)
No. of students
enrolled in the
program in 2021

The services are
A defined
executed on
process
of hiring Is there a well-defined process to
ground to impart
on-board and train classroom
and
training
the
technical and
trainers on an on-going basis?
centre heads
soft skills to
and
trainers
program
beneficiaries,
and is expected
to have achieved
its objectives and
The curriculum is How was the curriculum designed
goals
uniquely
to cater to various skills sets
designed to
(career courses and non-career
cater to the
courses)?
various career
needs of the
target
How often is the curriculum
beneficiaries and
is contemporary updated to accommodate market
changes?
to the changing
market
conditions.
The LMS UI was Were the students able to access
LMS continuously throughout the
constructed to
duration of the course?
enable
self-paced
learning
Do the students find the LMS UI
intuitive enough to enable

Trainer qualifications
and on-boarding
process
No. of training
sessions conducted
under various
categories
(Technical, Soft
skills)
Frequency of
trainings

Process of
curriculum design

Changes in the
curriculum over time

No. of students who
could access LMS
throughout the
duration of the
course
No of the students
who could navigate
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self-paced learning?

the LMS platform on
their own

Are the students able to
understand the course content
delivered through LMS?

No. of students who
could understand the
course content on
LMS with ease

How did the students find the
quality of instruction given by the
trainer?

Feedback on the
trainings imparted to
students

Were the students able to access
the classes on virtual platforms
continuously through the duration
of the course?

No. of students who
could access virtual
classes throughout
the duration of the
course

Were the batches created
considering the optimal
Student-Teacher ratio to optimise
learning in the virtual sessions?

Student-Teacher
Ratio
Number of batches
per courses

How efficiently are the students
able to understand the course
content delivered through the
virtual set-up?

No. of students who
could understand the
course content on
virtual-set up with
ease

There is a
defined process
to counsel the
students on the
sector-specific
opportunities
they can pursue
after the course
completion.

What is the nature and frequency
of the counselling sessions
conducted?

No. of counselling
sessions conducted
to understand the
beneficiaries'
aspirations

Quality soft and
life skills are
imparted through
the training

Did the students find the soft/life
skill training useful for their
personality development?

Feedback on the soft
skill trainings
imparted to students

What activities were conducted as
a part of the pre-placement
intervention?

SOPs, Placement
activities

What is the criterion for students'
eligibility for the pre-placement
process?

Eligibility Criterion for
pre-placement
support ( completion
of the coursework).

There is high
quality of content
delivery on LMS

(Non-LMS)
The virtual
platforms were
maximised to
impart basic
digital literacy
skills

Pre-placement
intervention
provides the
candidates who
opted for LMS
career course
with additional
support in
achieving job
offers in
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company
There is a
defined process
to align
candidate
aspirations, skill
development
and market
demand for
placement for
the LMS career
courses

Are there any efforts to improve
the aspiration as per the market
demand?

There is a
What is the nature and frequency
well-defined
of the follow-ups conducted after
post-placement
the placement?
support for the
candidates who
Is there a standardised process to
are placed
through the LMS take feedback from the employers
regarding the candidates'
career course,
progress?
leading to higher
retention
Is there a standardised process to
record attendance of the candidate
during the program?
Are there standardised
assessments to assess the
learning progress of the
candidates?

No. of counselling
sessions conducted
before the placement
to understand the
beneficiaries'
aspirations

Post placement
feedback
mechanisms

Monitoring and
Evaluation
frameworks,
progress reports

The program
includes a
monitoring and
Is there a standardised process to
evaluation
Placement trackers,
record the placement of the
function team to
records and reports
candidates who opted for LMS
measure the
career courses?
progress of the
Is there a standardised process to
Monitoring and
intervention
follow up with the students who tracking mechanisms
dropped out of the program?
of program drop outs
Is there a standardised process to
certify the candidates upon
completion of the training?
A well-defined
feedback
mechanism is in
place to identify
on-ground
challenges and
program

Is there a well-defined and
standardised process to take
feedback from the candidates
during and after the course
completion?

Eligibility for
certifications

Feedback
mechanisms and
progress reports

Is there a well-defined and
standardised process to take
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progress

feedback from the classroom
trainers to understand challenges?

The program
No. of students
length is optimal
Is the duration of the program from
getting placed after
based on the
the foundational course to the
finishing the course
needs and
placements adequate to achieve
in the stipulated time
learning capacity
the objectives of the program?
period
of the target
beneficiaries

Process to
identify risk and
define risk
mitigation
strategy

Is there a well-defined process to
identify and document the key
risks for the program?

Risk Mitigation Plans
%age of students
who dropped out
during the program
%age of students
who couldn't get
Are there risk mitigation strategies
placed
in place and documented?
Uncountable delays
in the placement
process

LMS / Career Courses- Impact

Short term impact

The program has
generated
positive impact
on the
beneficiaries'
knowledge
regarding various
technical skills
and job
opportunities in
relevant sectors

Has the program enabled
development on the necessary
technical skills among the
LMS-Career course candidates?

Number of
beneficiaries who
report a change in
their knowledge
regarding job
opportunities.

The program has
increased the
Number of
beneficiaries'
Has the program enabled
beneficiaries who
level of
development of foundational digital report a change in
awareness and
literacy among the candidates?
their knowledge
knowledge
regarding digital
regarding
literacy
different job
Is there a change in awareness Change in number of
opportunities in
about the various job opportunities
females getting
relevant sectors.
among the beneficiaries?
employed/ certified
Did the program help the enrolled
Secondary
candidates to have a clearer vision
Research- Low
of their professional aspirations?
participation of
What impact did the program have women in technical
on female enrollment?
streams

The program
The skilling
intervention
program has
provided job
What is the course completion rate
generated
opportunities to
for LMS courses?
employment
the beneficiaries
opportunities for
through its
its beneficiaries
placement

Number of
beneficiaries who
completed
non-career/ career
courses through
LMS
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process

The program
also enabled
students to apply
for jobs
independently

The program
The candidates
provides holistic
are able to
development of
Medium term impact
effectively apply
beneficiaries
skills learnt in
through soft and
the program
life skill training

Long term impact

The program has

Program

No. of program
beneficiaries who
were placed through
How many candidates who
the placement
completed the course secured
process of the
employment?
program
How many first-time earners were No. of candidate who
provided employment through the
completed the
program?
course Vs No. of
How many students who were
candidates who got
already employed were able to
placed
increase their earning after the
% of the first-earners
program
who were offered
employment through
the program
% of the first time
Did the program enable the
candidates to seek employment
independently?

Number of
beneficiaries who
found employment
independently in
their area of skill.

Were the beneficiaries able to
apply their program learning to
their current jobs?

No. of program
beneficiaries who
were placed in
course-specific
industry (Retail,
BPO)
No. of program
beneficiaries who
report that the
acquired skill set is
useful in their current
job

Has there been a perceived
change in the candidates’
confidence level after the
program?

Perceived change in
the beneficiaries’
confidence levels.

Has there been a perceived
change in the communication skills
of the candidate?

Perceived change in
the beneficiaries’
communication
abilities.

Has the program enabled the
students to have a better clarity of
their career prospects and growth
?

Perceived change in
the beneficiaries’
ability to make
decisions regarding
their careers.

How has employment affected the

Increase in HH
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resulted in
economic growth
for the
candidates and
their households

interventions
have led to
significant
changes in the
household
income and
savings of the
beneficiaries

household earnings and savings of income and savings
a candidate?
Has attending the skilling program
enabled the candidate to
contribute financially to their
household?

Amount contributed
by the program
beneficiaries to the
household

Perceived change in
the perceptions of
careers in technical
fields
How has the perception of careers
No. of program
in technical fields (Retail, BPO etc)
The program has
beneficiaries who
changed? Are more students
positively
would refer others in
encouraged to take up jobs in
The program
impacted the
the community to join
similar fields?
furthers upward
community
the Career
perception on social mobility of
Development
the community it
employment
Centres
serves
opportunities for
Perceived change in
aspiring
the perceptions of
candidates
How has the community's
careers in technical
perception towards
fields for women
working-women changed?
No. of women
beneficiaries
registered VS placed
An increased The program has
economic
resulted in
resilience among
sustained
Are the candidates retained in and
the communities
professional
growing in the job?
the program
benefits for the
serves
candidates

No. of program
beneficiaries that
have retained their
jobs (<6 months)
No. of program
beneficiaries that
have achieved a
promotion

Non- LMS/ Non- Career

Impact

Number of
beneficiaries who
The program has The program has
report a change in
Has the program enabled
generated
increased the
their knowledge
development of foundational digital
positive impact
beneficiaries'
regarding digital
literacy among the candidates?
on the
level of
literacy
Did the program help the enrolled
beneficiaries'
awareness and
Number of women
candidates to have a clearer vision
knowledge
knowledge
enrolled Vs certified
of their career pathways?
regarding
regarding
Secondary
What impact did the program have
foundational
foundational
Research- Low
on female enrollment?
digital literacy
digital literacy
participation of
women in technical
streams
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The skilling
program has
generated
sufficient
opportunities for
its beneficiaries
to pursue after
the course
completion.

No. of program
beneficiaries who
completed the
What is the course completion
program and were
rate?
certified
The program
How many candidates who
No. of candidate who
intervention
completed the course were able to
completed the
enabled the
transition to the career courses?
course Vs No. of
students to
How many students who
candidates who
pursue sectoral
opportunities of completed the course were able to transitioned to career
pursue other sectoral opportunities
course
their interest
of their interest?
Any documents
pertaining to the job
placements of the
beneficiaries
The program
also enabled
students to apply
for jobs
independently

The program has
positively
impacted the
community
perception on
digital learning
and skilling
opportunities for
the aspiring
candidates

The program
intervention
instilled the
importance of
digital literacy
and skilling
opportunities
among the
community
members.

Did the program enable the
candidates to seek employment
independently ?

Number of
beneficiaries who
found jobs in their
area of skill.

Perceived change in
the perception of
community
stakeholders
regarding digital
literacy
Perceived change in
How has the access to the
program changed the perception of the perception of
community
the community towards the
stakeholders
importance of digital literacy?
regarding the
How has the community's
participation of
perception towards encouraging
women
female participation changed?
No. of beneficiaries
facilitating/ teaching
basic digital skills to
family members/
community
stakeholders
Have Standard Operating
Procedures been introduced to
ensure continuous functioning of
the organisation?

Sustainability

SOPs
Program level
Necessary steps sustainability has
have been taken
been
to bring out
Documentation/
achieved/recogni Is the exit strategy planned for the
sustainability in
SOPs
for transfer of
zed
program (Role and responsibility
the program
R&R and operational
transfer)?
maintenance
Ecosystem level Have the prospects of institutional

Documentation/
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sustainability has
been
achieved/recogni
zed

collaborations ( Government and
employers ) been identified and
explored?

SOPs for future
collaborations with
government/
employers

Has the program accounted for the
students transitioning from the
online LMS mode to a hybrid mode
?

SOP pertaining to
the transitioning
process from the
The effect of
online-classroom
Covid-19
mode to the
pandemic on the
autonomous learning
project's
mode through LMS
sustenance plan Is the program resilient to cope up
at the Career
with the effects of the pandemic?
Development
Centres

CDC
DAC

Key Hypothesis Sub Hypothesis

Research Questions

A systematic and
scientific
methodology
When and how was the needs
was undertaken
to understand assessment conducted to establish
the needs and program objectives and activities?
expectations of
the target
beneficiaries

Relevance

Effectiveness

A systematic
needs
assessment was
Project
done to establish
objectives and
program
activities have
relevance and
been mapped to
address
the needs of the
community's
target group
pressing needs
A systematic and
documented
methodology
was used to
select location
and profiles of
the students
The services are
executed on

There is a
well-defined

Research
Indicators

Need Assessment

Need Assessment
What are the needs of the target
groups that have been identified
and prioritised?

Alignment of the
program objectives
and activities with
the needs of
beneficiaries

What is the socio-demographic
profile of the students?

Socio-economic
demographics of the
students

How were the locations selected
for the program intervention?

Location Selection
Process

Is there a well-defined and
standardised process to mobilise

No. of students
mobilised through

74

ground to impart
mobilisation,
technical and
selection and
soft skills to
enrolment
program
process for the
beneficiaries,
student
and is expected
beneficiaries.
to have achieved
its objectives and
goals

A defined
process of hiring
and training the
centre heads
and trainers

the candidates for the program?

Is there a well-defined and
standardised process of enrolling
the candidates into the program?

Is there a well-defined process to
on-board and train classroom
trainers on an on-going basis?

The curriculum is How was the curriculum designed
uniquely
to cater to various skills
designed to
sets(career courses)?
cater to the
various career
needs of the
target
How often is the curriculum
beneficiaries and updated to accommodate market
is contemporary
changes?
to the changing
market
conditions.

the intervention
across different
mediums
(online/offline)
SOP
Mobilisation process
Enrolment process
(Counselling, Any
aptitude/
psychometric tests)
No. of students
enrolled in the
program in 2021
Trainer qualifications
and on-boarding
process
No. of training
sessions conducted
under various
categories
(Technical, Soft
skills)
Frequency of
trainings

Process of
curriculum design

Changes in the
curriculum over time

No. of students who
Were the students able to access
could access LMS
The LMS UI was LMS continuously throughout the
throughout the
constructed to
duration of the course?
duration of the
enable
course
self-paced
Do the students find the LMS UI
No of students who
learning
intuitive enough to enable
could navigate LMS
self-paced learning
platform on their own
There is high
quality of content

Are the students able to
understand the course content

No. of students who
could understand the
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delivery on LMS

delivered through LMS?

course content on
LMS with ease

How did the students find the
quality of instruction given by the
trainer?

Feedback on the
trainings imparted to
students

Did the students find the soft/life
skill training useful for their
personality development?

Feedback on the soft
skill trainings
imparted to students

What activities were conducted as
a part of the pre-placement
intervention?

SOPs, Placement
activities

What is the criterion for students'
eligibility for the pre-placement
process?

Eligibility Criterion for
pre-placement
support ( completion
of the coursework).

There is a
defined process
to align
candidate
aspirations, skill
development
and market
demand for
placement

Are there any efforts to improve
the aspiration as per the market
demand?

No. of counselling
sessions conducted
before the placement
to understand the
beneficiaries'
aspirations

The placement
process provides
sector-specific
employment
opportunities to
the candidates

Is there a standardised process
defined for on-boarding the
employers?

SOPs, employer
onboarding criteria (if
any)

Quality soft and
life skills are
imparted through
the training
Pre-placement
intervention
provides the
candidates with
additional
support in
achieving job
offers in
company

There is a
well-defined
post-placement
support for the
candidates who
are placed
through the
course, leading
to higher
retention
The program
includes a

What is the nature and frequency
of the follow-ups conducted after
the placement
Is there a standardised process to
take feedback from the employers
regarding the candidates'
progress?

Post placement
feedback
mechanisms

How many candidates have
retained the jobs after
placements? ( <6 months)

Post placement
retention rate among
the placed
candidates

Is there a standardised process to
record attendance of the candidate

Monitoring and
Evaluation
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monitoring and
during the program?
frameworks,
evaluation
progress reports
Is there a standardised
function team to
assessment process to assess the
measure the
learning progress of the
progress of the
candidates?
intervention
Is there a standardised process to
Placement trackers,
record the placement of the
records and reports
candidate by job role and salary?
Is there a standardised process to
Monitoring and
follow up with the students who tracking mechanisms
dropped out of the program?
of program dropouts
Is there a standardised process to
certify the candidates upon
completion of the training?
A well-defined
feedback
mechanism is in
place to identify
on-ground
challenges and
program
progress

Is there a well-defined and
standardised process to take
feedback from the candidates
during and after the course
completion?
Is there a well-defined and
standardised process to take
feedback from the classroom
trainers to understand challenges?

Eligibility for
certifications

Feedback
mechanisms and
progress reports

The program
length is optimal
No. of students
Is the duration of the program from
based on the
getting placed after
the foundational course to the
needs and
finishing the course
placements adequate to achieve
learning capacity
in the stipulated time
the objectives of the program?
of the target
period
beneficiaries

Process to
identify risk and
define risk
mitigation
strategy

Is there a well-defined process to
identify and document the key
risks for the program?

Risk Mitigation Plans
%age of students
who dropped out
during the program
%age of students
who couldn't get
Are there risk mitigation strategies
placed
in place and documented?
Uncountable delays
in the placement
process

The program has The program has
Has the program enabled
generated
increased the
development on the necessary
positive impact
beneficiaries'
technical skills among the
Short term impact
on the
level of
candidates?
beneficiaries'
awareness and
Is there a change in awareness
knowledge
knowledge
about the various job opportunities

Number of
beneficiaries who
report a change in
their knowledge
regarding job
opportunities.
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regarding various
regarding
among the beneficiaries?
technical skills
different job
Did the program help the enrolled
and job
opportunities in candidates to have a clearer vision
opportunities in relevant sectors. of their professional aspirations?
relevant sectors
What impact did the program have
on female enrollment?

The skilling
program has
generated
employment
opportunities for
its beneficiaries

The program
intervention
provided job
opportunities to
the beneficiaries
through its
placement
process

What is the course completion
rate?
How many candidates who
completed the course secured
employment?

Change in the
number of females
getting employed.
Secondary
Research- Low
participation of
women in technical
streams
No. of program
beneficiaries who
were placed through
the placement
process of the
program
No. of candidate who
completed the
course Vs No. of
candidates who got
placed
No. of candidates
who dropped out of
the course and why

How many first-time earners were
provided employment through the % of the first-earners
who were offered
program?
employment through
How many students who were
the program
already employed were able to
% of the first time
increase their earning after the
program

The program
Number of
Did the program enable the
also enabled
beneficiaries who
candidates to seek employment
students to apply
were successfully
aside from the placement facilities
for jobs
placed independently
provided?
independently
in their area of skill.
Has the program enabled
Number of
development of foundational digital
beneficiaries who
literacy among the candidates?
report a change in
The program has
The program has Has the program instilled a sense
their knowledge
generated
of importance to digital skills
increased the
regarding digital
positive impact
(Digital Marketing/ Financial
beneficiaries'
literacy
on the
literacy?)
level of
beneficiaries'
awareness and
Number of women
knowledge
knowledge
Did the program help the enrolled enrolled Vs certified
regarding
foundational
candidates
to have a clearer vision
Secondary
foundational
digital literacy
of
their
career
pathways?
ResearchLow
digital literacy
What impact did the program have
participation of
on female enrollment?
women in technical
streams
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Medium term
impact

The program
The candidates
provides holistic
are able to
development of
effectively apply
beneficiaries
skills learnt in
through soft and
the program
life skill training

The program has
resulted in
economic growth
for the
candidates and
their households

Long term impact

Program
interventions
have led to
significant
changes in the
household
income and
savings of the
beneficiaries

Were the beneficiaries able to
apply their program learning to
their current jobs?

No. of program
beneficiaries who
were placed in
course-specific
industry (Retail,
BPO)
No. of program
beneficiaries who
report that the
acquired skill set is
useful in their current
job

Has there been a perceived
change in the candidates’
confidence level after the
program?

Perceived change in
the beneficiaries’
confidence levels.

Has there been a perceived
change in the communication skills
of the candidate?

Perceived change in
the beneficiaries’
communication
abilities.

Has the program enabled the
students to have a better clarity of
their career prospects and growth
?

Perceived change in
the beneficiaries’
ability to make
decisions regarding
their careers.

How has employment affected the
Increase in HH
household earnings and savings of
income and savings
a candidate?
Has attending the skilling program
enabled the candidate to
contribute financially to their
household?

Amount contributed
by the program
beneficiaries to the
household

Perceived change in
the perceptions of
careers in technical
The program has
How has the perception of careers
fields
positively
in
technical
fields
(Retail,
BPO
etc)
No.
of
program
The program
impacted the
changed? Are more students
beneficiaries who
furthers upward
community
encouraged
to
take
up
jobs
in
would
refer others in
perception on social mobility of
similar
fields?
the
community
to join
the community it
employment
the Career
serves
opportunities for
Development
aspiring
Centres
candidates
How has the community's
perception towards

Perceived change in
the perceptions of
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working-women changed?

An increased The program has
economic
resulted in
resilience among
sustained
Are the candidates retained in and
the communities
professional
growing in the job?
the program
benefits for the
serves
candidates

careers in technical
fields for women
No. of women
beneficiaries
registered VS placed
No. of program
beneficiaries that
have retained their
jobs (<6 months)
No. of program
beneficiaries that
have achieved a
promotion

Have Standard Operating
Procedures been introduced to
ensure continuous functioning of
the organisation?

SOPs
Program level
sustainability has
been
Documentation/
achieved/recogni Is the exit strategy planned for the
SOPs for transfer of
zed
program (Role and responsibility
R&R and operational
transfer)?
maintenance

Sustainability

Ecosystem level
Documentation/
Necessary steps sustainability has Have the prospects of institutional
SOPs for future
collaborations ( Government and
have been taken
been
collaborations with
employers ) been identified and
to bring out
achieved/recogni
government/
explored?
sustainability in
zed
employers
the program
Has the program accounted for the SOP pertaining to
students transitioning from the
the transitioning
online LMS mode to a hybrid mode
process from the
The effect of
?
online-classroom
Covid-19
mode to the
pandemic on the
autonomous learning
project's
mode through LMS
sustenance plan Is the program resilient to cope up
at the Career
with the effects of the pandemic?
Development
Centres

HiWel
DAC

Relevance

Key Hypothesis Sub Hypothesis

Research Questions

Research
Indicators

A systematic
A systematic and
Needs assessment
needs
scientific
study
When and how was the needs
assessment was
methodology
Socio-economic
assessment conducted to establish
done to establish
was used to
profiles
program objectives and activities?
program
understand the
(demographics) of
relevance and
needs and
the program
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address
expectations of
community's
the target
pressing needs beneficiaries and
map them with
the program
objectives and
activities

beneficiaries

A systematic and
What was the objective behind the
documented
program going pan India?
methodology
What were the strategies/
was used to
methodologies followed to select
select location
these locations for the program
for the program
intervention?
intervention
Program
Is the online delivery mode of the
objectives and
program in line with the outlined
adaptation has
objectives of the program?
evolved over the
years of program What are the changes made to
implementation course and/or program during the
Covid-19 pandemic?
according to the
How
has the program stayed
needs of the
relevant through these changes?
community
A defined
process of
mobilisation,
selection and
on-boarding of
student
beneficiaries

Effectiveness

The
Hole-in-the-Wall
learning program
has been
designed in a
way to maximise
A defined
the quality of
process of hiring
implementation and training the
centre heads

The learning
modules are
designed by

Is there a well-defined and
standardised process to mobilise
the students for the program?

Location Selection
Process

SOPs

Changes in the
content delivery
Changes in
intervention
Mobilisation
strategies
No. of parents who
were spoken to
regarding the
program objectives

Is there a well-defined and
Selection process for
standardised selection process of
students
students into the program?
Is there a well-defined and
standardised process of hiring
centre heads/ trainers for the
program?

Centre-Head
recruitment process.
Centre-head
qualification

Is there a well-defined and
standardised process to train the
centre heads/trainers for quality
program delivery?

No. of trainers who
report attending
training sessions by
the program team
Frequency of training
sessions
Kinds of training
imparted

Is there a dedicated team to
design the learning modules
(learning modules) of the

Program team
structure
R&R
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experts and
upgraded in a
timely

The content
designed to
cater to the
learning needs
of the respective
age groups

program?

Ongoing progress of
activities

How are the learning modules
designed for the program
Process of designing
implementation, i.e, how are the
the learning modules
topics identified, are these
catering to the needs
modules grade/ age specific, what
of the students
specific skill set is being catered to
through these modules?
Do students find the learning
modules relevant?

No. of students who
found the content
and its activities
useful

No. of students who
How did the students find the
report that they could
quality of instruction and medium
understand the
of instruction during classes?
classes with ease
The sessions are What is the planned vs achieved
Session frequency
conducted
frequency of sessions conducted?
regularly and
No of students who
children are
How many students were able to
attended
the classes
attending the
attend classes regularly?
regularly
classes

The program
includes a
monitoring and
evaluation, and
feedback
mechanism to
measure the
progress of the
intervention

Is there a standardised process to
assess the learning levels of the
candidate before, during and after
(student learning progress) the
program?

Student
assessmentsfrequency and
adequacy
Monthly Progress
Reports

Is there a standardised process to
record the attendance of the
candidate during the program?

Monitoring and
Evaluation
framework,
Log-frame, SOP

Is there a standardised M&E
system in place to monitor the
progress of programs at the centre
level, regional level and program
level?

Monitoring and
Evaluation
framework,
Log-frame, SOP

No. of students/
Is there a standardised feedback parents who find the
mechanism in place to understand
online learning
student learning progress and
useful/ helpful for
home engagement from parents
themselves/ their
kids
The program

The program is

What are the processes and

SOPs, Log-frame
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aims to provide
able to
the opportunity to
effectively
learn for the
collaborate with
underserved
all relevant
communities.
stakeholders to
achieve project
outcomes and
impact

activities conducted to collaborate
with all relevant stakeholders like
parents and centre coordinators
along with children?

The program
Is there a well-defined process to
Process to
team was able to
identify and document the key
identify risks and identify risks and
risks and the risk mitigation
define risk
create a
strategies at the program level?
mitigation
mitigation
(For example- addressing drop
strategies
strategy to
outs, and initiating follow ups with
address them
parents)
The beneficiaries
The program has
awareness about
increased the
the importance
awareness/knowl
of acquiring
edge of the
digital literacy
beneficiaries
have resulted as
about the
a result of the
intervention
program

Impact

How many students are aware
about the importance of digital
literacy as a result of the virtual
classes?

As a part of
imparting 21st
century skills, the
Has the program resulted in the
Student
program, through
beneficiaries are improvement of digital literacy
providing
able to access skills among the students?
accessibility,
content online by Has the program enabled the
strives to achieve
themselves
students to feel confident about
digital literacy
exploring the digital learning
among the
materials available to facilitate their
students.
learning?

Students are
able to
The program has collaborate and
led to
learn from each
improvement in other as a result
students' level of of the program
motivation and
attitude towards
learning
The program has

Has the program facilitated peer
group learning among the
students?

Number of students
who report a change
in the awareness
level regarding the
importance of digital
literacy
Mobilisation
strategies used
Change in enrolment
rates of students
under HiWel Centres
and online sessions
No. of students who
report accessing
different platforms
and learning
resources .
Perceived change in
the beneficiaries’
ability to participate
in group discussions
and share learning
with each other
No. of students who
report participating in
group discussions

Change in the
instilled a sense Has the program enabled students students' ability to
of ownership of to take ownership of their learning?
speak up in a
learning among
classroom setting as
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the students

a result of their
learning in HiWel
Is there a Standard Operating
Procedure in place to ensure
continuous functioning of the
HiWel stations?

SOPs
Program level
sustainability has
been
Documentation/
achieved/recogni Is the exit strategy planned for the
SOPs
for transfer of
zed
program (Role and responsibility
R&R and operational
transfer)?
maintenance

Sustainability

Steps have been Ecosystem level
Has the community gained
taken to bring sustainability has
ownership of the program
about
been
(Behavioural
change, recognition
sustainability in achieved/recogni
of need for program activities)?
the program
zed

No. of parents/ who
are willing to support
the program

Students transitioning from online
learning to the autonomous set-up
enabled by HiWel stations

SOP pertaining to
the transitioning
The effect of
process from the
Covid-19
online-classroom
pandemic on the
mode to the
project's
Is the program resilient to cope up autonomous learning
sustenance plan with the effects of the pandemic?
through the HiWel
stations
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Annexure : Data policy
Sattva has in place internal security protocols to protect the privacy of all data collected from respondents,
especially any personally identifiable information (PII). Some of the relevant protocols for this project are:
●

Data Storage and Access: Any devices used for data collection are password-protected to prevent
unauthorised access. Survey software with encryption features, such as Collect, have been used so that
encryption occurs during data collection and transmission to a central server. Data with PII is shared only
using encrypted files, unless being shared directly from Sattva’s cloud storage. Access to data on Sattva’s
cloud storage has been further limited to program team members who require access.

●

Data Retention: Data with PII is only retained for pre-decided periods based on program requirements.
Any data stored on data collection devices is removed after data collection for the program is complete, to
minimise risk. Where possible, data stored on stolen/ lost devices is remotely deleted.

●

Training: Personnel are provided adequate training on maintaining the privacy of data collected, including
procedures for handling devices to maintain data security.

●

Removal of PII: All PII are removed from the raw dataset and separated into an “Identifiers Dataset” and
“Analysis Dataset”. A common ID is generated to allow re-joining PII data if required. Access to the
“Identifiers Dataset” is limited to select personnel as required. Limited and necessary PII are re-shared with
enumerators/field supervisors to allow for quality checking and back-checking of data as per program
requirements.
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To The Members of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone financial statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
standalone
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
les generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.
Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 39 to the Standalone Financial Statements, which states that the Company will
continue to monitor the impact, if any, due to the financial condition relating to one of the large customers of
the Company, as it is possible that the estimated future cash flows may differ from current estimates, and
changes in estimated cash flows from the said customer could have an impact on recorded Property, plant
and equipment, Capital work in progress, Other intangible assets including tenant-related intangibles, Rightof-use assets, Revenue equalisation reserve and Goodwill.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Regd. Office: One International Centre, Tower 3, 32 nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai
(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)

400 013, Maharashtra, India.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.
Sr. No.

Key Audit Matter

1.

Revenue recognition:
There is an inherent risk around the accuracy of
revenue recorded given a) the Company uses
billing systems which are complex and process
large volumes of data with a combination of
different components of revenue, and b) the
Company has multiple price negotiations with
their customers.
(Refer to Notes 2.12, 19 and 40 to the standalone
financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2022)

A
Principal audit procedures performed:
Our audit procedures included evaluation of billing
systems including design and implementation of
internal controls, and testing the operating
effectiveness of the internal controls that pertain
to the:
Capturing
and recording
of
revenue
transactions;
Authorisation of rates changes and input of the
rate changes into the billing systems;
Preparation and validation of the billing
schedule; and
Calculation of amounts billed to operators, in
line with underlying contracts / agreements.
We assessed the terms and provisions in the
master lease agreement and evaluated the
their accounting policies, along with their use of
estimates, in the determination of revenue
recognition conclusions;
We tested invoices on sample basis issued to
operators to ensure that the revenue recorded
agreed to the relevant underlying supporting
part of substantive procedures. We also
performed analytical procedures to test the
recorded revenue for each customer;
We involved our internal IT specialists to test
general IT systems and application specific
controls surrounding billing system, including
testing of system generated reports used in our
audit; and
We challenged management estimates around
appropriateness of revenue recognition and
reversals for biases that could result in material
misstatement by examining historical trend of
negotiations pattern with the customers.

2.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

Principal audit procedures performed:

Our audit procedures included, obtaining an
assets for impairment at the end of each understanding of the methodology used by the
reporting period or when events or changes in management for impairment assessment
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount including evaluation around the appropriateness
of those methods used for impairment
of these assets may not be recoverable.
assessment.
In assessing, whether there is an indication of
impairment, management applies judgement, in We evaluated design and implementation of key
determining the recoverable amount, being the controls, and testing the operating effectiveness
higher of the assets fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use.
recoverability of tangible and intangible assets,
including those over future occupancy levels,
We identified the impairment of tangible and rental rates, terminal growth rate and discount
intangible assets as a key audit matter because of rates.
the significant estimates and assumptions
management
makes
to
evaluate
the We evaluated the future cash flows analysis,
recoverability of these assets.
including estimates of future occupancy levels,
rental rates, and capitalization rate with possible
Refer to Notes 2.5, 2.22(i) and 3 to 6 to the impairment indicators by (i) evaluating the source
standalone financial statements for the Year information and assumptions used by
ended March 31, 2022.
management and (ii) testing the mathematical
accuracy of the discounted future cash flows.
We evaluated the reasonableness of the discount
rate and growth rate including the terminal
growth rate by:
Testing the source of information underlying
the determination of discount rate and the
mathematical accuracy of the calculation.
Developing a range of independent estimates
and comparing those to the rates used by the
management.
We

evaluated

the

reasonableness

of

market sources and results from other areas of the
audit.
Information Other than the Financial
comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and o

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management.
nting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
material uncertainty exist
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore
des
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
f)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
ntrols over financial reporting.

g)

h)

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial remuneration is
not applicable.
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:
i.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements. Refer to Note 35 to the standalone financial statements.

ii.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

(a)

(b)

disclosed in the note 47 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
ded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;
disclosed in the note 48 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities.; and

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed final
dividend for the year and hence, reporting under Rule 11(f) is not applicable for the year.

2.
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specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
ation No. 117366W/W-100018)

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner
(Membership No. 104337)
(UDIN: 22104337AJRNRL2117)

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 to the Members of ATC Telecom
Infrastructure Private Limited of even date]
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private
) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

ning internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
nt of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
ernal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria
for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
117366W/W-100018)

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner
(Membership No. 104337)
(UDIN: 22104337AJRNRL2117)

on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 to the Members of ATC Telecom
Infrastructure Private Limited of even date]
In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state
that:
(i)

(a) (A)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.
(b) The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment, capital work-inprogress and right-of-use assets so to cover all the items once in every 3 years which, in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year and were
physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
(c) Based on our examination of the registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds
of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties on operating lease where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed
in the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company as at the balance sheet date.
(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right of Use
assets) and intangible assets during the year.
(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March
31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.
(ii)

(a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii)(a) of Companies
is not applicable.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the year, the
Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets, and hence reporting under clause (ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(iii)

The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, and granted any
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties during the year. The Company has granted a loan, unsecured, to its wholly owned
subsidiary company during the year, in respect of which:

(a) The Company has granted a loan to its wholly owned subsidiary company during the year and the
details are given below:
(Rs. in crores)
Loan
A. Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year:
- Subsidiary

0.50

B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases:
- Subsidiary

Nil

(b) The terms and conditions of the grant of all the above-mentioned loan, during the year are, in our
(c) In respect of loan granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are
regular as per stipulation.
(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, in respect of loan granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining
outstanding as at the balance sheet date.
(e) None of the loans granted by the Company have fallen due during the year.
(f)

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, the Company has not granted any loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (iii)(f)
is not applicable.

(iv)

According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, made
investments or provided guarantees or securities that are covered under the provisions of sections 185
or 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is
not applicable.

(v)

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi)

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the Company by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) (a)

Undisputed
Insurance, Income-tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have
generally been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities. Sales Tax, Service Tax,
duty of Custom and Value Added Tax are not applicable to the Company.
There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on
March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:
Name of Statute

Nature of Dues

The Income-tax
Act, 1961

Income Tax

The Income-tax
Act, 1961
The Central Sales
Tax, 1956

Income Tax

The West Bengal
Value Added Tax
Act , 2003
The Gujarat Value
Added Tax Act,
2003
The Haryana Value
Added Tax Act,
2003
The Madhya
Pradesh Value
Added Tax Act,
2002
Tamil Nadu Value
Added Tax, 2006
Tamil Nadu Value
Added Tax, 2006
The Finance Act,
1994

Value Added Tax

The Finance Act,
1994
The Finance Act,
1994
Goods and Service
Tax Act, 2017

Service Tax

CST

Forum where
Dispute is Pending

Period to which the
Amount Relates

Amount (Rs.
In crores)*

Commissioner of
Income Tax (A)/
Deputy
Commissioner of
Income Tax
Income tax Appellate
Tribunal
Appellate
Tribunal/Appellate
Commissioner/
Commercial Tax
Officer/ Deputy
Commissioner of
Taxes Appeals
Appellate
Commissioner

2006-07, 2010-11 to
2016-2017 and 201920

139.00

2008-09

475.00

2007-08 to 2017-18

2007-08,2008-09 ,
2010-11 to 2012-13 ,
2015-16 and 2016-17
2007-08 to 2009-10

12.26

7.90

Value Added Tax

Appellate
Commissioner

Value Added Tax

Appellate
Commissioner

2011-12

0.01

Value Added Tax

Appellate Tribunal

2007-08 to 2009-10

2.42

Value Added Tax

Appellate
Commissioner
High Court

2007-08 to 2010-11

25.83

2008-09 to 2011-12

8.49

Custom Excise &
Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal
Hon'ble Supreme
Court
Commissioner
(Audit) Central tax
Appellate
Commissioner
/Deputy
Commissioner

2005-06 to 2017-18

628.83

2006-07 to 2009-10,
2011-12 and 2012-13
2013-14 to 2016-17

24.78

Value Added Tax
Service Tax

Service Tax
Goods and service
Tax

2017-18 to 2019-20

192.13

4.82
2.48

The Uttar Pradesh
Tax on Entry of
Goods into Local
Areas Act, 2007
The Bihar Tax on
Entry of Goods into
Local Areas for
Consumption, Use
or Sale Therein Act,
1993
Maharashtra
Municipal
Corporation Act,
1949
Chhattisgarh
Municipal
Corporation Act,
1956 and
Chhattisgarh
Municipalities
Act,1961
Gujarat Provincial
Municipal
Corporations Act,
1949
The Maharashtra
Municipal Councils,
Nagar Panchayats
and Industrial
Townships Act,
1965
Respective
Municipalities/
Municipal
Corporation /
Municipal Council/
Nagar Panchayats
Act

Entry Tax

Appellate
Commissioner

2007-08

0.06

Entry Tax

Appellate
Commissioner

2008-09 to 2013-14
and 2016-17

0.93

Property Tax and /
or Municipal
Charges

Bombay High Court

2005-06 to 2021-22

433.50

Property Tax and /
or Municipal
Charges

Supreme Court

2021-22

1.30

Property Tax and /
or Municipal
Charges

Supreme Court

2013-14 to 2018-19

9.43

Property Tax and /
or Municipal
Charges

Bombay High Court

2007-08 to 2021-22

2.31

Property Tax and /
or Municipal
Charges

Respective
Municipalities /
Municipal
Corporation /
Municipal Council/
Nagar Panchayats

2008-09 to 2021-22

35.50

* Net of amount deposited as per the records of the Company against income tax, central sales tax, state VAT,
service tax, GST , Entry Tax and Property Tax is Rs. 88.33 Crores, Rs. 0.50 Crores, Rs. 8.39 Crores , Rs. 17.01
Crores , Rs. 0.01 Crores , Rs. 0.92 Crores and Rs. 26.74 crores respectively.
(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed
as income in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.
(ix)

(a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.
(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilised term loans
at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.
(d) The Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis during the year and hence, reporting
under clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.
(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures, as applicable.

(x)

(f)

The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause (ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable.

(a)

The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during the year and
hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(xi)

(a)

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.
(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year (and upto the date of this report) and provided to us, when performing our audit.
(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.
(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.
(xiv) (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and
the nature of its business.
(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period under
audit.
(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.
(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.
(b) There is no core investment company within the Group {as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016} and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the
Order is not applicable.
(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.
(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.
(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and
there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to
the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135
of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
117366W/W-100018)

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner
(Membership No. 104337)
(UDIN: 22104337AJRNRL2117)

ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
(CIN- U74110MH2004PTC289328)
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless stated otherwise)

Notes
ASSETS
I. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Right-of-use assets
(d) Goodwill
(e) Other intangible assets
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Other financial assets
(g) Deferred tax assets (net)
(h) Current tax assets (net)
(i) Other non-current assets

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

3
4
38
5
6

7,230.35
90.12
5,138.51
1,748.20
4,020.35

7,200.99
109.36
5,198.79
1,817.72
4,339.42

7
9
12

1.27
405.03
255.24
360.98
19,250.05

0.22
407.59
7.89
471.83
270.20
19,824.01

1,854.34
3,484.20
1,272.36
296.87
60.59
4.19
6,972.55
26,222.60

1,269.96
3,252.97
1,045.19
212.00
95.61
6.75
5,882.48
25,706.49

13
14

883.52
1,053.96
7,324.66
9,262.14

883.52
1,053.96
6,683.93
8,621.41

15
38
16
18
12
17

8,177.30
4,973.34
251.19
512.22
121.61
5.27
14,040.93

8,354.50
4,917.34
292.01
488.64
4.39
14,056.88

177.20
803.03

177.20
766.85

26.34
798.69

14.90
831.48

187.41
143.22
783.64
2,919.53
26,222.60

405.29
144.27
688.21
3,028.20
25,706.49

10
Total non-current assets

II. Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Other financial assets
(b) Current tax assets (net)
(c) Other current assets
(d) Non-current assets classified as held for sale

8
11
9
10
Total current assets
Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I. Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Compulsory convertible debentures
(c) Other equity
Total equity
II. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net)
(d) Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
III. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions

38
16

16
17
18
Total current liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2)
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022
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Sandeep Girotra
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
(DIN: 5141862)
Place: Singapore

Place: Gurugram

Vishal Jajodia
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AEZPJ9677H)
Place: Gurugram

Vinod Negi
Company Secretary
(PAN: ACIPN0657N)
Place: Gurugram

Date: May 26, 2022

Ashwani Khillan
Director
(DIN: 08451314)
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ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
(CIN- U74110MH2004PTC289328)
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless stated otherwise)

Notes
I. INCOME
(a) Revenue from operations
(b) Other income
Total income (I)
II. EXPENSES
(a) Energy charges
(b) Repairs and maintenance
(c) Employee benefits expenses
(d) Provision/write off/impairment for property,plant and
equipment,intangible assets,capital work in progress and right-ofuse assets
(e) Write off of assets and impairment of financial assets
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expenses
(g) Finance costs
(h) Other expenses

Weighted average number of shares used in computing earnings per equity share
(a) Basic
(b) Diluted
Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2)
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

March 31, 2021

19, 38
20

9,066.15
279.50
9,345.65

8,470.60
268.72
8,739.32

21
22
23
24

3,421.54
541.98
291.95
15.46

3,147.34
553.07
282.51
240.50

25
26
27
28

358.96
2,246.65
1,236.59
289.63

136.98
2,227.48
1,259.48
258.88

8,402.76

8,106.24

942.89

633.08

173.97
129.04
303.01
639.88

120.14
64.08
184.22
448.86

Total expenses (II)
III. Profit before tax (I)-(II)
IV. Tax expense
(a) Current tax expense
(b) Deferred tax charge
Total tax expense
V. Profit for the year (III)-(IV)
VI. Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or (loss)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit
or loss
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (VI)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (V+VI) [Comprising Profit and other comprehensive income for
VII.
the year]
Earnings per equity share [par value of Rs. 10/- (absolute amount)]
(a) Basic (in Rs.) (absolute amount)
(b) Diluted (in Rs.) (absolute amount)

March 31, 2022

29
12

31
12

1.31
(0.46)

(0.29)
0.10

-

-

0.85

(0.19)

640.73

448.67

6.86
6.86

4.81
4.81

932,314,011
932,314,011

932,314,011
932,314,011

33

33

2
3-54
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited

Sandeep Girotra
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
(DIN: 5141862)
Place: Singapore

Ashwani Khillan
Director
(DIN: 08451314)

Vishal Jajodia
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AEZPJ9677H)
Place: Gurugram

Vinod Negi
Company Secretary
(PAN: ACIPN0657N)
Place: Gurugram

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 26, 2022
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ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
(CIN- U74110MH2004PTC289328)
Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless stated otherwise)
a. Equity Share Capital
March 31, 2022
Nos
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at the end of the year
b. Other Equity
Capital Reserve
Securities
on
3
2 premium
Amalgamation

421.20

(812.56)

Profit for the year 2020-21

-

-

(ii) Other comprehensive loss

-

-

421.20

(812.56)

-

-

421.20

(812.56)

(i)

II. Balance as at March 31, 2021
(i) Profit for the year 2021-22
(ii) Other comprehensive income
(iii) Transfer to Debenture
Redemption Reserve
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Footnotes:
Description of purposes of reserves:

March 31, 2021
Nos

Amount

883,519,398
-

883.52
-

883,519,398
-

883.52
-

883,519,398

883.52

883,519,398

883.52

Reserve and Surplus
Capital
reserves1

I. Balance as at March 31, 2020

Amount

3,493.54

General
Reserve4

Debenture
Capital
Redemption Redemption
5
6
Reserve
Reserve

Other
equity7

Retained
earnings8

Items of Other
Comprehensive
9
Income
0.89

6,235.26

-

448.86

150.00

197.61

166.67

206.78

2,411.13

-

-

-

-

-

448.86

-

-

-

-

-

-

150.00

197.61

166.67

206.78

-

44.51

-

-

150.00

242.12

166.67

206.78

3,493.54
-

3,493.54

(0.19)

Total

(0.19)

2,859.99

0.70

6,683.93

639.88
(44.51)

0.85
-

639.88
0.85
-

3,455.36

1.55

7,324.66

1) Represents capital reserve created pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement between erstwhile Wireless-TT Info Services Ltd (erstwhile Viom Networks Ltd now known as ATC
Telecom Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) and erstwhile Quippo Telecom Infrastructure Ltd effective April 01, 2009.
2) Represents capital reserve created pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation referred to footnote to note 33.
3) Securities Premium consists of Rs. 734.72 recognised on issue of equity shares in earlier years and Rs. 2,758.82 transferred from Transferor companies pursuant to the Scheme of
Amalgamation referred to footnote to note 33.
4) Represents amount transferred from Debenture Redemption Reserve post redemption of 12,000 redeemable non-convertible debentures of Rs. 500,000 (absolute amount) each.
5) Represents Debenture Redemption Reserve created pursuant to section 71 (4) of Companies Act, 2013 for redemption of 42,000 Unsecured, redeemable, listed, rated, fully paid
non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 (absolute amount)each. In terms of notification dated August 16, 2019 and February 19, 2021 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
the Company has created Debenture Redemption Reserve.
6) Represents Capital Redemption Reserve created pursuant to section 55 (2) of Companies Act, 2013 for redemption of 166,666,666, 10.25% Cumulative Non-convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each.
7) Other equity includes cost of stock options, restricted stock units and other benefits provided to the employees of the Company by the ultimate holding company and which are not
required to be settled in cash by the Company. (refer note 32)
8) Retained earnings represent accumulated profits after appropriation of reserves.
9) Other Comprehensive income represents gain/loss on actuarial valuation of defined benefit plan.
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited

Sandeep Girotra
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
(DIN: 5141862)
Place: Singapore

Ashwani Khillan
Director
(DIN: 08451314)

Vishal Jajodia
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AEZPJ9677H)
Place: Gurugram

Vinod Negi
Company Secretary
(PAN: ACIPN0657N)
Place: Gurugram

Place: Gurugram

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

Date: May 26, 2022
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ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
(CIN- U74110MH2004PTC289328)
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless stated otherwise)

Notes
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustment for:
Provisions/liabilities no longer required written back
Interest Income
Gain on retirement of right-of-use assets (net)
Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment
Provision/write off/impairment for property,plant and equipment, intangible assets, capital
work in progress and right-of-use assets
Bad debts/advances written off
Write off of assets and impairment of financial assets
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Finance costs
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) (net)
Revenue equalisation reserve
Provisions for contingencies (net of expected recovery)
Operating profit before working capital changes
Movement in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets
(increase) in other financial assets
(decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase in trade payables
(Decrease)/Increase in other current liabilities
Increase in other non-current liabilities
Increase in provisions
Cash from operations
Income tax (paid)/refunds- net
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A)
Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale/insurance claims on property, plant and equipment
including capital work in progress
Net decrease bank balances and margin money deposits
Loan to subsidiary company
Loan repaid by subsidiary company
Investment in subsidiary companies
Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities (B)
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings
Repayment of lease liabilities
Interest paid
-On borrowings
-On lease liabilities
Net cash used in financing activities ( C)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

942.89

633.08

20
20
20
20

(50.48)
(112.03)
(23.48)
(87.25)

(123.86)
(125.07)
(17.24)
-

24
25
25
26
27

15.46
23.15
335.81
2,246.65
1,236.59
0.92
(83.76)
34.30

240.50
17.58
119.40
2,227.48
1,259.48
(2.03)
(77.30)
24.54

4,478.77

4,176.56

(958.96)
3.25
35.02
(168.15)
(135.90)
24.78
(0.59)
0.88
3.92
(1,195.75)
3,283.02
(42.25)

403.25
(11.90)
(10.72)
(32.51)
(19.14)
62.00
42.93
4.39
12.03
450.33
4,626.89
74.65

3,240.77

4,701.54

38
28

(1,087.35)
145.09

(991.43)
120.08

8.57
(0.50)
0.50
(1.05)
110.40
(824.34)

(0.32)
(0.21)
124.59
(747.29)

(177.20)
(810.09)

(177.20)
(776.90)

(721.43)
(476.48)
(2,185.20)

(735.76)
(488.58)
(2,178.44)

231.23

1,775.81
Contd..
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ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
(CIN- U74110MH2004PTC289328)
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless stated otherwise)

Note
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

11

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Components of cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year
Balances with scheduled banks:
-In current accounts
- In fixed deposits
Balance in digital payment wallet

11
11
11

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

3,252.97

1,477.16

3,484.20

3,252.97

239.13
3,238.90
6.17

254.42
2,998.55
-

Total cash and cash equivalents
3,484.20
Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2)
2
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
3-54
The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows.

3,252.97

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
Long term borrowings

Total

March 31, 2021
8,531.70
8,531.70

Addition
-

Repayment
(177.20)
(177.20)

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner

Sandeep Girotra
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
(DIN: 5141862)
Place: Singapore

Place: Gurugram

Vishal Jajodia
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AEZPJ9677H)
Place: Gurugram

Vinod Negi
Company Secretary
(PAN: ACIPN0657N)
Place: Gurugram

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

March 31, 2022
8,354.50
8,354.50

Ashwani Khillan
Director
(DIN: 08451314)

Date: May 26, 2022
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ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless stated otherwise)

1.

General Information
Background and nature of business
ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited (the Company) is a company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and is engaged in the
business of providing Passive Telecom Site Infrastructure Service termed as
to cellular mobile telephony operators and other licensed
telecom infrastructure providers in India. The Company is registered with Department of Telecom, Ministry of Communications, Government of India as
Infrastructure Provider Category I, (IP-I Infrastructure provider). The registered office of the Company is situated at 404, 4th floor, Skyline Icon, Andheri Kurla
Road, Andheri East, Mumbai - 400059, Maharashtra.
The Company is a subsidiary of ATC Asia Pacific Pte Ltd., Singapore, a step down subsidiary of American Tower Corporation, USA.

2 Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 (i) Statement of compliance
The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India.
2.1 (ii) Basis of preparation of standalone financial statements
These standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for goods and services. The accounting policies followed in preparation of the Financial Statements are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021.
2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or deemed cost and subsequent costs thereto less accumulated depreciation/amortization and
provision/impairment of damaged/non-usable assets.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as capital advances under other
non-current assets. Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use are disclosed under
Capital work-in-progress
is stated at cost less provision for obsolete and damaged assets and any recognised impairment loss.
Costs includes purchase price, taxes and duties (net of duties/taxes of which credit availed), freight and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition
and installation of property, plant and equipment.
Provision for assets lying on vacant sites, slow moving assets, obsolescence and damaged assets is made based upon physical verification and periodical
technical/commercial evaluation undertaken by the Company.
The present value of the expected cost, for the decommissioning and restoration of an asset after its use, is included in the cost of the respective asset if it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in future and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method
over the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies
Act, 2013
or useful life determined based on technical evaluation and past trends, upto the estimated residual value of the depreciable assets, as
follows:
Assets

Estimated useful life

(in Years)
Leasehold improvement
Lease/license period
Plant and machinery *
3 to 20
Computers and IT Hardware
3
Office equipment
2 to 5
Furniture and fittings
3 to 6
Vehicles
3 to 5
Site restoration obligation (ARO) cost, included in plant and machinery, is amortised over the useful life of towers.

Indicative useful life as given in
Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013
(in Years)
Lease/license period
15
3 to 6
5
10
8

* In respect of Battery Bank and Diesel Generators, the Company has considered realisable value as 25% and 15% of the respective original cost, at the end of
useful life, based on past trends as well as from the recent sale of such assets. For all other assets it has considered 5% of original cost as residual value.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and effect of any change in estimate is
accounted for on prospective basis.
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An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as of April 1, 2015 (the transition date)
measured as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.
2.3 Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Additionally, Goodwill arising on acquisition of the erstwhile VIOM Infra Networks (Maharashtra) Limited is amortised over a period of 10 years as per
the Scheme of Amalgamation approved by the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi on December 04, 2014.
Further, Goodwill is allocated to group of cash generating units (CGU) for the purpose of impairment testing which is performed annually or whenever there is
an indication that the goodwill may be impaired. When a CGU within the group of CGUs to which goodwill is allocated, is disposed off by the Company, the
Goodwill associated with the disposed CGU is included in the carrying amount of the CGU while determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill associated
with the disposed CGU is measured by management using method that reflects the goodwill associated with the disposed CGU on the basis of available
information.
2.4 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and the effect of any change in estimate is accounted for on prospective basis. Software is amortised over its useful life of 3
years. Tenant relationships and Network intangibles are amortised over their useful lives ranging 10 to 20 years.
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of asset, are recognised in
Statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2015 (the transition date) measured as per
the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.
2.5 Impairment
(i) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
At the end of each reporting period, tangible and intangible assets which are subject to depreciation or amortization are reviewed for impairment,
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation is identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss by reducing the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. Reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
(ii) Impairment of goodwill
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Company's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and which represents the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit prorata based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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2.6 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at banks, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are held
for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdraft as they are considered as integral part of the Company's cash management.
2.7 Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their best economic interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of
the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
2.8 Financial assets
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
(i) Initial Recognition and Measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss,
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
(ii) Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
- Debt instruments at amortised cost
- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
- Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
- Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
(a) Debt instruments at amortised cost
The category applies to the
trade receivables, unbilled revenue, other bank balances, security deposits, etc. A
at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

is measured

(i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and
(ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.
This category is most relevant to the Company.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.
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(b) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
(i) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
(ii) The asset's contractual cash flows represent solely payment of principal and interest.
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from the equity to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding fair value through other
comprehensive income debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.
(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects initial recognition to present subsequent changes in
fair value in other comprehensive income from investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.
Debts instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria are measured at FVTPL. In addition , debt instruments that meet the
amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL, are measured at FVTPL.
A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets
or liabilities or recognising the gain and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income' line item. Dividends on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to
receive the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not
represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.
(iv) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
financial assets that are debt instruments and are initially measured at fair value with subsequent measurement at amortised cost e.g. Trade

The application of the simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk
exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, twelve month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.
If, in the subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising an impairment loss allowance based on a twelve month ECL. ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.
v) Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of that financial
asset.
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On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the
Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss if such
gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
2.9 Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets, mainly property, plant and equipment, are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset and its sale is highly probable. Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
2.10 Income taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
(i) Current tax :
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the Statement of Profit and
Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
(ii) Deferred tax :
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax
losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused
tax credits can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has became probable that future taxable profits will allow that deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future economic
benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet
when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Current and deferred tax for the period are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
Dividend distribution tax paid on the dividends is recognised consistently with the presentation of the transaction that creates the income tax
consequence. Dividend distribution tax is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss if the dividend itself is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
If the dividend is recognised in equity, the presentation of dividend distribution tax is recognised in equity.
The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities where it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.11 Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(i) Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
(ii) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
(iii) Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value and in case of borrowings net of directly attributable transaction cost and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
(a) Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss are designated as such at the initial date
of recognition and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in
own credit risks are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to the Statement of Profit and
Loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(b) Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost
The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest
method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the Finance costs.
The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
(iv) Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
2.12 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding
taxes or duties collected on behalf of the Government. Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
(i) Service income
Service income includes income from use of sites, energy and other recoveries from operators, net of discounts and Goods and service tax (GST).
Income from use of sites is recognized as and when services are rendered. In case of the long term contracts which include fixed escalations, the effect
of such increases is recognized on straight line basis over the term thereof.
Energy revenue is recognized over the period on a monthly basis upon satisfaction of performance obligation as per contracts with the customers. The
transaction price is the consideration received from customers based on prices agreed as per the contract with the customers. The determination of
standalone selling prices is not required as the transaction prices are stated in the contract based on the identified performance obligation.
Unbilled revenues at the end of the period represent accrued service income and other charges pending to be billed, which are estimated and recorded.
The Company collects GST on behalf of the government and therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Company, hence it is excluded from
revenue.
Exit Charges is recognised when uncertainty relating to the amounts receivable on exit is resolved and it is probable that a significant reversal relating to
the amounts receivable on exit will not occur.
(ii) Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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2.13 Leases / Licenses
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.
(i) Where the Company is a lessee
The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The
cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company may adopt the incremental
borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of leases as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value
guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the
lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and
thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised.
The calculation of the lease liability requires us to make certain assumptions for each lease, including lease term and discount rate implicit in each lease,
which could significantly impact the gross lease obligation, the duration and the present value of the lease liability. When calculating the lease term, we
consider the renewal, cancellation and termination rights available to us and the lessor. We determine the discount rate by calculating the incremental
borrowing rate on a collateralized basis at the commencement of a lease or upon a change in the lease term.
The Company recognises the amount of the re- measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any
remaining amount of the re-measurement in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Company has not elected the practical expedient for short term leases, which permits an adopter to not apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to
leases with a remaining maturity of one year or less , and applied the Ind AS 116 to all leases, including short term leases.
(ii) Where the Company is the service provider
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts
due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company as a net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.
Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset are classified as operating
leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are recognized as
revenue when uncertainties related to its recoverability is removed.
2.14 Employees benefits
(i) Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a
charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in other equity and is not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service cost is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period
to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
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Defined benefit costs are categorised as follow:
(a) service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements)
(b) Net interest expenses or income; and
(c) remeasurement
The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the line item 'Employee benefits
expenses'. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.
The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any
surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or
reductions in future contributions to the plans.
A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when
the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.
(ii) Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave accrued and allowed to be
carried forward in the period the related service is rendered.
Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the related service.
Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provide by employees up to the reporting date.
2.15 Stock based payments
Stock-based payment transactions of the stock based compensation to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value determined at the grant date of the share-based compensation is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the other equity except to
the extent amount is reimbursed to the ultimate holding Company.
2.16 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders, by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The number of shares used in computing
diluted earnings per share comprise of the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and weighted average number of
equity shares, if any, which would have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares unless the impact is anti-dilutive. Dilutive potential
equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date.
2.17 Segment Reporting
The Company identifies operating segments based on the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker (CODM). Operating segments are
defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by CODM, in deciding how to allocate
resources and assessing performance.
2.18 Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries are measured at cost as per Ind AS 27- Separate financial statements.
2.19 Business Combination
A common control business combination, involving entities or businesses in which all the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the
same party or parties both before and after the business combination and where the control is not transitory, is accounted for using the pooling of interests
method.
Other business combinations, involving entities or businesses are accounted for using acquisition method.
The Company has elected not to apply Ind AS 103
date of April 1, 2015.

retrospectively to past business combinations that occurred before the transition
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2.20 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
(i) An asset is classified as current when it is:
a) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
c) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or,
d) Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
(ii) A liability is classified as current when it is:
a) Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
c) Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period,
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
2.21 Foreign currency transactions
In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.
2.22 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of applicable Ind AS requires the
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to
contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the period presented.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and future periods are affected.
Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of impairment of tangible and intangible assets, useful lives and residual value of
property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets/liabilities, provisions and contingent liabilities.
(i) Useful lives and Impairment of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress and intangible assets (including goodwill)
(refer note 2.2 to 2.5)
The estimated useful lives, residual value, depreciation/amortisation method and impairment are reviewed periodically as mentioned in note 2.2 to 2.5,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation/amortisation
and impairment expense in future periods.
Also refer note 39.
(ii) Allowance of doubtful trade receivable [also refer note 2.8(iv) & note 8]
The expected credit loss is mainly based on the ageing of the receivable balances, historical experience, industry practices and the business environment
in which the entity operates. The Company also considers the credit risk of the respective customer along with fact pattern of collection of receivables
and recognises expected credit loss (ECL) allowance based on probability of default rate at each Balance Sheet date including ascertaining the financing
component on those receivable balances, right from its initial recognition.
(iii) Valuation of deferred tax assets/liabilities [also refer footnote to note 29]
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets/liabilities at the end of each reporting period. The policy for the same has been
explained under Note 2.10.
(iv) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is
the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
In the Statement of Profit and Loss, the expense relating to a provision is presented net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.
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(v) Contingent liabilities
The contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised
because:
(i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or
(ii) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
The Company evaluates the obligation through Probable, Possible or Remote model
In making the evaluation for PPR, the Company takes into
consideration the industry perspective, legal and technical view, availability of documentation/agreements, interpretation of the matter, independent
opinion from professionals (specific matters) etc. which can vary based on subsequent events. The Company provides the liability in the books for
probable cases, while possible cases are shown as contingent liability. The remote cases are not disclosed in the financial statements.
(vi) Leases
The Company recognizes a right-of-use lease asset and lease liability for operating and finance leases. The right-of-use asset is measured as the sum of
the lease liability, prepaid or accrued lease payments, any initial direct costs incurred and any other applicable amounts.
The calculation of the lease liability requires the Company to make certain assumptions for each lease, including lease term and discount rate implicit in
each lease, which could significantly impact the gross lease liability, the duration and the present value of the lease liability. When calculating the lease
term, the Company considers the renewal, cancellation and termination rights available to the Company and the lessor. The Company determines the
discount rate by calculating the incremental borrowing rate on a collateralized basis at the commencement of a lease or upon a change in the lease
term.
The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide
flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio for certain class of assets and align with the
business needs. Management exercises
significant judgement in determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised and accordingly records
the right of use assets and lease liability for those assets.
2.23 Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs
notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below.
Ind AS 16 Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any,
shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and
equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The Company has evaluated the
amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.
Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets The amendment specifies that the
of
a contract comprises the
that relate directly to the
Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be
direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its
financial statements.
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3

Property, plant and equipment
Land

Leasehold
Improvements

Plant and
machinery (see
footnote 1 & 2)

Computers &
other IT
hardware

Office
equipment

Furniture
and fitting

Vehicles

Total

Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Additions during the year
Disposal/ Adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2022

0.02
0.02

7.83
0.03
7.86

12,795.61
987.95
(702.18)
13,081.38

18.73
3.29
(2.09)
19.93

9.35
0.63
(0.32)
9.66

2.92
0.07
(0.04)
2.95

1.93
1.93

12,836.39
991.97
(704.63)
13,123.73

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Depreciation expense
Disposal/Adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2022

-

7.68
0.13
7.81

4,900.54
896.96
(350.49)
5,447.01

15.07
3.61
(1.98)
16.70

7.92
0.78
(0.32)
8.38

2.55
0.04
(0.01)
2.58

0.94
0.64
1.58

4,934.70
902.16
(352.80)
5,484.06

-

700.70
10.34
(301.72)
409.32

-

-

-

-

700.70
10.34
(301.72)
409.32

0.37
0.37

0.99
0.35

Provision for damaged/non-usable assets and Impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Additions during the year
Utilisation/reversal
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Net carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Balance as at March 31, 2022

0.02
0.02

Land

0.15
0.05

7,194.37
7,225.05

3.66
3.23

1.43
1.28

Leasehold
Improvements

Plant and
machinery (see
footnote 1 & 2)

Computers &
other IT
hardware

Office
equipment

Furniture
and fitting

Vehicles

7,200.99
7,230.35

Total

Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Additions during the year
Disposal/ Adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2021

0.02
0.02

9.10
0.07
(1.34)
7.83

12,410.03
1,032.50
(646.92)
12,795.61

16.97
3.75
(1.99)
18.73

7.93
1.23
0.19
9.35

2.82
0.10
2.92

2.05
0.05
(0.17)
1.93

12,448.92
1,037.60
(650.13)
12,836.39

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Depreciation expenses
Disposal/ Adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2021

-

7.80
0.42
(0.54)
7.68

4,470.71
868.47
(438.64)
4,900.54

13.73
3.21
(1.87)
15.07

6.87
0.94
0.11
7.92

2.39
0.06
0.10
2.55

0.47
0.64
(0.17)
0.94

4,501.97
873.74
(441.01)
4,934.70

-

625.70

-

-

-

-

625.70

-

176.43

-

-

-

-

176.43

-

(101.43)
700.70

-

-

-

-

(101.43)
700.70

3.24
3.66

1.06
1.43

0.43
0.37

1.58
0.99

Provision for damaged/non-usable assets and Impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Additions during the year
(see footnote 3)
Utilisation/reversal
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Net carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Balance as at March 31, 2021

0.02
0.02

1.30
0.15

7,313.62
7,194.37

7,321.25
7,200.99

Footnotes:
1. Plant and machinery comprises assets given on operating lease/licenses (refer note 38).
2. Includes site restoration obligation cost of Rs.137.05 (March 31, 2021 Rs. 133.21) and net carrying amount of Rs. 82.49 (March 31, 2021 Rs. 84.07) (refer note 2.2).
3. Also refer footnote below note 6 for impairment review.
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4 Capital work in progress
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
102.28
124.78
(12.16)
(15.42)
90.12
109.36

Capital work in progress (CWIP)
Less: Provision for non-usable and damaged items
Closing balance [refer footnotes (i) & (ii) below]
Footnote:
(i) CWIP ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2022
Amount in CWIP for a period of

CWIP

Less than 1 year

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended
Total

78.41
78.41

1-2 years
7.26
7.26

2-3 years
3.54
3.54

More than 3 years
0.91
0.91

Total
90.12
90.12

As at March 31, 2021
Amount in CWIP for a period of

CWIP

Less than 1 year

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended
Total

98.85
98.85

1-2 years
7.17
7.17

2-3 years
3.34
3.34

More than 3 years
-

Total
109.36
109.36

(ii) There is no capital work in progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.
5 Goodwill
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
2,186.12
2,215.87
(36.52)
(29.75)
2,149.60
2,186.12

Opening Balance
Less: Write off (refer note 2.3)
Closing Balance
Amortization
Opening balance
Add: Amortisation during the year (refer note 26)
Less: Write off (refer note 2.3)

368.40
59.21
(26.21)
401.40
1,748.20

Closing balance

311.77
64.83
(8.20)
368.40
1,817.72

Impairment review
Impairment testing of goodwill is performed after allocating goodwill to a group of CGUs that is benefiting from synergies of business combination. Based on
testing it was concluded that the recoverable amount is higher that the carrying amount.
The measurement of the cash generating unit's value in use has been determined based on financial plan that have been used by management for internal
purposes. The planning horizon reflects the assumptions for short to-mid-term market conditions. (refer footnote below note 6)
6 Other Intangible Assets (Acquired):
Tenant
Relationships

Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Additions during the year
Disposal/ adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Amortization
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Amortisation expense (refer note 26)
Disposal/ adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Provision for Impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Additions during the year
Utilisation/reversal
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Net carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Balance as at March 31, 2022

Network
Intangibles

Softwares

Total

4,247.89
4,247.89

1,132.17
(78.03)
1,054.14

14.95
1.00
15.95

5,395.01
1.00
(78.03)
5,317.98

624.01
212.20
836.21

302.08
94.97
(18.90)
378.15

10.65
2.63
0.13
13.41

936.74
309.80
(18.77)
1,227.77

-

118.85
(48.99)
69.86

-

711.24
606.13

4.30
2.54

3,623.88
3,411.68

118.85
(48.99)
69.86

4,339.42
4,020.35
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Tenant
Relationships

Network
Intangibles

Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Additions during the year
Disposal/ adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2021

4,247.89
4,247.89

1,162.24
(30.07)
1,132.17

13.06
2.44
(0.55)
14.95

5,423.19
2.44
(30.62)
5,395.01

Amortization
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Amortisation expense
Disposal/ adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2021

411.83
212.18
624.01

210.71
97.34
(5.97)
302.08

8.44
2.76
(0.55)
10.65

630.98
312.28
(6.52)
936.74

-

105.10
26.67
(12.92)
118.85

-

105.10
26.67
(12.92)
118.85

846.43
711.24

4.62
4.30

Provision for Impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Additions during the year
Utilisation/reversal
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Net carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Balance as at March 31, 2021

3,836.06
3,623.88

Softwares

Total

4,687.11
4,339.42

Impairment review (footnote to note 3, 5 and 6)
The measurement of the cash generating unit's value in use has been determined based on financial plan that have been used by management for internal
purposes. The planning horizon reflects the assumptions for short to-mid-term market conditions.
Key assumptions used in 'value in use' calculation are:
-Average (annual) lease up rate (LUR) of 0.06 for additional tenancy in future (March 31, 2021: 0.05)
-Discount rate (pre tax) of 10.09% (March 31, 2021: 10.53%)
-Terminal value with growth rate of 3% (March 31, 2021: 3%)
-Capital expenditures (augmentation/maintenance) based on financial plan of the Company
-Revenue and expenses based on actual or average of actual
Operating margins: Operating margins have been estimated based on past experience after considering incremental revenue arising out of lease up/ additional
tenancy, the existing and new customers, though these benefits are partially offset by decline in tariff in a hyper competitive scenario. Margins will be
positively impacted from the efficiencies and initiatives driven by the Company; at the same time, factors like the higher churn, increased or decrease in cost of
operations may impact the margins negatively.
Discount rate: Discount rate reflects the current market assessment of the risk specific to a CGU or group of CGUs. The discount rate is estimated based on the
weighted average cost of capital for respective CGU or group of CGUs.
Capital expenditures: The cash flow forecasts of capital expenditure are based on past experience coupled with additional capital expenditure required as
considered in long term financial plan.
Also refer note 39.
7 Investments
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current investments
Unquoted - Investments carried at cost
Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries
ATC CSR Foundation India 10,000 (March 31, 2021 : 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each,
fully paid up (refer footnote A below)
Activex Telebroadband Services Private Limited 12,60,000 (March 31, 2021 : 2,10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10
(absolute amount) each, fully paid up (refer footnote B below)
Total non-current investments

0.01

0.01

1.26

0.21

1.27

0.22

Footnotes:
(A) On April 24, 2019, the Company incorporated ATC CSR Foundation India (ATC CSR), a wholly owned subsidiary company (Licensed under Section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2013) to carry out CSR activities in line with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended time to time. As per Memorandum of
Association of ATC CSR, upon winding up or dissolution of ATC CSR, any surplus remains after the satisfaction of all the debts and liabilities, any property
whatsoever, the same shall not be distributed amongst the members of ATC CSR but shall be given or transferred to such other company having objects similar
to the objects of ATC CSR or may be sold and proceeds thereof credited to the Rehabilitation and Insolvency Fund under section 269 of the Companies Act,
2013, as amended from time to time. Accordingly, the Financial Statements of ATC CSR are not considered for consolidation since the definition of control is
not met as the Company's objective is not to obtain economic benefits from the activities of ATC CSR.
(B) On May 12, 2020, the Company acquired 100% shares of Activex Telebroadband Services Private Limited, engaged in the business of providing active and
passive elements of telecom infrastructure services of Building Solutions, Public Wifi/Hotspot etc. in India, for cash consideration of Rs. 0.01. During the year,
the Company has been allotted 10,05,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each for total cash consideration of Rs 1.05 [March 31, 2021: Rs 0.21 (2,10,000 equity shares
of Rs 10 each (absolute amount)].
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8 Trade receivables
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current
Secured and considered good
Unsecured and considered good
Significant increase in credit risk
Credit impaired
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (expected credit loss allowance)
Total current trade receivables

1,854.34
933.11
(933.11)
1,854.34

1,269.96
560.48
(560.48)
1,269.96

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
560.48
431.28
372.63
129.20
933.11
560.48

Balance at beginning of the year
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables (net of utilisation)
Balance at end of the year

Impairment loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
through the expected life of that financial instrument. [also refer note 2.22 (ii)]
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 10 to 45 days from the date of receipt of invoice by customer.
Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following periods from the invoice date
Less than 6 6 months -1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
months
1,848.50
5.84
-

Particulars

Total
1,854.34

-

-

-

-

-

-

430.00

225.80

50.56

21.10

24.91

752.37

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

36.21

68.23

46.66

29.64

180.74

267.85

118.79

67.76

54.55

2,787.45

significant increase in credit risk

good
significant increase in credit risk

Gross Trade receivables

2,278.50

As at March 31, 2021
Outstanding for following periods from the invoice date
Less than 6 6 months -1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
months
1,269.96
-

Particulars

Total
1,269.96

-

-

-

-

-

-

94.00

278.03

135.92

31.65

20.88

560.48

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

278.03

135.92

31.65

20.88

significant increase in credit risk

good
significant increase in credit risk

Gross Trade receivables
9

1,363.96

1,830.44

Other financial assets
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current financial assets
Security deposits considered good (unsecured)
Margin money bank deposits
Interest accrued on margin money deposits
Total non-current financial assets

404.63
0.36
0.04
405.03

400.74
6.76
0.09
407.59

A

26.43
22.53
48.96

19.57
20.71
40.28

B

9.30
(9.30)
-

9.02
(9.02)
-

Other current financial assets
Security deposits (unsecured)
Considered good
Amount due from related parties (refer note 36)
Security deposits (unsecured)
Considered doubtful
Less: Allowance for doubtful deposits
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Accrued revenue *
-infrastructure provisioning fees [net of ECL Rs. Nil (March 31, 2021: Rs. 16.01)]
-energy and other reimbursements (including expected recovery of
property tax) [refer note 35(IV) and net of ECL Rs. Nil (March 31, 2021: Rs. 9.70)]
C
Margin money bank deposits
Interest accrued on bank deposits (including margin money)
Other receivable
D
A+B+C+D

Total other current financial assets

354.80

147.36

845.53
1,200.33
12.56
9.27
1.24
23.07
1,272.36

833.72
981.08
14.73
7.59
1.51
23.83
1,045.19

* Classified as financial asset as right to consideration is unconditional upon passage of time.

10 Other assets
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Capital advances
Taxes and duties paid under protest
Revenue equalization reserve (refer note 38)
A

1.95
58.28
300.75
360.98

3.09
50.12
216.99
270.20

B
A+B

11.61
(11.61)
360.98

23.02
(23.02)
270.20

14.19
25.92
20.48
60.59

14.58
60.94
20.09
95.61

Unsecured, considered doubtful
Advances to suppliers and others
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances
Total other non-current assets
Current
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Balances with government authorities
Prepaid expenses
Advances to suppliers and others
Total other current assets
11 Cash and cash equivalents

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance with banks
-In current accounts
- In fixed deposits
Balance in digital payment wallet
Total Cash and cash equivalents

239.13
3,238.90
6.17
3,484.20

254.42
2,998.55
3,252.97

12 Deferred Tax
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) Deferred Tax Liabilities on
Accounting and tax base difference on value of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets
b) Deferred Tax Assets on
Temporary difference on account of disallowances under the Income-tax Act, 1961
Unused tax credit (MAT credit entitlement)
Total Deferred tax assets

A

940.37

835.50

B

729.02
89.74
818.76

592.35
251.04
843.39

B-A

(121.61)

-

Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets - Net

7.89

Detail of deferred tax assets are as below:
Recognised in
Statement of
March 31, 2021 Profit and Loss
[refer footnote
to note 29]
Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Temporary difference on account of disallowances
under the Income-tax Act, 1961
Unused tax credit (MAT credit entitlement)
Deferred Tax Liabilities - Net

(835.50)
592.35

(104.87)
137.13

(0.46)

March 31, 2022

(940.37)
729.02

251.04

(161.30)

-

89.74

7.89

(129.04)

(0.46)

(121.61)

Recognised in
Statement of
March 31, 2020 Profit and Loss
[refer footnote
to note 29]
Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/assets on
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Temporary difference on account
of disallowances under the Income-tax Act, 1961
Unused tax credit (MAT credit entitlement)
Deferred Tax Assets - Net

Recognised in
Other
Comprehensive
income

Recognised in
Other
Comprehensive
income

March 31, 2021

(752.99)
511.62

(82.51)
80.63

0.10

(835.50)
592.35

313.24
71.87

(62.20)
(64.08)

0.10

251.04
7.89
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13 Share Capital
March 31, 2022
Numbers
Amount
Authorized equity share capital:
Equity share of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each

Authorized Preference share capital:
Cumulative redeemable optionally
partially convertible preference
shares (CROPCPS) of Rs. 10 (absolute
amount) each
Cumulative non-convertible
redeemable preference shares
(CNCRPS) of Rs. 10 (absolute amount)
each
Redeemable preference shares of Rs.
10 (absolute amount) each

A

3,952,150,000
3,952,150,000

3,952.15
3,952.15

3,952,150,000
3,952,150,000

3,952.15
3,952.15

B

250,000,000

250.00

250,000,000

250.00

C

500,000,000

500.00

500,000,000

500.00

D

4,550,000

4.55

4,550,000

4.55

E=B+C+D
A+E
Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity capital:
Equity Share of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each fully paid up

March 31, 2021
Numbers
Amount

754,550,000

754.55

754,550,000

754.55

4,706,700,000

4,706.70

4,706,700,000

4,706.70

883,519,398

883.52

883,519,398

883.52

883,519,398

883.52

883,519,398

883.52

a. Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
March 31, 2022
Nos
Amount
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year
883,519,398
883.52
At the end of the year
883,519,398
883.52

March 31, 2021
Nos
Amount
883,519,398
883,519,398

883.52
883.52

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity share having a par value of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share at any general meeting of the shareholders. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
c. Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/ associates are as
below:
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Equity shares:
-88,35,19,398 (March 31, 2021 : 80,97,71,398) equity shares of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each held
by ATC Asia Pacific Pte Ltd, the holding company including its nominee

883.52
883.52
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d. Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years
immediately preceding the reporting date:
i) On April 13, 2016, the Company converted 8,33,33,334 CROPCPS into 46,21,927 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each at an agreed
conversion price of Rs.180.30 (absolute amount) per share (including premium of Rs. 170.30 (absolute amount) per share) as per terms of the
Investment Agreement (IA) dated March 23, 2010 (as amended) read with Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) dated October 21, 2015.
ii) On April 19, 2018, the Company issued and allotted 221,183,459 equity shares of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each amounting to Rs. 221.18 to its
holding Company ATC Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd in pursuance to the Scheme of Amalgamation (refer footnote to note 33).
iii) No shares bought back by the Company during the last five years.
e. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
March 31, 2022
Nos
Equity shares of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each fully paid
ATC Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.
Macquarie SBI Infrastructure Investments Pte. Limited

883,519,398
-

March 31, 2021
Nos
%

%
100.00%
-

809,771,398
61,444,554

91.66%
6.95%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholder/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares except 11 equity shares held by Nominee
(registered owner) for beneficial ownership of ATC Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.
f. Shares held by Promoters
Promoter name
ATC Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

Promoter name
i) ATC Asia Pacific Pte Ltd
ii) Macquarie SBI Infrastructure Investments Pte. Ltd
iii) SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Trust

As at March 31, 2022
% of total
% Change
Number of shares
shares
during the year
883,519,398
100%
8.34%
As at March 31, 2021
% of total
% Change
Number of shares
shares
during the year
809,771,398
91.66%
13.00%
61,444,554
6.95%
0.00%
12,303,446
1.39%
0.00%

g. For terms of securities convertible into equity shares - refer note 14
14 Compulsory Convertible Debentures
March 31, 2022
10,53,96,365 (March 31, 2021: 10,53,96,365) Compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs)
of Rs. 100 (absolute amount) each

1,053.96

March 31, 2021
1,053.96

Note:
Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation of erstwhile ATC India Tower Corporation Private Limited and its 100% subsidiary McCoy Developers
Private Limited, ATC Tower Company of India Private Limited,Transcend Infrastructure Private Limited and its 100% subsidiary ATC Telecom Tower
Corporation Private Limited with the Company w.e.f. April 21, 2016 (Appointed date). Compulsory Convertible Debenture (CCDs) were issued to
Shareholder (ATC Asia Pacific Pte Ltd.) on April 19, 2018, which have a par value of Rs. 100 (absolute amount) and are entitled to receive fully paid
equity share at a price of Rs. 216 (absolute amount) per share (i.e. the fair market value of the equity shares of the Company on the appointed date
of the Scheme of Amalgamation) upon conversion. As per the Scheme the CCDs shall be convertible into equity shares of the Company as per the
terms as may be decided by the Board of the Company. The CCDs will not carry any voting rights. However, the equity shares to be received by the
CCDs holders pursuant to conversion of CCDs shall rank pari pasu with then existing Equity shares of the Company.
The CCDs shall not earn any interest, provided that if the Company declares dividend on Equity shares for a Financial Year, then interest shall
become due and payable on CCDs simultaneously with or after the dividend on the Equity shares being paid. Such interest amount shall (subject to
the maximum interest rate that may be lawfully paid to a foreign holder of CCDs) be equal to the amount that the holder of the CCDs would have
been entitled to receive as dividend if such CCDs had been converted into equity shares immediately prior to the record date for purposes of such
declaration of dividend.
CCDS are mandatorily convertible after 10 years from the date of issuance (being Mandatory conversion date i.e. April 18, 2028) unless voluntarily
converted fully/partly earlier, however, conversion date can be extended for such further term as may be mutually agreed upon between
Debenture holders and the Company. Each outstanding CCD shall automatically and mandatorily be converted by the Company in to equity shares
on the mandatory conversion date.
ATC Asia Pacific Pte Ltd. (Holding Company) shall have the right , at any time after the expiry of 90 days from April 01,2019 and prior to mandatory
conversion date, to issue "notice of conversion" to the Company requesting the conversion of all or some of the CCDs in accordance with and
subject to the terms & conditions mentioned under Schedule-V of the Implementation Agreement dated April 12, 2016. The Holding Company has
not exercised the right for conversion till date.
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15 Long term borrowings - at amortised cost
March 31, 2022
Debentures (unsecured)
Issued to related party : 42,000 (March 31, 2021 : 42,000) Unsecured, redeemable,
listed, rated, fully paid non-convertible debentures
of Rs. 10,00,000 (absolute amount) each (refer footnote A)
Unsecured loans
Loans from related parties -external commercial borrowings (ECB)
(refer footnote B)
Gross Borrowings
Current maturity of long term debt : amount disclosed under the head "other financial
liabilities"
Unsecured loans
from related parties -external commercial borrowings (ECB) (refer footnote B)
Non-current borrowings

March 31, 2021

(I)

4,200.00

4,200.00

(II)

4,154.50

4,331.70

(III)= (I+II)

8,354.50

8,531.70

IV
III-IV

177.20
8,177.30

177.20
8,354.50

A. Particulars of terms of repayment for Debentures issued to related party (unsecured)
i) Debentures issued on February 5, 2018 and are redeemable at par at the end of 8 years from the date of allotment, viz. February 5, 2026.
ii) The Company has an option to redeem these debentures earlier. However no redemption will take place before the end of 3 years and
9 months from the date of allotment.
iii) Terms of repayment are set out as below:
Terms and conditions
Date of maturity
No of
Outstanding
instalments
Balance
remaining
4,200.00
Repayable at the end of tenure of Debentures
February- 2026
1
4,200.00
iv) Interest on Debentures is payable quarterly at fixed rate of 8.50% p.a.
B. Terms of loans from the related party - External commercial borrowings (ECB in INR) (unsecured)
Terms and conditions
Moratorium
Date of maturity
period from the
date of
disbursement
(in months)
a. Repayable in eight equal half yearly instalments of Rs 52.50
September-2023
36
and last instalment of Rs 55.00
b. Repayable in eight equal half yearly instalments of Rs 36.10
March-2024
36
and last instalment of Rs 36.20
c. Repayable at the end of tenure
March-2026
N.A.
d. Repayable at the end of tenure
June-2026
N.A.

No of
instalments
remaining

Outstanding
Balance

3

160.00

4

144.50

1
1

958.00
2,892.00
4,154.50

Interest on above ECB is payable half yearly at fixed rate of 8.5% p.a.
C. During the year the Company has not defaulted in repayment of principal and interest of long term borrowings.
D. Amount undrawn from cash credit and other credit facilities as on the balance sheet date Rs. 769.86 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 661.47)
16 Financial liabilities
Non-current
Security deposits from customers
Total non-current financial liabilities
Current
Trade payables (refer footnote A below)
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer footnote B below)
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
A
Other financial liabilities
Security deposits from customers
Payables towards purchase of property,plant and equipment and Intangible assets
(refer footnote B)
Total current financial liabilities

B
A+B

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

251.19
251.19

292.01
292.01

26.34
798.69
825.03

14.90
831.48
846.38

94.16
93.25

189.24
216.05

187.41
1,012.44

405.29
1,251.67
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Footnote:
A. Trade payables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following periods

Particulars
Not due*
(i) MSME
(ii) Others
(iv)Disputed dues - Others
Total

Less than 1
year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

82.68
435.08
1.37
9.81

3.11
176.20
4.64
1.32

0.05
38.45
3.51
1.20

0.02
21.46
4.25
2.02

0.01
22.15
10.75
6.93

85.87
693.34
24.52
21.28

528.94

185.27

43.21

27.75

39.84

825.01

As at March 31, 2021
Outstanding for following periods
Not due*
(i) MSME
(ii) Others

1.70
168.77
3.47
0.67

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

0.21
50.54
5.05
1.62

0.11
16.79
1.72
0.31

0.01
20.09
9.06
6.44

58.61
745.42
23.13
19.22

Total
559.82
174.61
57.42
* Includes provisions for which the Company has contractual and/or constructive liability.

18.93

35.60

846.38

(iv)Disputed dues - Others

56.58
489.23
3.83
10.18

Less than 1
year

B. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Amounts due to micro, and small enterprises under MSMED based on the
information available with the Company and the confirmation received
from the creditors till the year end:
a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to

Principal amount
due
Interest due
thereon

51.94
0.05

0.47
-

12.08
-

20.36
-

c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the
principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act,2006 not paid).

0.15

0.28

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year;

1.90

1.68

14.15

12.47

any supplier as at the end of each accounting year:
b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer under the MSMED Act,2006
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year :

Principal amount
Adjusted during
the year

e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act,2006.

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by
the Management.

Page 24 of 45

ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless stated otherwise)

17 Other liabilities
March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

5.27
5.27

4.39
4.39

1.64
5.13
136.45
143.22

1.37
6.37
136.53
144.27

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

A

19.01
7.77
26.78

20.20
8.91
29.11

B
A+B

485.44
512.22

459.53
488.64

3.56
2.51
6.07

2.01
2.09
4.10

777.57
777.57
783.64

684.11
684.11
688.21

Non-current
Unearned revenue
Total other non-current liabilities
Current
Unearned revenue
Advance from customers
Statutory dues payable
Total other current liabilities
18 Provisions
Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences
Others
Provision for site restoration (see foot note 'a' below)
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences
A
Others
Provision for contingencies (see foot note 'b' below)
B
A+B

a) Provision for site restoration
The Company uses various premises on lease/license to install the passive telecom infrastructure facilities. A provision is recognized for the costs to
be incurred for the dismantling of towers installed on sites and restoration of sites at the end of its useful life. The following table sets forth the
movement in provisions:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Added during the year
Add: Finance costs during the year (refer note 27)
Less: Utilised/reversal during the year
Balance at the end of the year

March 31, 2022
459.53
8.97
38.68
(21.74)
485.44

March 31, 2021
428.24
15.72
35.14
(19.57)
459.53

b) Provision for contingencies
Provision for contingencies represents probable outflow of resources for matters under litigation. The following table sets forth the
movement in provisions:
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year
684.11
591.36
Add: Additions during the year (gross of estimated recovery) [refer note 35(IV)]
139.94
152.73
Less: Utilised/adjusted during the year
(46.48)
(59.98)
Balance at the end of the year
777.57
684.11
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19 Revenue from operations
Infrastructure provisioning fee (IP Fees) [also refer note 38 (i) and 40]
Energy and other recoveries
Total

March 31, 2022
5,425.52
3,640.63
9,066.15

March 31, 2021
5,199.04
3,271.56
8,470.60

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

20 Other income
a) Interest income
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortized cost:
- Interest on bank deposits
Income tax refunds
Others
A

84.65
20.00
7.38
112.03

68.02
37.94
19.11
125.07

B
A+B

50.48
23.48
87.25
6.26
167.47
279.50

123.86
17.24
0.70
1.85
143.65
268.72

b) Other gains and losses
Provisions/Liabilities no longer required written back
Gain on retirement of right-of-use assets (net)
Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment
Net gain on foreign currency transaction and translation
Miscellaneous Income
Total
21 Energy charges
Networks
Others
Total

March 31, 2022
3,419.70
1.84
3,421.54

March 31, 2021
3,145.68
1.66
3,147.34

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

22 Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery
Others
Total

518.56
23.42
541.98

531.67
21.40
553.07

23 Employee benefits expenses
Salaries, allowances and bonus
Stock based compensation (refer note 32)
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 31)
Gratuity (refer note 31)
Staff welfare expenses
Less : Project expenditure capitalised
Total

March 31, 2022
225.07
60.49
8.23
4.17
4.34
302.30
(10.35)
291.95

March 31, 2021
227.90
55.37
8.27
4.22
6.18
301.94
(19.43)
282.51
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24 Provision/write off/impairment for property,plant and equipment,intangible assets,capital work in progress and right-of-use assets
March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

A

267.82
14.19
(254.58)
27.43

87.19
15.87
(101.43)
1.63

C

10.31
59.13
(40.47)
28.97

21.55
24.10
(12.92)
32.73

D

(40.06)
(8.52)
7.64
(40.94)

176.43
26.67
3.04
206.14

A+B+C+D

15.46

240.50

i) Loss on sale/write off of
a) Property, plant and equipment*
Capital work in progress#
Less: Provision utilized/adjusted during the year
ii) Write off of:
Goodwill (refer note 2.3)
Network Intangibles
Less: Provision utilized/adjusted during the year
iii) Impairment expenses/(reversal) (net)
Property, plant and equipment
Network Intangibles
Right-of-use assets

Total
*Includes cost of site dismantling Rs 16.50 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 11.70)
# Includes loss on write off of abandoned sites Rs. 14.19 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 3.25)
25 Write off of assets and impairment of financial assets
Bad debts/advances written off

A

Provision for bad and doubtful debts/other financial assets and advances
Provision created during the year
Less: Provision utilised during the year
Total

B
A+B

March 31, 2022
23.15

March 31, 2021
17.58

347.40
(11.59)
335.81
358.96

128.57
(9.17)
119.40
136.98

March 31, 2022
902.16
975.48
59.21
309.80
2,246.65

March 31, 2021
873.74
976.63
64.83
312.28
2,227.48

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

26 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Depreciation on ROU assets (refer note 38)
Amortisation of Goodwill (refer note 5)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 6)
Total
27 Finance costs
Interest expense for financial liabilities at amortised cost
-On ECB loans from related parties
-On non convertible debentures (NCD) from related party
Unwinding of discount on ARO provisions
Interest on lease liability (refer note 38)
Total

364.43
357.00
38.68
476.48
1,236.59
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28 Other expenses
March 31, 2022
66.76
18.69
66.86
23.40
1.81
15.77
0.59
22.82
34.30
2.26
40.30
4.78
298.34
(8.71)
289.63

Professional and legal fees*
Travel and conveyance
Rates and taxes
Information technology expenses
Communication expenses
Insurance expenses
Printing and stationery
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenses (refer note 41)
Provision for contingencies (net of expected recovery) [refer note 35(IV)]
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translation
Lease/license expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Less : Project expenditure capitalised
Total
* Professional & legal fees include payment to statutory auditors :As auditors (for audit and limited reviews)
Taxation matters (for tax audit)
Other services including Group reporting and certification
Reimbursement of expenses

March 31, 2021
71.18
13.36
61.71
22.65
2.98
14.78
0.61
24.08
24.54
23.81
7.46
267.16
(8.28)
258.88

1.90
0.20
1.60
0.01
3.71

1.90
0.20
1.52
0.01
3.63

29 Tax expense
March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
942.89
329.48

633.08
221.22

A

3.99
0.64
334.11

5.52
(1.62)
(1.35)
223.77

B

0.39
(31.49)
(31.10)

(22.74)
(16.81)
(39.55)

A+B

303.01

184.22

Profit before tax
Income tax expense calculated @ 34.944% (March 31, 2021: 34.944%)
Adjustment for items not deductible in computing taxable income
-CSR expenses
-Interest on MSMED
-Others

Tax adjustments pertaining to earlier years
Deferred Tax impact on change in tax rates for the year (refer footnote below)

Total tax expense recognised during the year

Total

Footnote:
The Company, based on its current assessment, is likely to exercise the option of a lower corporate tax rate provided as per section 115BAA of
the Income-tax Act, 1961 from financial year 2023-24 (March 21, 2021 : 2024-25)onwards. Accordingly, deferred tax liabilities (net) have been
measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the period when the liabilities are expected to be utilised.
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30 Financial Instruments
a) Capital management
The Company's objective while managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern (so that it enables to provide
returns and create value for its shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders), support business stability and growth, ensure adherence
to the covenants and restrictions imposed by lenders and/or relevant laws and regulations, maintain an optimal and efficient capital
structure so as to reduce the cost of capital. The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (long term and short term borrowings
offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the Company.
b) Gearing ratio
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio computed at the end of the year was as follows:
Long term borrowings (including current maturities)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt (A)
Total Equity (B)
Net debt to equity ratio (A)/(B)

March 31, 2022
8,354.50
(3,484.20)
4,870.30

March 31, 2021
8,531.70
(3,252.97)
5,278.73

9,262.14

8,621.41

0.53

0.61

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

431.06
12.92
354.80
845.53
22.53
9.31
1.24
1,854.34
3,484.20
7,015.93

420.31
21.49
147.36
833.72
20.71
7.68
1.51
1,269.96
3,252.97
5,975.71

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

8,354.50
251.19
5,776.37
825.03
94.16
93.25

8,531.70
292.01
5,684.19
846.38
189.24
216.05

15,394.50

15,759.57

Categories of financial instruments
c) Financial assets
Measured at Amortised cost
Security deposits
Margin money deposits
Accrued revenue - infrastructure provisioning fees
Accrued reimbursement of energy charges
Amount due from related party
Interest accrued on deposits (including margin money)
Other receivable
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalent
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost
Carrying cost approximate the fair value
d) Financial liabilities
Measured at Amortised cost
Long term borrowings (including current maturities) (refer note 15)
Security deposits from customers (non-current)
Lease liabilities (refer note 38)
Trade payables
Security deposits from customers (current)
Payables towards purchase of property, plant and equipment and Intangible
assets (current)
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Carrying cost approximate the fair value
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e) Fair value (FVTPL)
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, other current assets and
other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The fair values of the FVTPL financial assets are derived from published NAVs available in active markets.
f) Financial risk management objectives
The
principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and security deposit received. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
operations. The
principal financial assets include
investments, margin money deposits, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and security deposit paid that derive directly
from its operations.
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
management oversees the management of these risks.
The management reviews financial risks and design for appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The management
ensures that the
financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are
g) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and FVTPL investments.
The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.
The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations,
provisions and the non-financial assets.
h) Foreign currency risk
Foreign exchange risk arises on all recognized monetary assets and liabilities and any highly probable forecasted transactions, which are
denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the Company. Foreign currency exposure mainly arises from trade payables.
The carrying amounts of the unhedged foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting year are as
follows.
Currency
USD (in crores)

Trade payables

March 31, 2022
0.81

March 31, 2021
0.75

Foreign currency sensitivity
Currency

Change in
currency
exchange rate

Effect on
profit/(loss) before
tax

Effect on
equity (OCI)

For the year ended March 31, 2022

INR (in crores)

+5%
-5%

(3.07)
3.07

-

For the year ended March 31, 2021

INR (in crores)

+5%
-5%

(2.74)
2.74

-

i) Interest rate risk
The Company has borrowings at fixed rate of interest and hence there is no interest rate risk applicable to the Company.
j) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure to the credit
risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivable Rs. 1,854.34 (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 1,269.96) and unbilled revenue amounting of
Rs. 1,200.33 (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 981.08).
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i) Trade receivables
The customers of the Company mainly includes telecom operators which constitute 99% of the total revenue. These telecom operators are
well established companies in India. The expected credit loss is mainly based on the ageing of the receivable balances, historical experience,
industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates. The Company also considers the credit risk of the respective
customer along with fact pattern of collection of receivables and recognises expected credit loss (ECL) allowance based on probability of
default rate at each Balance Sheet date including ascertaining the financing component on those receivable balances, right from its initial
recognition. The Company closely monitors market conditions and dues from operators if not received within the credit period agreed as per
master service agreement. Any foreseeable risk of collection is immediately provided for (refer note 8, 25 and 39).
ii) Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk with banks is managed by the
treasury department in accordance with the
policy. Investments of surplus
funds are made only with approved parties and within credit limits assigned to each party. The limits are set to minimize the concentration
k) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligation. The objective of the liquidity risk management is to
maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities, continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and by matching the maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to
refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding to refinance existing
debt maturing within 12 months.
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the
undiscounted payments.
Particulars
Borrowings *
Trade payables
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Total

<1 year
883.57
825.03
1,223.14
187.41
3,119.15

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the
undiscounted payments.
Particulars
Borrowings *
Trade payables
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Total

<1 year
898.63
846.38
1,254.85
405.29
3,405.15

financial liabilities as on March 31, 2022 based on contractual

1 to 5 years
10,268.70
3,669.66
184.44
14,122.80

> 5 years
3,384.40
66.75
3,451.15

Total
11,152.27
825.03
8,277.20
438.60
20,693.10

Carrying value
8,354.50
825.03
5,776.37
438.60
15,394.50

financial liabilities as on March 31, 2021 based on contractual
1 to 5 years
8,198.82
3,907.82
198.24
12,304.88

> 5 years
2,953.46
3,384.45
93.77
6,431.68

Total
12,050.91
846.38
8,547.12
697.30
22,141.71

Carrying value
8,531.70
846.38
5,684.19
697.30
15,759.57

* Includes Non-current borrowings, Current maturities of non-current borrowings and committed interest payments.
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31 Employee benefit plans
Defined contribution plan

In accordance with the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, employees are entitled to receive benefits
under the Provident Fund. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at a predetermined rate of an
basic salary. All employees have an option to make additional voluntary contributions. These contributions are made to the
fund administered and managed by the Government of India (GOI). The Company has no further obligations under the fund managed by
the GOI beyond its monthly contributions which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period they are incurred.
The total expense recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss of Rs. 8.23 (for the year ended March 31, 2021: Rs. 8.27) represents
contributions paid/payable to these plans by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plans. As at year end, contributions of Rs.
1.53 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 1.71) due in respect of 2021-2022 (2020-2021) reporting period had not been paid over to the plans. The
amounts were paid subsequent to the end of the respective reporting periods.
Defined benefit plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on
departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The following
tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the amounts recognised in
the balance sheet for the plan.
These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.
a) Investment risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.
b) Interest risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.
c) Longevity risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants

d) Salary risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an
No other post-retirement benefits are provided to the employees.
i. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of benefit obligations:
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year
Service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Benefit obligation at the end of the year

March 31, 2022
24.37
2.76
1.55
(2.50)
(1.31)
24.87

March 31, 2021
21.24
2.95
1.40
(1.51)
0.29
24.37

Changes in the fair value of the Plan Assets
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year
Investment income
Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net interest expense
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year

March 31, 2022
2.16
0.14
2.30

March 31, 2021
2.03
0.13
2.16

March 31, 2022
2.76
(0.14)
1.55
4.17

March 31, 2021
2.95
(0.13)
1.40
4.22

ii. Amount charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Components of net benefit cost
Service cost
Return on plan assets
Interest cost
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iii. Amount charged to the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
- change in financial assumptions
- experience variance (i.e. actual experiences assumptions)
- change in demographic assumptions
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized during the year
iv. The assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity plan for the year are as below:
Salary Rise
Discount Rate
Attrition Rate:
Upto 30 years
31 to 44 years
Above 44 years

0.39
(1.66)
(0.04)
(1.31)

0.48
(0.19)
0.29

6.50%
6.65%

6.00%
6.35%

17.47%
13.99%
11.80%

13.00%
10.00%
6.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors,such as supply and demand in the employment market.
Sensitivity Analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and
mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the
end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

March 31, 2022
24.87

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

(i) Discount Rate (+ / - 1%)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
(ii) Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
(iii) Attrition Rate (- / + 50%)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
(iv) Mortality Rate (- / + 10%)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

March 31, 2022
Decrease
Increase
26.38
23.50
6.1%
-5.5%
23.49
26.37
-5.6%
6.0%
24.95
24.76
0.3%
-0.4%
24.87
24.87
0.0%
0.0%

March 31, 2021
24.37

March 31, 2021
Decrease
Increase
26.45
22.54
8.5%
-7.5%
22.52
26.44
-7.6%
8.5%
24.34
24.36
-0.1%
-0.1%
24.37
24.37
0.0%
0.0%

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely
that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
There is no change in the method of valuation as compared to previous year.
Each year management on periodic basis performs asset liability comparison to determine the adequacy of liquid funds which may be
required to settle the obligation as per the maturity profile of the plan.
Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows)

6 years

Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):
1 year
2 to 5 years
6 to 10 years
More than 10 years

March 31, 2022
3.56
12.83
11.30
11.34
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32 Stock based compensation
I) The Company does not provide any equity-based compensation to its employees. However, the parent company, American Tower Corporation
maintains equity incentive plans that provide for the grant of stock-based awards to its directors, officers and employees. The 2007
Equity Incentive Plan
provides for the grant of non-qualified and incentive stock options, as well as restricted stock units, restricted
stock and other stock-based awards. Exercise prices in the case of non-qualified and incentive stock options are not less than the fair value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant.
A. Details of plan of employee stock option and restricted stock units are given below:
A stock option gives an employee, the right to purchase shares of American Tower Corporation common stock at a fixed price for a specific period
of time. The grant price (or strike/exercise price) is fixed and is equal to the closing price of American Tower Corporation common stock on the date
of grant. Stock options expire ten years from the date of grant and vest in annual instalments of 25% over a period of four years.
A restricted stock unit provides an employee with a share of American Tower Corporation common stock upon vesting. Restricted stock units vest
in annual instalments of 25% over a period of four years. Dividends will accrue with each restricted stock unit award granted subsequent to January
1, 2012.
Effective January 1, 2013, the parent
Compensation Committee adopted a death, disability and retirement benefits program in
connection with equity awards that provides for the amendment of stock options and restricted stock units granted on or after January 1, 2013, to
accelerate vesting and to extend exercise periods upon an
death or permanent disability, or upon an
qualified retirement
provided certain eligibility criteria are met. Accordingly, for grants made after January 1, 2013, the Company will recognize compensation expense
for all stock-based compensation over the shorter of (i) the four-year vesting period or (ii) the period from the date of grant to the date the
employee becomes eligible for such retirement benefits, which may occur upon grant.
B. Details of restricted stock units which were granted during the year:
Date of grant
Type of arrangement

Restricted Stock Units

March 31, 2022
Equity granted Fair market value on
(Nos)
the grant date
(absolute amount)

October 1, 2021

1,316

January 3, 2022

322

March 1, 2022

323

March 10, 2022

31,718

Total

US $ / (Rs)
$266.61
Rs. 19,762.47
$286.38
Rs. 21,266.58
$228.55
Rs. 17303.52
$232.80
Rs. 17,439.51

33,679

Date of grant

March 31, 2021
Equity granted
(Nos)

June 1, 2020
March 10, 2021

Total

76
36,319

Fair market value
on the grant date
(absolute amount)
US $ / (Rs)
$264.31
Rs. 19,979.85
$204.42
Rs. 14,904.26

36,395

Vesting conditions : 1/4th of the shares typically vest each year over a period of four years starting from the date of grant.
Remaining contractual life in years is 1.97 years (March 31, 2021: 1.92 years).
C. Summary of activity under the plan for the year ended are given below:
March 31, 2022
Employee stock options

Number of Units

March 31, 2021

Weighted-average
grant date fair value
(absolute amount)
In USD

Number of Units

In Rs

Weighted-average
grant date fair value
(absolute amount)
In USD

In Rs

Outstanding at the
beginning of the year

43,447

94.31

6,895.00

82,950

92.62

7,004.99

Exercised during the year

(9,280)

94.62

7,171.29

(39,503)

90.78

6,636.93

Outstanding at the end of
the year

34,167

94.22

7,140.87

43,447

94.31

6,895.00

Page 34 of 45

ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees Crores, unless stated otherwise)
Weighted average remaining contractual life is 3.63 years (March 31, 2021 : 4.57 years)
Stock-based compensation cost is measured at the accounting measurement date based on the fair value of the award and the fair value is
recognized as an expense over the service period, which generally represents the vesting period. The expense recognized over the service period is
required to include an estimate of the awards that will not fully vest and be forfeited.
The fair value of a stock option is estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model that takes into account a number of
assumptions at the accounting measurement date including the exercise price, the expected life of the option, the volatility of the underlying stock,
expected dividends, and the risk-free interest rate over the expected life of the option. The risk-free treasury rate is based on the U.S. Treasury
yield approximating the estimated life in effect at the accounting measurement date. The expected life (estimated period of time outstanding) was
estimated using the vesting term and historical exercise behavior of employees. The expected volatility was based on historical volatility for a
period equal to the expected life of the stock options. The expected annual dividend was based upon the mid-point of American Tower
D. Employee restricted stock units (RSUs)

Restricted stock units

Outstanding at the
beginning of the year
Granted during the year
Vested during the year
Forfeited during the year
Outstanding at the end of
the year

Number of Units
83,620

March 31, 2022
Weighted-average
grant date fair value
(absolute amount)
In USD
In Rs
202.49
14,804.04

Number of Units
87,867

March 31, 2021
Weighted-average
grant date fair value
(absolute amount)
In USD
In Rs
183.14
13,850.63

33,679
(34,548)
(2,747)

234.59
188.73
209.91

17,779.47
14,303.50
15,908.77

36,395
(36,747)
(3,895)

204.55
163.32
154.70

14,954.65
11,940.33
11,310.12

80,004

221.69

16,801.89

83,620

202.49

14,804.04

The fair value of restricted stock units is based on the fair value of the common stock on the grant date. The expense is based on the fair market
value of the units awarded at the date of grant, times the number of shares subject to the units awarded.
The employee compensation expense for stock options and restricted stock units during the year ended March 31, 2022 Rs. 59.72 (March 31, 2021
Rs. 54.35). In terms of the agreement dated April 23, 2019 entered into with the Ultimate holding company, Rs. 60.63 (March 31, 2021 Rs. 53.52) is
payable to them.
II) In the financial year 2013-14, American Tower Corporation, the Ultimate Holding Company, had introduced an Employee Share Purchase Plan
namely
2000 Employee Stock Purchase
This Plan gives an opportunity to the employees of the Group to purchase shares of
class A common stock of American Tower Corporation, USA, listed on New York Stock Exchange at a 15% discount to the fair market value. During
the year the Company has recorded Rs. 0.77 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 1.02) as expense and Rs. 0.79 (March 31, 2021 Rs. 1.00) is payable to the Ultimate
holding company.
Employees who elect to participate in this program have to contribute by way of deductions from their Salary on an after tax basis. This
contribution is then used to purchase shares at the end of the window period. As at the end of the year, 249 employees (March 31, 2021 : 296
employees) have opted for this scheme and contribution amounting to Rs. 3.70 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 3.66) was deducted during the year from their
salaries towards this scheme.
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33 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
March 31, 2022
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders before other
comprehensive income
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS*
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders in calculating
diluted EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS*
Basic earning per share (Rs.) (absolute amount)
Diluted earning per share (Rs.) (absolute amount)
Nominal value per equity share (Rs.) (absolute amount)

March 31, 2021

639.88

448.86

932,314,011
639.88

932,314,011
448.86

932,314,011
6.86
6.86
10/-

932,314,011
4.81
4.81
10/-

*EPS has been calculated after taking into account the conversion price of Compulsory Convertible Debentures Rs.
216 (absolute amount) i.e. fair market value of the equity shares of the Company on the Appointed date in terms of
the Scheme of Amalgamation of erstwhile ATC India Tower Corporation Private Limited and its 100% subsidiary
McCoy Developers Private Limited, ATC Tower Company of India Private Limited,Transcend Infrastructure Private
Limited and its 100% subsidiary ATC Telecom Tower Corporation Private Limited with the Company w.e.f. April 21,
2016.
34 Capital Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital accounts and not provided for (net of capital advances)

March 31, 2022
287.27

March 31, 2021
400.17 c

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

35 Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities in respect of:
I Income Tax [refer (i) and (v) below]
II Indirect Tax :
-Sales Tax / VAT / Entry Tax /GST [refer (ii) below]
-Service Tax [refer (iii) below]
III Other legal matters (Civil, criminal and writ petition)
IV Property Taxes and Municipal Charges

102.22

94.09

262.46
276.87
912.26
912.26
200.14
171.66
(refer (iv) below)

(i) Income Tax cases represent amount demanded for assessment years 2006-07, 2008-09, 2010-11, 2011-12,
2012-13, 2013-14 and 2014-15 from the Company. The amount relates to various matters relating to
deductions of tax at source, depreciation claim and minimum alternate tax (MAT).
(ii) Sales tax/VAT/Entry tax demand mainly relate to issues of applicability, submission of relevant forms etc.
GST demand mainly relate to mismatch of input tax credit pertaining to FY 2018-19 and 2019-20.
(iii) Service Tax amount represents demand notices and show cause notices received in relation to input credit
taken on Tower, Shelters and other related assets, for period upto June 2017 which have been replied to.
The Company has preferred an appeal for Rs.772.82 (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 772.82) (excluding penalties and
interest as may be imposed). Also, a sum of Rs. 139.44 relating to period April 2015 to June 30, 2017 (March
31, 2021 : Rs. 139.44) have been availed and utilised, is shown as contingent liability, which is in line with
above demands and notices.
(iv) In the matter of levy of property tax on towers, the
Supreme Court (SC) of India, on December 16,
2016, set aside the judgement of Gujarat High Court and clarified that, though tower is certainly not a
in common parlance, but for purposes of taxes on lands and buildings, tower will be building and
thus tower is amenable to property tax.
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At the same time, the Hon'ble SC allowed the Companies to go back to appropriate forums to agitate the
issue of retrospectively and quantum, thus allowing the Company a window to legally object to the demands
of the municipalities. The Company considers the exposure of these amounts as not quantifiable mainly in
view of the retrospective application and method of computation. However, the Company has recorded the
estimated provision for Property Tax and Municipal Charges at the end of the period is Rs. 366.05 (March 31,
2021 : Rs. 334.09) net of expected recovery of Rs. 399.66 (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 340.50) as per Master Service
Agreement (MSA) in respect of these contingencies.
(v) On December 5, 2016, the Company received an income tax assessment order of Essar Telecom
Infrastructure Private Limited (ETIPL) from the Income Tax Department (the Tax Department) for the year
ended on March 31, 2008 for the amount of Rs. 475 (on the date of assessment) related to capital
contributions. The Company challenged the assessment before the Office of Commissioner of Income Tax Appeals, which ruled in the
favour during January 2018. However, the Tax Department appealed
against this ruling at a higher appellate authority. The Company estimates that there is a more likely than not
probability that the
position will be sustained upon appeal. Additionally, the assessment was
made with respect to transactions that took place in the tax year commencing in 2007, prior to the
acquisition of ETIPL. Under the
definitive acquisition agreement of ETIPL, the seller is
obligated to indemnify and defend the Company with respect to any tax-related liability that may arise from
activities prior to March 31, 2010.
Footnotes to note 35 above:
(a) Future ultimate outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in respect of the matters which are
uncertain as it depends on the final outcome of the matters involved.
(b) As per terms of
Agreement dated November 13, 2017 with Idea Cellular Limited, the Company
can claim loss from all contingent liabilities related to Idea Cellular Infrastructure Services Limited (now
known as ATC Infrastructure Services Private Limited) in excess over Rs. 32.50 from Idea Cellular Limited
subject to conditions mentioned in Agreement.
(c) As per terms of 'Business Transfer Agreement' (BTA) dated November 13, 2017 with Vodafone India Limited
and Vodafone Mobile Services Limited (both the entities subsequently merged with Idea Cellular Limited,
now known as Vodafone Idea Limited), the Company can claim loss, if any, from acquired contingent
liabilities in excess over Rs. 32.50 from Vodafone Idea Limited subject to conditions mentioned in BTA.
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36 Related party disclosures
In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS - 24
Party
the names of the related parties where control
exists and/ or with whom transactions have taken place during the year and description of relationships, as identified and certified
by the management.
A. Names of Related parties and descriptions of relationship where control exists:
(i) Ultimate Holding Company
(ii) Intermediate Holding Company
(iii) Holding Company
(iv) Subsidiary Company

: American Tower Corporation, USA
: American Towers LLC, USA
: American Towers International Inc., USA
: ATC Asia Pacific Pte Ltd, Singapore
: ATC CSR Foundation India
: ActiveX Telebroadband Services Private Limited (w.e.f. May 12, 2020)

(v) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place:
a. Fellow Subsidiary Company

: ATC International Financing B.V., Netherlands
: ATC India Infrastructure Private Limited

b. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

: Amit Sharma, Director (upto February 28, 2021)
: Vijay Agarwal, Chief financial officer
: Ashwani Khillan, Managing Director
: Geeta Puri Seth, Company Secretary (upto December 27, 2021)
: Vinod Negi, Company Secretary (w.e.f. February 11, 2022)
: Rajesh Madan (Alternate director to Ms Brenna Dugan Jones)
(upto December 31, 2021)

c. Enterprise having significant influence

: Tata Teleservices Limited (upto December 16, 2020)
: Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited (upto December 16, 2020)

B. Details of transactions during the year with the above parties:
Nature of transactions
I. Transactions during the year
a. Infrastructure provisioning fees (including exit fee)
Enterprise having Significant Influence
Tata Teleservices Limited
Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited
b. Provision for doubtful debts created/(written back)
Enterprise having Significant Influence
Tata Teleservices Limited
Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited
c. Energy and other recoveries
Enterprise having Significant Influence
Tata Teleservices Limited
Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited
d. Communication expenses
Enterprise having Significant Influence
Tata Teleservices Limited
e. Security deposits Received
Enterprise having Significant Influence
Tata Teleservices Limited
Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

-

220.45*
55.92*

-

(8.78)*
(1.19)*

-

34.68*
4.77*

-

0.14*

-

7.77*
2.49*
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f. Finance charges (Interest)
Fellow Subsidiary
ATC International Financing B.V., Netherlands
g. Reimbursement of TDS paid by the Company on behalf of related
party on RSUs granted by the related party
Ultimate Holding Company
American Tower Corporation, USA
h. Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company
Ultimate Holding Company
American Tower Corporation, USA
i. Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of
Fellow Subsidiary
ATC India Infrastructure Private Limited
Subsidiary Company
ATC CSR Foundation India
j. Reimbursement of deduction from salaries under ESPP to
Ultimate Holding Company
American Tower Corporation, USA
k. Allocation (net) of employees remuneration, administrative and other expenses from
Fellow Subsidiary
ATC India Infrastructure Private Limited (for Management support services)
l. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expense
Subsidiary Company
ATC CSR Foundation India
m. Investment in
Subsidiary Company
ActiveX Telebroadband Services Private Limited
n. Loan to
Subsidiary Company
ActiveX Telebroadband Services Private Limited
Loan given
Repayment of loan by subsidiary company
o. Finance income (Interest) on loan to

721.43

735.76

192.82

42.92

60.49

55.37

0.12

0.20

0.01

0.05

3.70

3.66

1.38

14.71

22.50

15.15

1.05

0.21

0.50
0.50

-

0.01

-

0.14

0.18

Subsidiary Company
ActiveX Telebroadband Services Private Limited
p. Fee for professional services
Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Rajesh Madan
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II. Balances at the end of the year
Assets
a) Other non-current financial assets
Subsidiary Company
ATC CSR Foundation India
ActiveX Telebroadband Services Private Limited
b) Other current/financial assets
Ultimate Holding Company
American Tower Corporation, USA
Subsidiary Company
ATC CSR Foundation India [# Rs. 36,632
(absolute amount)]
Liabilities
a) ECB Loan outstanding
Fellow Subsidiary
ATC International Financing B.V., Netherlands
b) Debenture (NCD) outstanding
Fellow Subsidiary
ATC International Financing B.V., Netherlands
c) Trade Payables
Ultimate Holding Company
American Tower Corporation, USA
C. Key Management Personnel**
Particulars
Short term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan
Defined benefit plan
Other Long term benefits
Stock based compensation (refer note 32)

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

0.01
1.26

0.01
0.21

22.52

20.71

0.01

#

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

4,154.50

4,331.70

4,200.00

4,200.00

62.78

55.89

March 31, 2022
7.28

March 31, 2021
6.35

0.19
0.79
0.33
24.91
33.50

* refer A(v)(c) above. Transactions disclosed for the period from April 01, 2020 to December 16, 2020.
** excludes management support services from fellow subsidiary as disclosed in B(I)(k) above.
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37 The Company is engaged in the business of providing Passive Telecom Site Infrastructure Service termed as
to cellular mobile telephony operators and other licensed telecom infrastructure providers in India. Information is
reported to and evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessing performance focusses on the business as a whole and accordingly, there is single reportable segment in the context of
Operating Segment as defined under Ind AS 108.
Out of total customers, revenue from 3 customers (telecom operators), contributing individually 10% or more to the Company
revenue, aggregates 90% of total revenue for the year (March 31, 2021 : 3 customers aggregate 88% of total revenue).
38 Ind AS 116 "Leases"
i) As Lessor:
As contracts with customers have escalation clause over the lease term, the rental escalations over the remaining period of the
lease term are straight-lined in the form of Revenue Equalisation Reserve (RER). In the initial years of the customer leases, the
revenue from RER will be higher and will be lower as it approaches the expiry term. During the year ended March 31, 2022,
revenue from operations includes Rs. 83.76 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 77.30) on account of RER.
ii) As Lessee:
a. The right-of-use assets represent the present value of future lease payments over the lease term, from the commencement of
the lease. The right-of-use assets are amortized over the lease term on straight line basis as reflected in these financial
statements under depreciation and amortization. During the year ended March 31, 2022, depreciation and amortization includes
Rs. 975.48 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 976.63) as amortization of right-of-use assets.
b. The Lease Liabilities represents present value of the remaining lease payments as at the date of adoption. Interest is charged
on the outstanding Lease Liabilities at the end of each period. During the year, finance cost includes Rs. 476.48 (March 31, 2021:
Rs. 488.58) as interest on lease liability.
c. Lease/License expense for the year Rs. 1,288.05 (March 31, 2021: Rs.1,269.23).
d. Net impact of cost and income on profit before tax for the year amounts to a loss of Rs. 80.15 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 118.68).
e. The weighted-average remaining lease terms and incremental borrowing rates as at March 31, 2022 are as follows:
Weighted-average remaining lease term (years)
Weighted-average incremental borrowing rate

8.48
8.17%

f. As at March 31, 2022, the Company does not have any material related party leases as a lessee. The Company does not have
any sale-leaseback arrangements as lessee and typically does not enter into leveraged leases.
Following are the changes in the carrying value of right-of-use assets:
Particulars
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Additions
Deletions/Adjustments
Depreciation expense
Impairment
Balance as at the end of the year

March 31, 2022
5,198.79
1,133.86
(211.02)
(975.48)
(7.64)
5,138.51

March 31, 2021
5,504.68
969.19
(295.41)
(976.63)
(3.04)
5,198.79
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The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:
Particulars
Current lease liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities
Balance as at the end of the year

March 31, 2022
803.03
4,973.34
5,776.37

March 31, 2021
766.85
4,917.34
5,684.19

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

The following is the movement in lease liabilities:
Particulars
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Additions
Deletions/Adjustments
Finance cost accrued during the year
Payment of lease liabilities
Balance as at the end of the year

5,684.19
1,133.86
(231.59)
476.48
(1,286.57)
5,776.37

5,788.12
969.19
(296.22)
488.58
(1,265.48)
5,684.19

Lease commitments
a) Where the Company is a lessee/licensee
The Company has entered into various lease/license agreements for leased/licensed premises, which expire at various dates over
the next twenty years. There are no contingent lease/license fees payments. The details of the contractual maturities of lease
liabilities on an undiscounted basis are as follows :
(I) not later than one year
(ii) later than one year and not later than five years
(iii) later than five years

March 31, 2022
1,223.14
3,669.66
3,384.40
8,277.20

March 31, 2021
1,254.85
3,907.82
3,384.45
8,547.12

b) Where the Company is a infrastructure service provider
The service revenue recognized during the year includes income from infrastructure provisioning fees over the year relating to
passive infrastructure sites.
Infrastructure provisioning fees recognised during the year

March 31, 2022
5,425.52

Future minimum infrastructure provisioning fees receivables for non-cancellable period under infrastructure
service agreement are as follows:
March 31, 2022
(I) not later than one year
3,687.83
(ii) later than one year and not later than five years
10,447.60
(iii) later than five years
3,121.42
17,256.85

March 31, 2021
5,199.04

March 31, 2021
3,227.64
8,575.80
3,036.84
14,840.28
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39 One of our large customers, in its declared audited results for quarter and year ended March 31, 2022, had expressed its ability to continue as a
going concern to be dependent on raising additional funds as required, successful negotiations with lenders for continued support and generation of
cash flow from operations that it needs to settle its liabilities as they fall due.
Various relief provisions were announced by Government of India during September 2021 subsequent to Adjusted Gross Revenue (AGR) judgement
issued by
Supreme Court, such reliefs among other things included (i) a four year moratorium on the payment of AGR fees owed and (ii) a
change in the definition of AGR on a prospective basis. The said customer has availed the moratorium with respect to the AGR and Deferred
Spectrum Obligations.
The Company will continue to monitor the impact, if any, of above mentioned financial condition with respect to the aforesaid customer on its
business operations and financial position, as it is possible that the estimated future cash flows may differ from current estimates, and changes in
estimated cash flows from the said customer could have an impact on recorded Property, plant and equipment (PP&E), capital work in progress,
intangible assets including tenant-related intangibles, Right-of-use assets, Revenue equalisation reserve and Goodwill.
The carrying amounts as at March 31, 2022 of PP&E, capital work in progress, intangible assets including tenant-related intangibles, Right-of-use
assets, Revenue equalisation reserve and Goodwill are Rs. 7,230.35, Rs. 90.12, Rs. 4,020.35, Rs. 5,138.51, Rs. 300.75 and Rs. 1,748.20 respectively.
40 Revenue from operations includes exit charges amounting Rs. 14.82 (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 309.69) recognised based on settlement terms agreed with
the customers.
41 As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit
for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities.
Breakup of expenses included in CSR expenditure is as under:
Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

i) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year

22.82

24.05

ii) Amount of expenditure incurred during the year

22.82

24.08

iii) Shortfall at the end of the year
iv) Total of previous years shortfall

Promoting digital literacy and skill development
for underprivileged communities with focus on
increased employability and promoting e-health
programs in rural communities

v) Nature of CSR activities

vi) Details of related party transactions: Donation to ATC CSR Foundation India, Wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company [refer note 36 (B)(I)(l)]
vii) The movements in the provision where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred
by entering into a contractual obligation
42 Ratios
Following are the analytical ratios:
Particulars
(a) Current ratio

Refer foot
note
(i)

March 31,
2022
3.29

March 31,
2021
2.60

% Variance
26.64%

(b) Debt-Equity ratio
(c) Debt Service Coverage ratio
(d) Return on Equity ratio

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

0.87
3.42
7.16%

0.95
3.30
5.35%

-8.58%
3.47%
33.87%

(e) Inventory turnover ratio
(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio

(v)

n/a
3.93

n/a
4.17

n/a
-5.78%

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio
(h) Net capital turnover ratio
(i) Net profit ratio

(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

5.09
186.70%
7.06%

4.53
233.92%
5.30%

12.45%
-20.19%
33.19%

(j) Return on Capital employed
(k) Return on investment
n/a - not applicable

(ix)
(x)

9.38%
n/a

7.98%
n/a

17.58%
n/a

22.50

15.15

NA

NA

Reason for variance where % of variance is
greater than 25%
Increase in Trade receivable due to lower
collection.

Increase in Revenue from IP fees resulted in
increase in Net profit after tax as compared to
previous year.

Increase in Revenue from IP fees resulted in
increase in Net profit after tax as compared to
previous year.
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Formula used for calculation of above ratios are as under:
(i) Current ratio = total current assets ÷ current liabilities excluding lease liabilities.
(ii) Debt equity ratio = Total debt ÷ Shareholders' Equity
(iii) Debt service coverage ratio = {(Profit before tax, depreciation/amortization, finance costs (excluding unwinding of discount on ARO provisions
and interest on lease liabilities), Provision/write off/impairment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and Revenue equalisation
reserve) - (repayment of lease liabilities)} ÷ [(finance costs (excluding unwinding of discount on ARO provisions) and long term debt repayment
excluding prepayment]
(iv) Return on Equity ratio= Net Profit after tax ÷ Average Shareholders equity
(v) Trade receivable turnover ratio = Revenue from operations ÷ Average (of opening and closing) trade receivables.
(vi) Trade payable turnover ratio = Purchase of services + Other expense ÷ Average (of opening and closing) trade payables.
(vii) Net capital turnover ratio = Revenue from operations ÷ Working capital (Working capital = current asset - current liabilities excluding lease
liabilities)
(viii) Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax ÷ Revenue from operations
(ix) Return on Capital Employed ratio = {(Profit before tax, and finance costs (excluding unwinding of discount on ARO provisions and interest on
lease liabilities) ÷ Capital Employed (Tangible net worth + Total Debt+ Deferred Tax Liability)
(x) The Company had made investment in subsidiaries which are strategic in nature and accordingly this ratio is not computed.
43 Relationship with struck off companies
Name of, relationship and balances, with the companies which have been struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956, during the year ended March 31, 2022 or in an previous period and with whom transaction has taken place during the year,
are as under:
Name of the struck off
company

Nature of transactions
with struck off
company

Agadi Enterprises Private
Limited

Payables

Ankit Builders Pvt. Ltd.
Arbindo Liquors Ltd
Knorr Bremse India Private
Limited

Payables
Payables
Payables

Precious Shelters Private Ltd.

Payables

Raj Mahal Motels (P)Ltd.
Satguru Cement Private
Limited
Teletech Telecom Private
Limited

Balance outstanding as at
March 31, 2022

-

Relationship
with the
struck off
company
Vendor

Balance outstanding as at Relationship with the
March 31, 2021
struck off company

Vendor
Vendor
Vendor

-

-

Payables
Payables

-

Vendor
Vendor

0.01
Payables

Vendor
Vendor
Vendor

Vendor

-

Vendor

Vendor
-

Vendor
Vendor

Vendor

-

Vendor
-

The above parties are not related parties and transactions are in ordinary course of business.
44 The Company does not have any immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company.
45 No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 31 March 2022 for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
46 The Company is not a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
47 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Intermediary shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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48 The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
49 The Company has no borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
50 There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered by the Company with ROC beyond the statutory period.
51 The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
52 The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not
been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code
becomes effective.
53 Based on assessment made by the Company, there is no significant impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the financial position and performance of the
Company. Further, the Company is not expecting any significant change in estimates as of now as the Company is running its business and
operations as usual without any major disruptions.
54 Approval of standalone financial statements
The standalone financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on May 26, 2022.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited

Sandeep Girotra
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
(DIN: 5141862)
Place: Singapore

Ashwani Khillan
Director
(DIN: 08451314)

Vishal Jajodia
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AEZPJ9677H)

Vinod Negi
Company Secretary
(PAN: ACIPN0657N)

Place: Gurugram

Place: Gurugram

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 26, 2022
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7th Floor, Building 10, Tower B
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Tel: +91 124 679 2000
Fax: +91 124 679 2012

To The Members of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private
the Holding
(Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred
which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022, and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total
comprehensive income, their consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year
ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulf
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 39 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which states that the Company will
continue to monitor the impact, if any, due to the financial condition relating to one of the large customers of
the Company, as it is possible that the estimated future cash flows may differ from current estimates, and
changes in estimated cash flows from the said customer could have an impact on recorded Property, plant
and equipment, Capital work in progress, Other intangible assets including tenant-related intangibles, Rightof-use assets, Revenue equalisation reserve and Goodwill.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Regd. Office: One International Centre, Tower 3, 32 nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai
(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)

400 013, Maharashtra, India.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
Sr. No.

Key Audit Matters

1

Revenue recognition:
There is an inherent risk around the accuracy of
revenue recorded given a) the Company uses
billing systems which are complex and process
large volumes of data with a combination of
different components of revenue, and b) the
Company has multiple price negotiations with
their customers.
(Refer to Notes 2.12, 19 and 40 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2022)

Principal audit procedures performed:
Our audit procedures included evaluation of billing
systems including design and implementation of
internal controls, and testing the operating
effectiveness of the internal controls that pertain to
the:
Capturing and recording of revenue transactions;
Authorisation of rates changes and input of the
rate changes into the billing systems;
Preparation and validation of the billing schedule;
and
Calculation of amounts billed to operators, in line
with underlying contracts / agreements.
We assessed the terms and provisions in the master
lease
agreement
and
evaluated
the
their accounting policies, along with their use of
estimates, in the determination of revenue
recognition conclusions;
We tested invoices on sample basis issued to
operators to ensure that the revenue recorded
agreed to the relevant underlying supporting
of substantive procedures. We also performed
analytical procedures to test the recorded revenue
for each customer;
We involved our internal IT specialists to test
general IT systems and application specific controls
surrounding billing system, including testing of
system generated reports used in our audit; and
We challenged management estimates around
appropriateness of revenue recognition and
reversals for biases that could result in material
misstatement by examining historical trend of
negotiations pattern with the customers.

2.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

Principal audit procedures performed:

The Company assesses tangible and intangible
assets for impairment at the end of each
reporting period or when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of these assets may not be
recoverable.

Our audit procedures included, obtaining an
understanding of the methodology used by the
management for impairment assessment including
evaluation around the appropriateness of those
methods used for impairment assessment.

In assessing, whether there is an indication of
impairment, management applies judgement,
in determining the recoverable amount, being
the higher of the assets fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use.

We evaluated design and implementation of key
controls, and testing the operating effectiveness of
recoverability of tangible and intangible assets,
including those over future occupancy levels, rental
rates, terminal growth rate and discount rates.

We identified the impairment of tangible and
intangible assets as a key audit matter because
of the significant estimates and assumptions
management makes to evaluate the
recoverability of these assets.

We evaluated the future cash flows analysis,
including estimates of future occupancy levels,
rental rates, and capitalization rate with possible
impairment indicators by (i) evaluating the source
information and assumptions used by management
and (ii) testing the mathematical accuracy of the
Refer to Notes 2.5, 2.22(i) and 3 to 6 to the discounted future cash flows.
consolidated financial statements for the Year
ended March 31, 2022.
We evaluated the reasonableness of the discount
rate and growth rate including the terminal growth
rate by:
Testing the source of information underlying
the determination of discount rate and the
mathematical accuracy of the calculation.
Developing a range of independent estimates
and comparing those to the rates used by the
management.
We

evaluated

the

reasonableness

of

projections
sources and results from other areas of the audit.

responsible for the other information. The other information

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
management either intends to liquidate or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management.
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and the subsidiary company
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and
its subsidiary company as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the respective Board of Directors,
none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
f)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the
on the auditor
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Holding Company, for the reasons stated therein.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Holding Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial
remuneration is not applicable.
h) With respect to the other matte
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:
i.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
consolidated financial statements. Refer to Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

ii.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

(a)

The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, have
the note 47 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
ed in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act have
the note 48 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities.; and

(b) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.
v.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed final
dividend for the year and hence, reporting under Rule 11(f) is not applicable for the year.

2. With respect to the
and explanations given to us, and based
on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and its subsidiary included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
117366W/W-100018)

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner
(Membership No. 104337)
(UDIN: 22104337AJROQJ8443)

on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 to the Members of ATC Telecom
Infrastructure Private Limited of even date]
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ATC Telecom
) as of that date.

The Board of Directors of the Holding company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respec
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Holding Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the Holding
Company has, in all material respects maintains an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March
31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
117366W/W-100018)

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner
(Membership No. 104337)
(UDIN: 22104337AJROQJ8443)

ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
(CIN- U74110MH2004PTC289328)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless stated otherwise)

Notes
ASSETS
I. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Right-of-use assets
(d) Goodwill
(e) Other intangible assets
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Other financial assets
(g) Deferred tax assets (net)
(h) Current tax assets (net)
(i) Other non-current assets

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

3
4
38
5
6

7,230.35
90.12
5,138.51
1,748.20
4,020.49

7,200.99
109.36
5,198.79
1,817.72
4,339.42

7
9
12

0.01
405.03
255.24
360.98
19,248.93

0.01
407.59
7.89
471.83
270.20
19,823.80

1,854.34
3,484.73
1,272.41
296.87
60.59
4.19
6,973.13
26,222.06

1,269.96
3,253.16
1,045.19
212.00
95.61
6.75
5,882.67
25,706.47

13
14

883.52
1,053.96
7,324.08
9,261.56

883.52
1,053.96
6,683.88
8,621.36

15
38
16
18
12
17

8,177.30
4,973.34
251.19
512.22
121.61
5.27
14,040.93

8,354.50
4,917.34
292.01
488.64
4.39
14,056.88

177.20
803.03

177.20
766.85

26.34
798.73

14.90
831.51

187.41
143.22
783.64
2,919.57
26,222.06

405.29
144.27
688.21
3,028.23
25,706.47

10
Total non-current assets

II. Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Other financial assets
(b) Current tax assets (net)
(c) Other current assets
(d) Non-current assets classified as held for sale

8
11
9
10
Total current assets
Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I. Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Compulsory convertible debentures
(c) Other equity
Total equity
II. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net)
(d) Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
III. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions

38
16

16
17
18
Total current liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2)
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022
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Sandeep Girotra
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
(DIN: 5141862)
Place: Singapore

Ashwani Khillan
Director
(DIN: 08451314)

Vishal Jajodia
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AEZPJ9677H)
Place: Gurugram

Vinod Negi
Company Secretary
(PAN: ACIPN0657N)
Place: Gurugram

Date: May 26, 2022

Place: Gurugram
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ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
(CIN- U74110MH2004PTC289328)
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless stated otherwise)

Notes
I. INCOME
(a) Revenue from operations
(b) Other income
Total income (I)
II. EXPENSES
(a) Energy charges
(b) Repairs and maintenance
(c) Employee benefits expenses
(d) Provision/write off/impairment for property,plant and
equipment,intangible assets,capital work in progress and right-ofuse assets
(e) Write off of assets and impairment of financial assets
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expenses
(g) Finance costs
(h) Other expenses

Weighted average number of shares used in computing earnings per equity share
(a) Basic
(b) Diluted
Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2)
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

March 31, 2021

19, 38
20

9,066.15
279.49
9,345.64

8,470.60
268.72
8,739.32

21
22
23
24

3,421.54
541.98
291.95
15.46

3,147.34
553.07
282.51
240.50

25
26
27
28

358.96
2,246.66
1,236.59
290.14

136.98
2,227.48
1,259.48
258.93

8,403.28

8,106.29

942.36

633.03

173.97
129.04
303.01
639.35

120.14
64.08
184.22
448.81

Total expenses (II)
III. Profit before tax (I)-(II)
IV. Tax expense
(a) Current tax expense
(b) Deferred tax charge
Total tax expense
V. Profit for the year (III)-(IV)
VI. Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or (loss)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit
or loss
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (VI)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (V+VI) [Comprising Profit and other comprehensive income
VII.
for the year]
Earnings per equity share [par value of Rs. 10/- (absolute amount)]
(a) Basic (in Rs.) (absolute amount)
(b) Diluted (in Rs.) (absolute amount)

March 31, 2022

29
12

31
12

1.31
(0.46)

(0.29)
0.10

-

-

0.85

(0.19)

640.20

448.62

6.86
6.86

4.81
4.81

932,314,011
932,314,011

932,314,011
932,314,011

33

33

2
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited

Sandeep Girotra
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
(DIN: 5141862)
Place: Singapore

Ashwani Khillan
Director
(DIN: 08451314)

Vishal Jajodia
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AEZPJ9677H)
Place: Gurugram

Vinod Negi
Company Secretary
(PAN: ACIPN0657N)
Place: Gurugram

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 26, 2022
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ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
(CIN- U74110MH2004PTC289328)
Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless stated otherwise)
a. Equity Share Capital
March 31, 2022
Nos
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at the end of the year
b. Other Equity

(i) Profit for the year 2020-21
(ii) Other comprehensive loss
II. Balance as at March 31, 2021
(i) Profit for the year 2021-22
(ii) Other comprehensive income
(iii) Transfer to Debenture
Redemption Reserve
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Footnotes:
Description of purposes of reserves:

March 31, 2021
Nos

Amount

883,519,398
-

883.52
-

883,519,398
-

883.52
-

883,519,398

883.52

883,519,398

883.52

Reserve and Surplus
Capital
1
reserves

I. Balance as at March 31, 2020

Amount

Capital Reserve
Securities General
on
3
4
Reserve
2 premium
Amalgamation

421.20

(812.56)

-

-

421.20

(812.56)

-

-

421.20

(812.56)

3,493.54
3,493.54
-

3,493.54

Debenture
Capital
Redemption Redemption
5
6
Reserve
Reserve

Other
7
equity

Retained
8
earnings

Items of Other
Comprehensive
9
Income

Total

150.00

197.61

166.67

206.78

2,411.13

0.89

6,235.26

-

-

-

-

448.81
-

(0.19)

448.81
(0.19)

150.00

197.61

166.67

206.78

2,859.94

0.70

6,683.88

-

44.51

-

-

639.35
(44.51)

0.85
-

639.35
0.85
-

150.00

242.12

166.67

206.78

3,454.78

1.55

7,324.08

1) Represents capital reserve created pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement between erstwhile Wireless-TT Info Services Ltd (erstwhile Viom Networks Ltd now known as ATC
Telecom Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) and erstwhile Quippo Telecom Infrastructure Ltd effective April 01, 2009.
2) Represents capital reserve created pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation referred to footnote to note 33.
3) Securities Premium consists of Rs. 734.72 recognised on issue of equity shares in earlier years and Rs. 2,758.82 transferred from Transferor companies pursuant to the
Scheme of Amalgamation referred to footnote to note 33.
4) Represents amount transferred from Debenture Redemption Reserve post redemption of 12,000 redeemable non-convertible debentures of Rs. 500,000 (absolute amount)
each.
5) Represents Debenture Redemption Reserve created pursuant to section 71 (4) of Companies Act, 2013 for redemption of 42,000 Unsecured, redeemable, listed, rated, fully
paid non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 (absolute amount)each. In terms of notification dated August 16, 2019 and February 19, 2021 issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, the Company has created Debenture Redemption Reserve.
6) Represents Capital Redemption Reserve created pursuant to section 55 (2) of Companies Act, 2013 for redemption of 166,666,666, 10.25% Cumulative Non-convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each.
7) Other equity includes cost of stock options, restricted stock units and other benefits provided to the employees of the Company by the ultimate holding company and which
are not required to be settled in cash by the Company. (refer note 32)
8) Retained earnings represent accumulated profits after appropriation of reserves.
9) Other Comprehensive income represents gain/loss on actuarial valuation of defined benefit plan.
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited

Sandeep Girotra
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
(DIN: 5141862)
Place: Singapore

Ashwani Khillan
Director
(DIN: 08451314)

Vishal Jajodia
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AEZPJ9677H)
Place: Gurugram

Vinod Negi
Company Secretary
(PAN: ACIPN0657N)
Place: Gurugram

Place: Gurugram

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

Date: May 26, 2022
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ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
(CIN- U74110MH2004PTC289328)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless stated otherwise)

Notes
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustment for:
Provisions/liabilities no longer required written back
Interest Income
Gain on retirement of right-of-use assets (net)
Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment
Provision/write off/impairment for property,plant and equipment,intangible assets,capital work
in progress and right-of-use assets
Bad debts/advances written off
Write off of assets and impairment of financial assets
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Finance costs
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) (net)
Revenue equalisation reserve
Provisions for contingencies (net of expected recovery)
Operating profit before working capital changes
Movement in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets
(increase) in other financial assets
(decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase in trade payables
(Decrease)/Increase in other current liabilities
Increase in other non-current liabilities
Increase in provisions
Cash from operations
Income tax (paid)/refunds- net
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A)
Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale/insurance claims on property, plant and equipment
including capital work in progress
Net decrease bank balances and margin money deposits
Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities (B)
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings
Repayment of lease liabilities
Interest paid
-On borrowings
-On lease liabilities
Net cash used in financing activities ( C)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

942.36

633.03

20
20
20
20

(50.48)
(112.02)
(23.48)
(87.25)

(123.86)
(125.07)
(17.24)
-

24
25
25
26
27

15.46
23.15
335.81
2,246.66
1,236.59
0.92
(83.76)
34.30

240.50
17.58
119.40
2,227.48
1,259.48
(2.03)
(77.30)
24.54

4,478.26

4,176.51

(958.96)
3.25
35.02
(168.15)
(135.90)
24.79
(0.59)
0.88
3.92
(1,195.74)
3,282.52
(42.25)

403.25
(11.90)
(10.72)
(32.51)
(19.14)
62.03
42.93
4.39
12.03
450.36
4,626.87
74.65

3,240.27

4,701.52

38
28

(1,087.50)
145.09

(991.44)
120.08

8.52
110.39
(823.50)

(0.32)
124.59
(747.09)

(177.20)
(810.09)

(177.20)
(776.90)

(721.43)
(476.48)
(2,185.20)

(735.76)
(488.58)
(2,178.44)

231.57

1,775.99
Contd..
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ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
(CIN- U74110MH2004PTC289328)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless stated otherwise)

Note
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents acquired through separate acquisition (refer note 7a)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year
Balances with scheduled banks:
-In current accounts
- In fixed deposits
Balance in digital payment wallet

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

11

3,253.16
3,484.73

1,477.16
0.01
3,253.16

11
11
11

239.66
3,238.90
6.17

254.61
2,998.55
-

Total cash and cash equivalents
3,484.73
Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2)
2
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
3-55
The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows.

3,253.16

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
Long term borrowings

Total

March 31, 2021
8,531.70
8,531.70

Addition
-

Repayment
(177.20)
(177.20)

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner

Sandeep Girotra
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
(DIN: 5141862)
Place: Singapore

Place: Gurugram

Vishal Jajodia
Chief Financial Officer
(PAN: AEZPJ9677H)
Place: Gurugram

Vinod Negi
Company Secretary
(PAN: ACIPN0657N)
Place: Gurugram

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2022

March 31, 2022
8,354.50
8,354.50

Ashwani Khillan
Director
(DIN: 08451314)

Date: May 26, 2022
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ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless stated otherwise)

1.

General Information
Background and nature of business
ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited (the Company) is a company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and is engaged
in the business of providing Passive Telecom Site Infrastructure Service termed as
to cellular mobile telephony operators and
other licensed telecom infrastructure providers in India. The Company is registered with Department of Telecom, Ministry of Communications,
Government of India as Infrastructure Provider Category I, (IP-I Infrastructure provider). The registered office of the Company is situated at 404, 4th
floor, Skyline Icon, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri East, Mumbai - 400059, Maharashtra.
On May 12, 2020, the Company acquired 100% shares [10,000 equity shares of Rs 10/- each (absolute amount)] of Activex Telebroadband Services
Private Limited (ActiveX), engaged in the business of providing active and passive elements of telecom infrastructure services of Building Solutions,
Public Wifi/Hotspot etc. in India, for cash consideration of Rs. 0.01 (refer note 7a) and accordingly ActiveX became wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company w.e.f. May 12, 2020.

2 Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 (i) Statement of compliance
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.
2.1 (ii) Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services. The accounting policies followed in preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements are
consistent with those followed in the preparation of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021.
2.1 (iii) Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprises the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary which is as follows:Entity
Activex
Telebroadband
Services Private
Limited

Country of
incorporation

Principal
service

India

active and
passive
elements of
telecom
infrastructure
services

Relationship

Effective date of
acquisition/control

Shareholding as
at March 31,
2022

Subsidiary

May 12, 2020

100%

Accounting for Subsidiaries:
A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. Control exists when the parent has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over entity. Power is demonstrated through
Subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date on which Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date the Company gains control until the date the Company ceases to control the subsidiary. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies and accounting period in line with those used by the Company. All
intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses and cash flows are eliminated on consolidation. The Company consolidates its directly
controlled subsidiary according to principles of Ind AS 110, Consolidated Financial Statements.
The Company accounts for its business combination under acquisition method of accounting. Acquisitions related cost are recognised in Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the condition for recognition
are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.
Purchase consideration paid in excess of the fair value of net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceed the cost of acquisition, the excess is recognised in determination of profit or loss after reassessing the fair values of the net assets and
contingent liabilities.
2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or deemed cost and subsequent costs thereto less accumulated depreciation/amortization and
provision/impairment of damaged/non-usable assets.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as capital advances
under other non-current assets. Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use are disclosed under
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less provision for obsolete and damaged assets and any recognised impairment loss.
Costs includes purchase price, taxes and duties (net of duties/taxes of which credit availed), freight and other incidental expenses related to the
acquisition and installation of property, plant and equipment.
Provision for assets lying on vacant sites, slow moving assets, obsolescence and damaged assets is made based upon physical verification and periodical
technical/commercial evaluation undertaken by the Group.
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The present value of the expected cost, for the decommissioning and restoration of an asset after its use, is included in the cost of the respective asset
if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in future and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method
over the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013
or useful life determined based on technical evaluation and past trends, upto the estimated residual value of the
depreciable assets, as follows:
Assets

Estimated useful life

(in Years)
Leasehold improvement
Lease/license period
Plant and machinery *
3 to 20
Computers and IT Hardware
3
Office equipment
2 to 5
Furniture and fittings
3 to 6
Vehicles
3 to 5
Site restoration obligation (ARO) cost, included in plant and machinery, is amortised over the useful life of towers.

Indicative useful life as given in
Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013
(in Years)
Lease/license period
15
3 to 6
5
10
8

* In respect of Battery Bank and Diesel Generators, the Group has considered realisable value as 25% and 15% of the respective original cost, at the
end of useful life, based on past trends as well as from the recent sale of such assets. For all other assets it has considered 5% of original cost as
residual value.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and effect of any change in
estimate is accounted for on prospective basis.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as of April 1, 2015 (the transition
date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.
2.3 Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Additionally, Goodwill arising on acquisition of the erstwhile VIOM Infra Networks (Maharashtra) Limited is amortised over a period of 10
years as per the Scheme of Amalgamation approved by the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi on December 04, 2014.
Further, Goodwill is allocated to group of cash generating units (CGU) for the purpose of impairment testing which is performed annually or whenever
there is an indication that the goodwill may be impaired. When a CGU within the group of CGUs to which goodwill is allocated, is disposed off by the
Company, the Goodwill associated with the disposed CGU is included in the carrying amount of the CGU while determining the gain or loss on disposal.
Goodwill associated with the disposed CGU is measured by management using method that reflects the goodwill associated with the disposed CGU on
the basis of available information.
2.4 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and the effect of any change in estimate is accounted for on prospective basis. Software is amortised
over its useful life of 3 years. Tenant relationships, Network intangibles and License are amortised over their useful lives ranging 10 to 20 years.
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of asset, are recognised
in consolidated Statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2015 (the transition date) measured
as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.
2.5 Impairment
(i) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
At the end of each reporting period, tangible and intangible assets which are subject to depreciation or amortization are reviewed for
impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation is identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cashgenerating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss by reducing the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
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When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. Reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
(ii) Impairment of goodwill
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and which represents the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit prorata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
2.6 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at banks, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.
For the purpose of the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdraft as they are considered as integral part of the Group's cash management.
2.7 Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks
of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
2.8 Financial assets
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
(i) Initial Recognition and Measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through the Statement of Profit
and Loss, plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
(ii) Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
- Debt instruments at amortised cost
- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
- Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
- Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
(a) Debt instruments at amortised cost
The category applies to the
trade receivables, unbilled revenue, other bank balances, security deposits, etc. A
measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

is

(i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and
(ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
principal amount outstanding.
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This category is most relevant to the Group.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
(b) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
(i) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
(ii) The asset's contractual cash flows represent solely payment of principal and interest.
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements
are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from the equity to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding fair value through other
comprehensive income debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.
(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group irrevocably elects initial recognition to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income from investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.
Debts instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria are measured at FVTPL. In addition , debt instruments that
meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL, are measured at FVTPL.
A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from
measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gain and losses on them on different bases. The Group has not designated any debt instrument
as at FVTPL.
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income' line item. Dividends on financial assets
at FVTPL is recognised when the Group's right to receive the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be
measured reliably.
(iv) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on
the financial assets that are debt instruments and are initially measured at fair value with subsequent measurement at amortised cost e.g. Trade

The application of the simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial
assets and risk exposure, the Group determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit
risk has not increased significantly, twelve month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in the subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising an impairment loss allowance based on a twelve month ECL. ECL is the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.
v) Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in the consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of that financial asset.
On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset),
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement,
and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on
disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part
that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
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2.9 Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets, mainly property, plant and equipment, are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset and its sale is highly probable. Non-current assets classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
2.10 Income taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
(i) Current tax :
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
(ii) Deferred tax :
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry
forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has became probable that future taxable profits will allow that deferred
tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future economic
benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance
sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Current and deferred tax for the period are recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.
Dividend distribution tax paid on the dividends is recognised consistently with the presentation of the transaction that creates the income tax
consequence. Dividend distribution tax is charged to the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss if the dividend itself is charged to the
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. If the dividend is recognised in equity, the presentation of dividend distribution tax is recognised in
equity.
Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interest in joint arrangements where the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries
where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.
The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities where it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
2.11 Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(i) Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
(ii) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
(iii) Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value and in case of borrowings net of directly attributable transaction cost and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
(a) Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities at fair value through consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
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Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/
losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. These gains/ loss are not subsequently
transferred to the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
(b) Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost
The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest
method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the Finance costs.
The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
(iv) Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
2.12 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the Government. Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
(i) Service income
Service income includes income from use of sites, energy and other recoveries from operators, net of discounts and Goods and service tax (GST).
Income from use of sites is recognized as and when services are rendered. In case of the long term contracts which include fixed escalations, the
effect of such increases is recognized on straight line basis over the term thereof.
Energy revenue is recognized over the period on a monthly basis upon satisfaction of performance obligation as per contracts with the
customers. The transaction price is the consideration received from customers based on prices agreed as per the contract with the customers.
The determination of standalone selling prices is not required as the transaction prices are stated in the contract based on the identified
performance obligation.
Unbilled revenues at the end of the period represent accrued service income and other charges pending to be billed, which are estimated and
recorded. The Group collects GST on behalf of the government and therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Group, hence it is
excluded from revenue.
Exit Charges is recognised when uncertainty relating to the amounts receivable on exit is resolved and it is probable that a significant reversal
relating to the amounts receivable on exit will not occur.
(ii) Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
2.13 Leases / Licenses
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.
(i) Where the Company is a lessee
The Group recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date.
The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred. The
right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Group may adopt the incremental
borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of leases as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual
value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently
remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance
fixed lease payments.
Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate
the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Group makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis
and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised.
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The calculation of the lease liability requires us to make certain assumptions for each lease, including lease term and discount rate implicit in
each lease, which could significantly impact the gross lease obligation, the duration and the present value of the lease liability. When calculating
the lease term, we consider the renewal, cancellation and termination rights available to us and the lessor. We determine the discount rate by
calculating the incremental borrowing rate on a collateralized basis at the commencement of a lease or upon a change in the lease term.
The Group recognises the amount of the re- measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Group
recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Group has not elected the practical expedient for short term leases, which permits an adopter to not apply the requirements of Ind AS 116
to leases with a remaining maturity of one year or less , and applied the Ind AS 116 to all leases, including short term leases.
(ii) Where the Company is the service provider
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Group to the lessee.
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Group as a net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.
Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset are classified as operating
leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are
recognized as revenue when uncertainties related to its recoverability is removed.
2.14 Employees benefits
(i) Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.
For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet
with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in other equity and is not reclassified to the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Past
service cost is recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Defined benefit costs are categorised as follow:
(a) service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements)
(b) Net interest expenses or income; and
(c) remeasurement
The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the line item 'Employee
benefits expenses'. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.
The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Group's defined benefit plans.
Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans
or reductions in future contributions to the plans.
A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and
when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.
(ii) Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave accrued and allowed to be
carried forward in the period the related service is rendered.
Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the related service.
Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provide by employees up to the reporting date.
2.15 Stock based payments
Stock-based payment transactions of the stock based compensation to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
date.
The fair value determined at the grant date of the share-based compensation is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the other equity except to the extent amount is reimbursed to the ultimate holding Company.
2.16 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders, by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The number of shares used
in computing diluted earnings per share comprise of the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and weighted
average number of equity shares, if any, which would have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares unless the impact is
anti-dilutive. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date.
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2.17 Segment Reporting
The Group identifies operating segments based on the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker (CODM). Operating segments
are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by CODM, in deciding how
to allocate resources and assessing performance.
2.18 Business Combination
A common control business combination, involving entities or businesses in which all the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by
the same party or parties both before and after the business combination and where the control is not transitory, is accounted for using the pooling of
interests method.
Other business combinations, involving entities or businesses are accounted for using acquisition method.
The Company has elected not to apply Ind AS 103
transition date of April 1, 2015.

retrospectively to past business combinations that occurred before the

2.19 Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
(i) An asset is classified as current when it is:
a) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
c) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or,
d) Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
(ii) A liability is classified as current when it is:
a) Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
c) Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period,
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
2.21 Foreign currency transactions
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.
2.22 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of applicable Ind AS
requires the management of the Group to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the
period presented.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.
Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the consolidated financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of impairment of tangible and intangible assets, useful lives
and residual value of property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets/liabilities, provisions and contingent liabilities.
(i) Useful lives and Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including goodwill) (refer note 2.2 to 2.5)
The estimated useful lives, residual value, depreciation/amortisation method and impairment are reviewed periodically as mentioned in note 2.2
to 2.5, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. This reassessment may result in change in
depreciation/amortisation and impairment expense in future periods.
Also refer note 39.
(ii) Allowance of doubtful trade receivable [also refer note 2.8(iv) & note 8]
The expected credit loss is mainly based on the ageing of the receivable balances, historical experience, industry practices and the business
environment in which the entity operates. The Company also considers the credit risk of the respective customer along with fact pattern of
collection of receivables and recognises expected credit loss (ECL) allowance based on probability of default rate at each Balance Sheet date
including ascertaining the financing component on those receivable balances, right from its initial recognition.
(iii) Valuation of deferred tax assets/liabilities
The Group reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets/liabilities at the end of each reporting period. The policy for the same has been
explained under Note 2.10.
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(iv) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). When
some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as
an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
In the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the expense relating to a provision is presented net of the amount recognised for a
reimbursement.
(v) Contingent liabilities
The contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events but is
not recognised because:
(i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or
(ii) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
The Group evaluates the obligation through Probable, Possible or Remote model
In making the evaluation for PPR, the Group takes into
consideration the industry perspective, legal and technical view, availability of documentation/agreements, interpretation of the matter,
independent opinion from professionals (specific matters) etc. which can vary based on subsequent events. The Group provides the liability in
the books for probable cases, while possible cases are shown as contingent liability. The remote cases are not disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements.
(vi) Leases
The Company recognizes a right-of-use lease asset and lease liability for operating and finance leases. The right-of-use asset is measured as the
sum of the lease liability, prepaid or accrued lease payments, any initial direct costs incurred and any other applicable amounts.
The calculation of the lease liability requires the Company to make certain assumptions for each lease, including lease term and discount rate
implicit in each lease, which could significantly impact the gross lease liability, the duration and the present value of the lease liability. When
calculating the lease term, the Company considers the renewal, cancellation and termination rights available to the Company and the lessor. The
Company determines the discount rate by calculating the incremental borrowing rate on a collateralized basis at the commencement of a lease
or upon a change in the lease term.
The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to
provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio for certain class of assets and align with the
business needs. Management
exercises significant judgement in determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised and
accordingly records the right of use assets and lease liability for those assets.
2.23 Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs
notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2022, as below.
Ind AS 16 Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing,
if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of
property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The
Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.
Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets The amendment specifies that the
of
a contract comprises
the
that relate directly to the
Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption
of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Company has evaluated the
amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.
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3

Property, plant and equipment
Land

Leasehold
Improvements

Plant and
machinery (see
footnote 1 & 2)

Computers &
other IT
hardware

Office
equipment

Furniture
and fitting

Vehicles

Total

Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Additions during the year
Disposal/ Adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2022

0.02
0.02

7.83
0.03
7.86

12,795.61
987.95
(702.18)
13,081.38

18.73
3.29
(2.09)
19.93

9.35
0.63
(0.32)
9.66

2.92
0.07
(0.04)
2.95

1.93
1.93

12,836.39
991.97
(704.63)
13,123.73

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Depreciation expense
Disposal/Adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2022

-

7.68
0.13
7.81

4,900.54
896.96
(350.49)
5,447.01

15.07
3.61
(1.98)
16.70

7.92
0.78
(0.32)
8.38

2.55
0.04
(0.01)
2.58

0.94
0.64
1.58

4,934.70
902.16
(352.80)
5,484.06

-

700.70
10.34
(301.72)
409.32

-

-

-

-

700.70
10.34
(301.72)
409.32

3.66
3.23

1.43
1.28

0.37
0.37

0.99
0.35

Provision for damaged/non-usable assets and Impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Additions during the year
Utilisation/reversal
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Net carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Balance as at March 31, 2022

0.02
0.02

Land

0.15
0.05

7,194.37
7,225.05

Leasehold
Improvements

Plant and
machinery (see
footnote 1 & 2)

Computers &
other IT
hardware

Office
equipment

Furniture
and fitting

Vehicles

7,200.99
7,230.35

Total

Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Additions during the year
Disposal/ Adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2021

0.02
0.02

9.10
0.07
(1.34)
7.83

12,410.03
1,032.50
(646.92)
12,795.61

16.97
3.75
(1.99)
18.73

7.93
1.23
0.19
9.35

2.82
0.10
2.92

2.05
0.05
(0.17)
1.93

12,448.92
1,037.60
(650.13)
12,836.39

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Depreciation expenses
Disposal/ Adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2021

-

7.80
0.42
(0.54)
7.68

4,470.71
868.47
(438.64)
4,900.54

13.73
3.21
(1.87)
15.07

6.87
0.94
0.11
7.92

2.39
0.06
0.10
2.55

0.47
0.64
(0.17)
0.94

4,501.97
873.74
(441.01)
4,934.70

-

625.70

-

-

-

-

625.70

-

176.43

-

-

-

-

176.43

-

(101.43)
700.70

-

-

-

-

(101.43)
700.70

3.24
3.66

1.06
1.43

0.43
0.37

1.58
0.99

Provision for damaged/non-usable assets and Impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Additions during the year
(see footnote 3)
Utilisation/reversal
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Net carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Balance as at March 31, 2021

0.02
0.02

1.30
0.15

7,313.62
7,194.37

7,321.25
7,200.99

Footnotes:
1. Plant and machinery comprises assets given on operating lease/licenses (refer note 38).
2. Includes site restoration obligation cost of Rs.137.05 (March 31, 2021 Rs. 133.21) and net carrying amount of Rs. 82.49 (March 31, 2021 Rs. 84.07) (refer note 2.2).
3. Also refer footnote (i) below note 6 for impairment review.
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4 Capital work in progress
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
102.28
124.78
(12.16)
(15.42)
90.12
109.36

Capital work in progress (CWIP)
Less: Provision for non-usable and damaged items
Closing balance [refer footnotes (i) & (ii) below]
Footnote:
(i) CWIP ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2022
Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP

Less than 1 year

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended
Total

78.41
78.41

1-2 years
7.26
7.26

2-3 years
3.54
3.54

More than 3
years
0.91
0.91

Total
90.12
90.12

More than 3
years
-

Total
109.36
109.36

As at March 31, 2021
Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP

Less than 1 year

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended
Total

98.85
98.85

1-2 years
7.17
7.17

2-3 years
3.34
3.34

(ii) There is no capital work in progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.
5 Goodwill
Opening Balance
Less: Write off (refer note 2.3)
Closing Balance
Amortization
Opening balance
Add: Amortisation during the year (refer note 26)
Less: Write off (refer note 2.3)
Closing balance

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
2,186.12
2,215.87
(36.52)
(29.75)
2,149.60
2,186.12

368.40
59.21
(26.21)
401.40
1,748.20

311.77
64.83
(8.20)
368.40
1,817.72

Impairment review
Impairment testing of goodwill is performed after allocating goodwill to a group of CGUs that is benefiting from synergies of business combination. Based
on testing it was concluded that the recoverable amount is higher that the carrying amount.
The measurement of the cash generating unit's value in use has been determined based on financial plan that have been used by management for
internal purposes. The planning horizon reflects the assumptions for short to-mid-term market conditions. [refer footnote (i) below note 6]
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6 Other Intangible Assets (Acquired):
Tenant
Relationships

Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Additions during the year [refer footnote (ii) below)
Disposal/ adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Amortization
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Amortisation expense (refer note 26)
Disposal/ adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Provision for Impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Additions during the year
Utilisation/reversal
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Net carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Balance as at March 31, 2022

Network
Intangibles

Softwares

License

Total

4,247.89
4,247.89

1,132.17
(78.03)
1,054.14

14.95
1.00
15.95

0.15
0.15

5,395.01
1.15
(78.03)
5,318.13

624.01
212.20
836.21

302.08
94.97
(18.90)
378.15

10.65
2.63
0.13
13.41

0.01
0.01

936.74
309.81
(18.77)
1,227.78

-

118.85
(48.99)
69.86

-

711.24
606.13

4.30
2.54

3,623.88
3,411.68

Tenant
Relationships

Network
Intangibles

Softwares

118.85
(48.99)
69.86

-

4,339.42
4,020.49

License

Total

Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Additions during the year
Disposal/ adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2021

4,247.89
4,247.89

1,162.24
(30.07)
1,132.17

13.06
2.44
(0.55)
14.95

-

5,423.19
2.44
(30.62)
5,395.01

Amortization
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Amortisation expense
Disposal/ adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2021

411.83
212.18
624.01

210.71
97.34
(5.97)
302.08

8.44
2.76
(0.55)
10.65

-

630.98
312.28
(6.52)
936.74

-

105.10
26.67
(12.92)
118.85

-

-

105.10
26.67
(12.92)
118.85

Provision for Impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Additions during the year
Utilisation/reversal
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Net carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Balance as at March 31, 2021

3,836.06
3,623.88

846.43
711.24

4.62
4.30

-

4,687.11
4,339.42
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Footnote:
(i) Impairment review (footnote to note 3, 5 and 6)
The measurement of the cash generating unit's value in use has been determined based on financial plan that have been used by management for
internal purposes. The planning horizon reflects the assumptions for short to-mid-term market conditions.
Key assumptions used in 'value in use' calculation are:
-Average (annual) lease up rate (LUR) of 0.06 for additional tenancy in future (March 31, 2021: 0.05)
-Discount rate (pre tax) of 10.09% (March 31, 2021: 10.53%)
-Terminal value with growth rate of 3% (March 31, 2021: 3%)
-Capital expenditures (augmentation/maintenance) based on financial plan of the Company
-Revenue and expenses based on actual or average of actual
Operating margins: Operating margins have been estimated based on past experience after considering incremental revenue arising out of lease up/
additional tenancy, the existing and new customers, though these benefits are partially offset by decline in tariff in a hyper competitive scenario. Margins
will be positively impacted from the efficiencies and initiatives driven by the Company; at the same time, factors like the higher churn, increased or
decrease in cost of operations may impact the margins negatively.
Discount rate: Discount rate reflects the current market assessment of the risk specific to a CGU or group of CGUs. The discount rate is estimated based
on the weighted average cost of capital for respective CGU or group of CGUs.
Capital expenditures: The cash flow forecasts of capital expenditure are based on past experience coupled with additional capital expenditure required as
considered in long term financial plan.
Also refer note 39.
(ii) On August 6, 2021, Company's subsidiary ActiveX Telebroadband Services Private Limited has been granted Unified License (Virtual Network Operators)-

7 Investments
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current investments
Unquoted - Investments carried at cost
Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries
ATC CSR Foundation India 10,000 (March 31, 2021 : 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each,
fully paid up (refer footnote A below)
Total non-current investments

0.01

0.01

0.01

0.01

Footnotes:
(A) On April 24, 2019, the Company incorporated ATC CSR Foundation India (ATC CSR), a wholly owned subsidiary company (Licensed under Section 8 of
the Companies Act, 2013) to carry out CSR activities in line with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended time to time. As per Memorandum
of Association of ATC CSR, upon winding up or dissolution of ATC CSR, any surplus remains after the satisfaction of all the debts and liabilities, any
property whatsoever, the same shall not be distributed amongst the members of ATC CSR but shall be given or transferred to such other company having
objects similar to the objects of ATC CSR or may be sold and proceeds thereof credited to the Rehabilitation and Insolvency Fund under section 269 of the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time. Accordingly, the Financial Statements of ATC CSR are not considered for consolidation since the
definition of control is not met as the Company's objective is not to obtain economic benefits from the activities of ATC CSR.
7a On May 12, 2020, the Company acquired 100% shares of Activex Telebroadband Services Private Limited, engaged in the business of providing active and
passive elements of telecom infrastructure services of Building Solutions, Public Wifi/Hotspot etc. in India, for cash consideration of Rs. 0.01.
8 Trade receivables
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current
Secured and considered good
Unsecured and considered good
Significant increase in credit risk
Credit impaired
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (expected credit loss allowance)
Total current trade receivables

1,854.34
933.11
(933.11)
1,854.34

1,269.96
560.48
(560.48)
1,269.96

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance
Balance at beginning of the year
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables (net of utilisation)
Balance at end of the year

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
560.48
431.28
372.63
129.20
933.11
560.48

Impairment loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument through the expected life of that financial instrument. [refer note 2.22 (ii)]
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 10 to 45 days from the date of receipt of invoice by customer.
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Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following periods from the invoice date
Less than 6 6 months -1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3
months
years
1,848.50
5.84
-

Particulars

Total
1,854.34

-

-

-

-

-

-

430.00

225.80

50.56

21.10

24.91

752.37

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

36.21

68.23

46.66

29.64

180.74

267.85

118.79

67.76

54.55

2,787.45

significant increase in credit risk

good
significant increase in credit risk

Gross Trade receivables

2,278.50

As at March 31, 2021
Outstanding for following periods from the invoice date
Less than 6 6 months -1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3
months
years
1,269.96
-

Particulars

Total
1,269.96

-

-

-

-

-

-

94.00

278.03

135.92

31.65

20.88

560.48

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

278.03

135.92

31.65

20.88

significant increase in credit risk

good
significant increase in credit risk

Gross Trade receivables

1,363.96

1,830.44
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9

Other financial assets
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current financial assets
Security deposits considered good (unsecured)
Margin money bank deposits
Interest accrued on margin money deposits
Total non-current financial assets

404.63
0.36
0.04
405.03

400.74
6.76
0.09
407.59

A

26.43
22.53
48.96

19.57
20.71
40.28

B

9.30
(9.30)
-

9.02
(9.02)
-

Other current financial assets
Security deposits (unsecured)
Considered good
Amount due from related parties (refer note 36)
Security deposits (unsecured)
Considered doubtful
Less: Allowance for doubtful deposits
Accrued revenue *
-infrastructure provisioning fees [net of ECL Rs. Nil (March 31, 2021: Rs. 16.01)]
-energy and other reimbursements (including expected recovery of
property tax) [refer note 35(IV) and net of ECL Rs. Nil (March 31, 2021: Rs. 9.70)]
C
Margin money bank deposits
Interest accrued on bank deposits (including margin money)
Other receivable
D
A+B+C+D

Total other current financial assets

354.80

147.36

845.53
1,200.33
12.61
9.27
1.24
23.12
1,272.41

833.72
981.08
14.73
7.59
1.51
23.83
1,045.19

* Classified as financial asset as right to consideration is unconditional upon passage of time.

10 Other assets
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Capital advances
Taxes and duties paid under protest
Revenue equalization reserve (refer note 38)
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Advances to suppliers and others
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances
Total other non-current assets
Current
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Balances with government authorities
Prepaid expenses
Advances to suppliers and others
Total other current assets

A

1.95
58.28
300.75
360.98

3.09
50.12
216.99
270.20

B
A+B

11.61
(11.61)
360.98

23.02
(23.02)
270.20

14.19
25.92
20.48
60.59

14.58
60.94
20.09
95.61
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11 Cash and cash equivalents
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance with banks
-In current accounts
- In fixed deposits
Balance in digital payment wallet
Total Cash and cash equivalents

239.66
3,238.90
6.17
3,484.73

254.61
2,998.55
3,253.16

12 Deferred Tax
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) Deferred Tax Liabilities on
Accounting and tax base difference on value of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets
b) Deferred Tax Assets on
Temporary difference on account of disallowances under the Income-tax Act, 1961
Unused tax credit (MAT credit entitlement)
Total Deferred tax assets

A

940.41

835.50

B

729.06
89.74
818.80

592.35
251.04
843.39

B-A

(121.61)

-

Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets - Net

7.89

Detail of deferred tax assets are as below:
Recognised in
Recognised in
Statement of
Other
March 31, 2021 Profit and Loss
March 31, 2022
Comprehensiv
[refer footnote
e income
to note 29]
Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Temporary difference on account of disallowances
under the Income-tax Act, 1961
Unused tax credit (MAT credit entitlement)
Deferred Tax Liabilities - Net

(835.50)
592.35

(104.91)
137.17

(0.46)

(940.41)
729.06

251.04

(161.30)

-

89.74

7.89

(129.04)

(0.46)

(121.61)

Recognised in
Recognised in
Statement of
Other
March 31, 2020 Profit and Loss
March 31, 2021
Comprehensiv
[refer footnote
e income
to note 29]
Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/assets on
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Temporary difference on account
of disallowances under the Income-tax Act, 1961
Unused tax credit (MAT credit entitlement)
Deferred Tax Assets - Net

(752.99)
511.62

(82.51)
80.63

0.10

(835.50)
592.35

313.24
71.87

(62.20)
(64.08)

0.10

251.04
7.89
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13 Share Capital
March 31, 2022
Numbers
Amount
Authorized equity share capital:
Equity share of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each

Authorized Preference share capital:
Cumulative redeemable optionally
partially convertible preference shares
(CROPCPS) of Rs. 10 (absolute amount)
each
Cumulative non-convertible redeemable
preference shares (CNCRPS) of Rs. 10
(absolute amount) each
Redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10
(absolute amount) each

March 31, 2021
Numbers
Amount

A

3,952,150,000
3,952,150,000

3,952.15
3,952.15

3,952,150,000
3,952,150,000

3,952.15
3,952.15

B

250,000,000

250.00

250,000,000

250.00

C

500,000,000

500.00

500,000,000

500.00

D

4,550,000

4.55

4,550,000

4.55

E=B+C+D
A+E
Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity capital:
Equity Share of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each fully paid up

754,550,000

754.55

754,550,000

754.55

4,706,700,000

4,706.70

4,706,700,000

4,706.70

883,519,398

883.52

883,519,398

883.52

883,519,398

883.52

883,519,398

883.52

a. Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
March 31, 2022
Nos
Amount
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year
883,519,398
883.52
At the end of the year
883,519,398
883.52

March 31, 2021
Nos
Amount
883,519,398
883,519,398

883.52
883.52

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity share having a par value of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled
to one vote per share at any general meeting of the shareholders. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
c. Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/ associates are as
below:
March 31, 2022
Equity shares:
-88,35,19,398 (March 31, 2021 : 80,97,71,398) equity shares of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each held
by ATC Asia Pacific Pte Ltd, the holding company including its nominee

883.52
883.52

March 31, 2021
809.77
809.77

d. Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five years
immediately preceding the reporting date:
i) On April 13, 2016, the Company converted 8,33,33,334 CROPCPS into 46,21,927 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each at an agreed
conversion price of Rs.180.30 (absolute amount) per share (including premium of Rs. 170.30 (absolute amount) per share) as per terms of the
Investment Agreement (IA) dated March 23, 2010 (as amended) read with Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) dated October 21, 2015.
ii) On April 19, 2018, the Company issued and allotted 221,183,459 equity shares of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each amounting to Rs. 221.18 to its
holding Company ATC Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd in pursuance to the Scheme of Amalgamation (refer footnote to note 33).
iii) No shares bought back by the Company during the last five years.

Page 22 of 45

ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees crores, unless stated otherwise)

e. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Nos
Equity shares of Rs. 10 (absolute amount) each fully paid
ATC Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.
Macquarie SBI Infrastructure Investments Pte. Limited

March 31, 2022
%

883,519,398
-

March 31, 2021
Nos
%

100.00%
-

809,771,398
61,444,554

91.66%
6.95%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholder/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares except 11 equity shares held by Nominee
(registered owner) for beneficial ownership of ATC Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.
f. Shares held by Promoters
Promoter name
ATC Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd.

Promoter name
i) ATC Asia Pacific Pte Ltd
ii) Macquarie SBI Infrastructure Investments Pte. Ltd
iii) SBI Macquarie Infrastructure Trust

As at March 31, 2022
Number of
% Change
% of total shares
shares
during the year
883,519,398
100%
8.34%
As at March 31, 2021
Number of
% Change
% of total shares
shares
during the year
809,771,398
91.66%
13.00%
61,444,554
6.95%
0.00%
12,303,446
1.39%
0.00%

g. For terms of securities convertible into equity shares - refer note 14
14 Compulsory Convertible Debentures
March 31, 2022
10,53,96,365 (March 31, 2021: 10,53,96,365) Compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs)
of Rs. 100 (absolute amount) each

1,053.96

March 31, 2021
1,053.96

Note:
Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation of erstwhile ATC India Tower Corporation Private Limited and its 100% subsidiary McCoy Developers
Private Limited, ATC Tower Company of India Private Limited,Transcend Infrastructure Private Limited and its 100% subsidiary ATC Telecom Tower
Corporation Private Limited with the Company w.e.f. April 21, 2016 (Appointed date). Compulsory Convertible Debenture (CCDs) were issued to
Shareholder (ATC Asia Pacific Pte Ltd.) on April 19, 2018, which have a par value of Rs. 100 (absolute amount) and are entitled to receive fully paid
equity share at a price of Rs. 216 (absolute amount) per share (i.e. the fair market value of the equity shares of the Company on the appointed
date of the Scheme of Amalgamation) upon conversion. As per the Scheme the CCDs shall be convertible into equity shares of the Company as per
the terms as may be decided by the Board of the Company. The CCDs will not carry any voting rights. However, the equity shares to be received
by the CCDs holders pursuant to conversion of CCDs shall rank pari pasu with then existing Equity shares of the Company.
The CCDs shall not earn any interest, provided that if the Company declares dividend on Equity shares for a Financial Year, then interest shall
become due and payable on CCDs simultaneously with or after the dividend on the Equity shares being paid. Such interest amount shall (subject
to the maximum interest rate that may be lawfully paid to a foreign holder of CCDs) be equal to the amount that the holder of the CCDs would
have been entitled to receive as dividend if such CCDs had been converted into equity shares immediately prior to the record date for purposes of
such declaration of dividend.
CCDS are mandatorily convertible after 10 years from the date of issuance (being Mandatory conversion date i.e. April 18, 2028) unless voluntarily
converted fully/partly earlier, however, conversion date can be extended for such further term as may be mutually agreed upon between
Debenture holders and the Company. Each outstanding CCD shall automatically and mandatorily be converted by the Company in to equity shares
on the mandatory conversion date.
ATC Asia Pacific Pte Ltd. (Holding Company) shall have the right , at any time after the expiry of 90 days from April 01,2019 and prior to mandatory
conversion date, to issue "notice of conversion" to the Company requesting the conversion of all or some of the CCDs in accordance with and
subject to the terms & conditions mentioned under Schedule-V of the Implementation Agreement dated April 12, 2016. The Holding Company
has not exercised the right for conversion till date.
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15 Long term borrowings - at amortised cost
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Debentures (unsecured)
Issued to related party : 42,000 (March 31, 2021 : 42,000) Unsecured, redeemable,
listed, rated, fully paid non-convertible debentures
of Rs. 10,00,000 (absolute amount) each (refer footnote A)
Unsecured loans
Loans from related parties -external commercial borrowings (ECB)
(refer footnote B)
Gross Borrowings
Current maturity of long term debt : amount disclosed under the head "other financial
liabilities"
Unsecured loans
from related parties -external commercial borrowings (ECB) (refer footnote B)
Non-current borrowings

(I)

4,200.00

4,200.00

(II)

4,154.50

4,331.70

(III)= (I+II)

8,354.50

8,531.70

IV
III-IV

177.20
8,177.30

177.20
8,354.50

A. Particulars of terms of repayment for Debentures issued to related party (unsecured)
i) Debentures issued on February 5, 2018 and are redeemable at par at the end of 8 years from the date of allotment, viz. February 5, 2026.
ii) The Company has an option to redeem these debentures earlier. However no redemption will take place before the end of 3 years and
9 months from the date of allotment.
iii) Terms of repayment are set out as below:
Terms and conditions
Date of maturity
No of
Outstanding
instalments
Balance
remaining
4,200.00
Repayable at the end of tenure of Debentures
February- 2026
1
4,200.00
iv) Interest on Debentures is payable quarterly at fixed rate of 8.50% p.a.
B. Terms of loans from the related party - External commercial borrowings (ECB in INR) (unsecured)
Terms and conditions
Moratorium Date of maturity No of instalments
period from the
remaining
date of
disbursement
(in months)
a. Repayable in eight equal half yearly instalments of Rs 52.50
36
September-2023
3
and last instalment of Rs 55.00
b. Repayable in eight equal half yearly instalments of Rs 36.10
36
March-2024
4
and last instalment of Rs 36.20
c. Repayable at the end of tenure
N.A.
March-2026
1
d. Repayable at the end of tenure
N.A.
June-2026
1

Outstanding
Balance

160.00
144.50
958.00
2,892.00
4,154.50

Interest on above ECB is payable half yearly at fixed rate of 8.5% p.a.
C. During the year the Company has not defaulted in repayment of principal and interest of long term borrowings.
D. Amount undrawn from cash credit and other credit facilities as on the balance sheet date Rs. 769.86 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 661.47)
16 Financial liabilities
Non-current
Security deposits from customers
Total non-current financial liabilities
Current
Trade payables (refer footnote A below)
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer footnote B below)
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
A
Other financial liabilities
Security deposits from customers
Payables towards purchase of property,plant and equipment and Intangible assets
(refer footnote B)
Total current financial liabilities

B
A+B

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

251.19
251.19

292.01
292.01

26.34
798.73
825.07

14.90
831.51
846.41

94.16
93.25

189.24
216.05

187.41
1,012.48

405.29
1,251.70
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Foot note:
A. Trade payables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following periods
Not due*
(i) MSME
(ii) Others
(iv)Disputed dues - Others
Total

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

82.68
435.12
1.37
9.81

3.11
176.20
4.64
1.32

0.05
38.45
3.51
1.20

0.02
21.46
4.25
2.02

0.01
22.15
10.75
6.93

85.87
693.38
24.52
21.28

528.98

185.27

43.21

27.75

39.84

825.05

Not due*
Billed dues:
(i) MSME
(ii) Others

Less than 1
year

Less than 1
year

Total

0.21
50.54
5.05
1.62

0.11
16.79
1.72
0.31

0.01
20.09
9.06
6.44

58.61
745.45
23.13
19.22

559.85
174.61
57.42
Total
* Includes provisions for which the Company has contractual and/or constructive liability.

18.93

35.60

846.41

(iv)Disputed dues - Others

56.58
489.26
3.83
10.18

1.70
168.77
3.47
0.67

As at March 31, 2021
Outstanding for following periods
More than 3
1-2 years
2-3 years
years

B. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Amounts due to micro, and small enterprises under MSMED based on the
information available with the Company and the confirmation received
from the creditors till the year end:
a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to
any supplier as at the end of each accounting year:
b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer under the MSMED Act,2006
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year :

Principal amount
due
Interest due
thereon
Principal amount
Adjusted during
the year

c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the
principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act,2006 not paid).
d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year;
e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act,2006.

51.94
0.05

0.47
-

12.08
-

20.36
-

0.15

0.28

1.90

1.68

14.15

12.47

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected
by the Management.
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17 Other liabilities
March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

5.27
5.27

4.39
4.39

1.64
5.13
136.45
143.22

1.37
6.37
136.53
144.27

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

A

19.01
7.77
26.78

20.20
8.91
29.11

B
A+B

485.44
512.22

459.53
488.64

3.56
2.51
6.07

2.01
2.09
4.10

777.57
777.57
783.64

684.11
684.11
688.21

Non-current
Unearned revenue
Total other non-current liabilities
Current
Unearned revenue
Advance from customers
Statutory dues payable
Total other current liabilities
18 Provisions
Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences
Others
Provision for site restoration (see foot note 'a' below)
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences
A
Others
Provision for contingencies (see foot note 'b' below)
B
A+B

a) Provision for site restoration
The Company uses various premises on lease/license to install the passive telecom infrastructure facilities. A provision is recognized for the costs
to be incurred for the dismantling of towers installed on sites and restoration of sites at the end of its useful life. The following table sets forth the
movement in provisions:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Added during the year
Add: Finance costs during the year (refer note 27)
Less: Utilised/reversal during the year
Balance at the end of the year

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
459.53
428.24
8.97
15.72
38.68
35.14
(21.74)
(19.57)
485.44
459.53

b) Provision for contingencies
Provision for contingencies represents probable outflow of resources for matters under litigation. The following table sets forth the
movement in provisions:
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
684.11
591.36
Balance at the beginning of the year
139.94
152.73
Add: Additions during the year (gross of estimated recovery) [refer note 35(IV)]
(46.48)
(59.98)
Less: Utilised/adjusted during the year
777.57
684.11
Balance at the end of the year
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19 Revenue from operations
Infrastructure provisioning fee (IP Fees) [also refer note 38 (i) and 40]
Energy and other recoveries
Total

March 31, 2022
5,425.52
3,640.63
9,066.15

March 31, 2021
5,199.04
3,271.56
8,470.60

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

20 Other income
a) Interest income
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortized cost:
- Interest on bank deposits
Income tax refunds
Others
A

84.65
20.00
7.37
112.02

68.02
37.94
19.11
125.07

B
A+B

50.48
23.48
87.25
6.26
167.47
279.49

123.86
17.24
0.70
1.85
143.65
268.72

b) Other gains and losses
Provisions/Liabilities no longer required written back
Gain on retirement of right-of-use assets (net)
Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment
Net gain on foreign currency transaction and translation
Miscellaneous Income
Total
21 Energy charges
Networks
Others
Total

March 31, 2022
3,419.70
1.84
3,421.54

March 31, 2021
3,145.68
1.66
3,147.34

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

22 Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery
Others
Total

518.56
23.42
541.98

531.67
21.40
553.07

23 Employee benefits expenses
Salaries, allowances and bonus
Stock based compensation (refer note 32)
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 31)
Gratuity (refer note 31)
Staff welfare expenses
Less : Project expenditure capitalised
Total

March 31, 2022
225.07
60.49
8.23
4.17
4.34
302.30
(10.35)
291.95

March 31, 2021
227.90
55.37
8.27
4.22
6.18
301.94
(19.43)
282.51
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24 Provision/write off/impairment for property,plant and equipment,intangible assets,capital work in progress and right-of-use assets
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2021
i) Loss on sale/write off of
a) Property, plant and equipment*
267.82
87.19
Capital work in progress#
14.19
15.87
Less: Provision utilized/adjusted during the year
(254.58)
(101.43)
A
27.43
1.63
ii) Write off of:
Goodwill (refer note 2.3)
10.31
21.55
Network Intangibles
59.13
24.10
Less: Provision utilized/adjusted during the year
(40.47)
(12.92)
C
28.97
32.73
iii) Impairment expenses/(reversal)
Property, plant and equipment
(40.06)
176.43
Network Intangibles
(8.52)
26.67
Right-of-use assets
7.64
3.04
D
(40.94)
206.14
Total

A+B+C+D

15.46

240.50

*Includes cost of site dismantling Rs 16.50 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 11.70)
# Includes loss on write off of abandoned sites Rs. 14.19 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 3.25)
25 Write off of assets and impairment of financial assets
Bad debts/advances written off

A

Provision for bad and doubtful debts/other financial assets and advances
Provision created during the year
Less: Provision utilised during the year
Total

B
A+B

March 31, 2022
23.15

March 31, 2021
17.58

347.40
(11.59)
335.81
358.96

128.57
(9.17)
119.40
136.98

March 31, 2022
902.16
975.48
59.21
309.81
2,246.66

March 31, 2021
873.74
976.63
64.83
312.28
2,227.48

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

26 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Depreciation on ROU assets (refer note 38)
Amortisation of Goodwill (refer note 5)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 6)
Total
27 Finance costs
Interest expense for financial liabilities at amortised cost
-On ECB loans from related parties
-On non convertible debentures (NCD) from related party
Unwinding of discount on ARO provisions
Interest on lease liability (refer note 38)
Total

364.43
357.00
38.68
476.48
1,236.59

379.49
356.27
35.14
488.58
1,259.48
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28 Other expenses
March 31, 2022
66.80
18.69
67.33
23.40
1.81
15.77
0.59
22.82
34.30
2.26
40.30
4.78
298.85
(8.71)
290.14

Professional and legal fees*
Travel and conveyance
Rates and taxes
Information technology expenses
Communication expenses
Insurance expenses
Printing and stationery
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenses (refer note 41)
Provision for contingencies (net of expected recovery) [refer note 35(IV)]
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translation
Lease/license expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Less : Project expenditure capitalised
Total
* Professional & legal fees include payment to statutory auditors :As auditors (for audit and limited reviews)
Taxation matters (for tax audit)
Other services including Group reporting and certification
Reimbursement of expenses

1.90
0.20
1.60
0.01
3.71

March 31, 2021
71.21
13.36
61.72
22.65
2.98
14.78
0.61
24.08
24.54
23.81
7.47
267.21
(8.28)
258.93
1.90
0.20
1.52
0.01
3.63

29 Tax expense
March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax
Income tax expense calculated @ 34.944% (March 31, 2021: 34.944%)
Adjustment for items not deductible in computing taxable income
-CSR expenses
-Interest on MSMED
-Others

942.36
329.30

633.03
221.21

A

3.99
0.64
0.18
334.11

5.52
(1.62)
(1.34)
223.77

B

0.39
(31.49)
(31.10)

(22.74)
(16.81)
(39.55)

A+B

303.01

184.22

Tax adjustments pertaining to earlier years
Deferred Tax impact on change in tax rates for the year (refer footnote below)

Total tax expense recognised during the year

Total

Footnote:
The Company, based on its current assessment, is likely to exercise the option of a lower corporate tax rate provided as per section 115BAA
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 from financial year 2023-24 (March 21, 2021 : 2024-25)onwards. Accordingly, deferred tax liabilities (net) have
been measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the period when the liabilities are expected to be utilised.
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30 Financial Instruments
a) Capital management
The Company's objective while managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern (so that it enables to provide
returns and create value for its shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders), support business stability and growth, ensure adherence
to the covenants and restrictions imposed by lenders and/or relevant laws and regulations, maintain an optimal and efficient capital
structure so as to reduce the cost of capital. The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (long term and short term borrowings
offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the Company.
b) Gearing ratio
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio computed at the end of the year was as follows:
Long term borrowings (including current maturities)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt (A)
Total Equity (B)
Net debt to equity ratio (A)/(B)

March 31, 2022
8,354.50
(3,484.73)
4,869.77

March 31, 2021
8,531.70
(3,253.16)
5,278.54

9,261.56

8,621.36

0.53

0.61

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

431.06
12.97
354.80
845.53
22.53
9.31
1.24
1,854.34
3,484.73
7,016.51

420.31
21.49
147.36
833.72
20.71
7.68
1.51
1,269.96
3,253.16
5,975.90

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

8,354.50
251.19
5,776.37
825.07
94.16
93.25

8,531.70
292.01
5,684.19
846.41
189.24
216.05

15,394.54

15,759.60

Categories of financial instruments
c) Financial assets
Measured at Amortised cost
Security deposits
Margin money deposits
Accrued revenue - infrastructure provisioning fees
Accrued reimbursement of energy charges
Amount due from related party
Interest accrued on deposits (including margin money)
Other receivable
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalent
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost
Carrying cost approximate the fair value
d) Financial liabilities
Measured at Amortised cost
Long term borrowings (including current maturities) (refer note 15)
Security deposits from customers (non-current)
Lease liabilities (refer note 38)
Trade payables
Security deposits from customers (current)
Payables towards purchase of property, plant and equipment and Intangible
assets (current)
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Carrying cost approximate the fair value
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e) Fair value (FVTPL)
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, other current assets and
other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The fair values of the FVTPL financial assets are derived from published NAVs available in active markets.
f) Financial risk management objectives
The
principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and security deposit received. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
operations. The
principal financial assets include
investments, margin money deposits, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and security deposit paid that derive directly
from its operations.
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
management oversees the management of these risks.
The management reviews financial risks and design for appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The management
ensures that the
financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are
g) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and FVTPL investments.
The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.
The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations,
provisions and the non-financial assets.
h) Foreign currency risk
Foreign exchange risk arises on all recognized monetary assets and liabilities and any highly probable forecasted transactions, which are
denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the Company. Foreign currency exposure mainly arises from trade payables.
The carrying amounts of the unhedged foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting year are as
follows.
Currency
USD (in crores)

Trade payables

March 31, 2022
0.81

March 31, 2021
0.75

Foreign currency sensitivity
Currency

Change in
currency
exchange rate

Effect on
profit/(loss) before
tax

Effect on
equity (OCI)

For the year ended March 31, 2022

INR (in crores)

+5%
-5%

(3.07)
3.07

-

For the year ended March 31, 2021

INR (in crores)

+5%
-5%

(2.74)
2.74

-

i) Interest rate risk
The Company has borrowings at fixed rate of interest and hence there is no interest rate risk applicable to the Company.
j) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure to the credit
risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivable Rs. 1,854.34 (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 1,269.96) and unbilled revenue amounting of
Rs. 1,200.33 (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 981.08).
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i) Trade receivables
The customers of the Company mainly includes telecom operators which constitute 99% of the total revenue. These telecom operators are
well established companies in India. The expected credit loss is mainly based on the ageing of the receivable balances, historical experience,
industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates. The Company also considers the credit risk of the respective
customer along with fact pattern of collection of receivables and recognises expected credit loss (ECL) allowance based on probability of
default rate at each Balance Sheet date including ascertaining the financing component on those receivable balances, right from its initial
recognition. The Company closely monitors market conditions and dues from operators if not received within the credit period agreed as per
master service agreement. Any foreseeable risk of collection is immediately provided for (refer note 8, 25 and 39).
ii) Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk with banks is managed by the
treasury department in accordance with the
policy. Investments of surplus
funds are made only with approved parties and within credit limits assigned to each party. The limits are set to minimize the concentration
k) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligation. The objective of the liquidity risk management is to
maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities, continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and by matching the maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to
refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding to refinance existing
debt maturing within 12 months.
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the
undiscounted payments.
Particulars
Borrowings *
Trade payables
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Total

<1 year
883.57
825.07
1,223.14
187.41
3,119.19

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the
undiscounted payments.
Particulars
Borrowings *
Trade payables
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Total

<1 year
898.63
846.41
1,254.85
405.29
3,405.18

financial liabilities as on March 31, 2022 based on contractual

1 to 5 years
10,268.70
3,669.66
184.44
14,122.80

> 5 years
3,384.40
66.75
3,451.15

Total
11,152.27
825.07
8,277.20
438.60
20,693.14

Carrying value
8,354.50
825.07
5,776.37
438.60
15,394.54

financial liabilities as on March 31, 2021 based on contractual
1 to 5 years
8,198.82
3,907.82
198.24
12,304.88

> 5 years
2,953.46
3,384.45
93.77
6,431.68

Total
12,050.91
846.41
8,547.12
697.30
22,141.74

Carrying value
8,531.70
846.41
5,684.19
697.30
15,759.60

* Includes Non-current borrowings, Current maturities of non-current borrowings and committed interest payments.
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31 Employee benefit plans
Defined contribution plan

In accordance with the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, employees are entitled to receive benefits
under the Provident Fund. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at a predetermined rate of an
basic salary. All employees have an option to make additional voluntary contributions. These contributions are made to the
fund administered and managed by the Government of India (GOI). The Company has no further obligations under the fund managed by
the GOI beyond its monthly contributions which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period they are incurred.
The total expense recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss of Rs. 8.23 (for the year ended March 31, 2021: Rs. 8.27) represents
contributions paid/payable to these plans by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plans. As at year end, contributions of Rs.
1.53 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 1.71) due in respect of 2021-2022 (2020-2021) reporting period had not been paid over to the plans. The
amounts were paid subsequent to the end of the respective reporting periods.
Defined benefit plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on
departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The
following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the amounts
recognised in the balance sheet for the plan.
These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.
a) Investment risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.
b) Interest risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.
c) Longevity risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants

d) Salary risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an
No other post-retirement benefits are provided to the employees.
i. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of benefit obligations:
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year
Service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Benefit obligation at the end of the year

March 31, 2022
24.37
2.76
1.55
(2.50)
(1.31)
24.87

March 31, 2021
21.24
2.95
1.40
(1.51)
0.29
24.37

Changes in the fair value of the Plan Assets
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year
Investment income
Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net interest expense
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year

March 31, 2022
2.16
0.14
2.30

March 31, 2021
2.03
0.13
2.16

March 31, 2022
2.76
(0.14)
1.55
4.17

March 31, 2021
2.95
(0.13)
1.40
4.22

ii. Amount charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Components of net benefit cost
Service cost
Return on plan assets
Interest cost
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iii. Amount charged to the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
- change in financial assumptions
- experience variance (i.e. actual experiences assumptions)
- change in demographic assumptions
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized during the year
iv. The assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity plan for the year are as below:
Salary Rise
Discount Rate
Attrition Rate:
Upto 30 years
31 to 44 years
Above 44 years

0.39
(1.66)
(0.04)
(1.31)

0.48
(0.19)
0.29

6.50%
6.65%

6.00%
6.35%

17.47%
13.99%
11.80%

13.00%
10.00%
6.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors,such as supply and demand in the employment market.
Sensitivity Analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and
mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the
end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

March 31, 2022
24.87

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

(i) Discount Rate (+ / - 1%)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
(ii) Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
(iii) Attrition Rate (- / + 50%)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
(iv) Mortality Rate (- / + 10%)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

March 31, 2022
Decrease
Increase
26.38
23.50
6.1%
-5.5%
23.49
26.37
-5.6%
6.0%
24.95
24.76
0.3%
-0.4%
24.87
24.87
0.0%
0.0%

March 31, 2021
24.37

March 31, 2021
Decrease
Increase
26.45
22.54
8.5%
-7.5%
22.52
26.44
-7.6%
8.5%
24.34
24.36
-0.1%
-0.1%
24.37
24.37
0.0%
0.0%

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely
that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
There is no change in the method of valuation as compared to previous year.
Each year management on periodic basis performs asset liability comparison to determine the adequacy of liquid funds which may be
required to settle the obligation as per the maturity profile of the plan.
Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows)

6 years

Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):
1 year
2 to 5 years
6 to 10 years
More than 10 years

March 31, 2022
3.56
12.83
11.30
11.34

Page 34 of 45

ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rupees Crores, unless stated otherwise)
32 Stock based compensation
I) The Company does not provide any equity-based compensation to its employees. However, the parent company, American Tower Corporation
maintains equity incentive plans that provide for the grant of stock-based awards to its directors, officers and employees. The 2007
Equity Incentive Plan
provides for the grant of non-qualified and incentive stock options, as well as restricted stock units, restricted
stock and other stock-based awards. Exercise prices in the case of non-qualified and incentive stock options are not less than the fair value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant.
A. Details of plan of employee stock option and restricted stock units are given below:
A stock option gives an employee, the right to purchase shares of American Tower Corporation common stock at a fixed price for a specific period
of time. The grant price (or strike/exercise price) is fixed and is equal to the closing price of American Tower Corporation common stock on the date
of grant. Stock options expire ten years from the date of grant and vest in annual instalments of 25% over a period of four years.
A restricted stock unit provides an employee with a share of American Tower Corporation common stock upon vesting. Restricted stock units vest
in annual instalments of 25% over a period of four years. Dividends will accrue with each restricted stock unit award granted subsequent to January
1, 2012.
Effective January 1, 2013, the parent
Compensation Committee adopted a death, disability and retirement benefits program in
connection with equity awards that provides for the amendment of stock options and restricted stock units granted on or after January 1, 2013, to
accelerate vesting and to extend exercise periods upon an
death or permanent disability, or upon an
qualified retirement
provided certain eligibility criteria are met. Accordingly, for grants made after January 1, 2013, the Company will recognize compensation expense
for all stock-based compensation over the shorter of (i) the four-year vesting period or (ii) the period from the date of grant to the date the
employee becomes eligible for such retirement benefits, which may occur upon grant.
B. Details of restricted stock units which were granted during the year:
Date of grant
Type of arrangement

Restricted Stock Units

March 31, 2022
Equity granted Fair market value on
(Nos)
the grant date
(absolute amount)

October 1, 2021

1,316

January 3, 2022

322

March 1, 2022

323

March 10, 2022

31,718

Total

US $ / (Rs)
$266.61
Rs. 19,762.47
$286.38
Rs. 21,266.58
$228.55
Rs. 17303.52
$232.80
Rs. 17,439.51

33,679

Date of grant

March 31, 2021
Equity granted
(Nos)

June 1, 2020

76

March 10, 2021

36,319

Total

Fair market value
on the grant date
(absolute amount)
US $ / (Rs)
$264.31
Rs. 19,979.85
$204.42
Rs. 14,904.26

36,395

Vesting conditions : 1/4th of the shares typically vest each year over a period of four years starting from the date of grant.
Remaining contractual life in years is 1.97 years (March 31, 2021: 1.92 years).
C. Summary of activity under the plan for the year ended are given below:
March 31, 2022
Employee stock options

Number of Units

March 31, 2021

Weighted-average
grant date fair value
(absolute amount)
In USD

Number of Units

In Rs

Weighted-average
grant date fair value
(absolute amount)
In USD

In Rs

Outstanding at the
beginning of the year

43,447

94.31

6,895.00

82,950

92.62

7,004.99

Exercised during the year

(9,280)

94.62

7,171.29

(39,503)

90.78

6,636.93

Outstanding at the end of
the year

34,167

94.22

7,140.87

43,447

94.31

6,895.00
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Weighted average remaining contractual life is 3.63 years (March 31, 2021 : 4.57 years)
Stock-based compensation cost is measured at the accounting measurement date based on the fair value of the award and the fair value is
recognized as an expense over the service period, which generally represents the vesting period. The expense recognized over the service period is
required to include an estimate of the awards that will not fully vest and be forfeited.
The fair value of a stock option is estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model that takes into account a number of
assumptions at the accounting measurement date including the exercise price, the expected life of the option, the volatility of the underlying stock,
expected dividends, and the risk-free interest rate over the expected life of the option. The risk-free treasury rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield
approximating the estimated life in effect at the accounting measurement date. The expected life (estimated period of time outstanding) was
estimated using the vesting term and historical exercise behavior of employees. The expected volatility was based on historical volatility for a period
equal to the expected life of the stock options. The expected annual dividend was based upon the mid-point of American Tower
expected future dividend yield.
D. Employee restricted stock units (RSUs)

Restricted stock units

Outstanding at the
beginning of the year
Granted during the year
Vested during the year
Forfeited during the year
Outstanding at the end of
the year

Number of Units
83,620

March 31, 2022
Weighted-average
grant date fair value
(absolute amount)
In USD
In Rs
202.49
14,804.04

Number of Units
87,867

March 31, 2021
Weighted-average
grant date fair value
(absolute amount)
In USD
In Rs
183.14
13,850.63

33,679
(34,548)
(2,747)

234.59
188.73
209.91

17,779.47
14,303.50
15,908.77

36,395
(36,747)
(3,895)

204.55
163.32
154.70

14,954.65
11,940.33
11,310.12

80,004

221.69

16,801.89

83,620

202.49

14,804.04

The fair value of restricted stock units is based on the fair value of the common stock on the grant date. The expense is based on the fair market
value of the units awarded at the date of grant, times the number of shares subject to the units awarded.
The employee compensation expense for stock options and restricted stock units during the year ended March 31, 2022 Rs. 59.72 (March 31, 2021
Rs. 54.35). In terms of the agreement dated April 23, 2019 entered into with the Ultimate holding company, Rs. 60.63 (March 31, 2021 Rs. 53.52) is
payable to them.
II) In the financial year 2013-14, American Tower Corporation, the Ultimate Holding Company, had introduced an Employee Share Purchase Plan
namely
2000 Employee Stock Purchase
This Plan gives an opportunity to the employees of the Group to purchase shares of
class A common stock of American Tower Corporation, USA, listed on New York Stock Exchange at a 15% discount to the fair market value. During
the year the Company has recorded Rs. 0.77 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 1.02) as expense and Rs. 0.79 (March 31, 2021 Rs. 1.00) is payable to the Ultimate
holding company.
Employees who elect to participate in this program have to contribute by way of deductions from their Salary on an after tax basis. This
contribution is then used to purchase shares at the end of the window period. As at the end of the year, 249 employees (March 31, 2021 : 296
employees) have opted for this scheme and contribution amounting to Rs. 3.70 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 3.66) was deducted during the year from their
salaries towards this scheme.
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33 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
March 31, 2022
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders before other
comprehensive income
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS*
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders in calculating
diluted EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS*
Basic earning per share (Rs.) (absolute amount)
Diluted earning per share (Rs.) (absolute amount)
Nominal value per equity share (Rs.) (absolute amount)

March 31, 2021

639.35

448.81

932,314,011
639.35

932,314,011
448.81

932,314,011
6.86
6.86
10/-

932,314,011
4.81
4.81
10/-

*EPS has been calculated after taking into account the conversion price of Compulsory Convertible Debentures Rs.
216 (absolute amount) i.e. fair market value of the equity shares of the Company on the Appointed date in terms of
the Scheme of Amalgamation of erstwhile ATC India Tower Corporation Private Limited and its 100% subsidiary
McCoy Developers Private Limited, ATC Tower Company of India Private Limited,Transcend Infrastructure Private
Limited and its 100% subsidiary ATC Telecom Tower Corporation Private Limited with the Company w.e.f. April 21,
2016.
34 Capital Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital accounts and not provided for (net of capital advances)

March 31, 2022
287.27

March 31, 2021
400.17 c

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

35 Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities in respect of:
I Income Tax [refer (i) and (v) below]
II Indirect Tax :
-Sales Tax / VAT / Entry Tax /GST [refer (ii) below]
-Service Tax [refer (iii) below]
III Other legal matters (Civil, criminal and writ petition)
IV Property Taxes and Municipal Charges

102.22

94.09

262.46
276.87
912.26
912.26
200.14
171.66
(refer (iv) below)

(i) Income Tax cases represent amount demanded for assessment years 2006-07, 2008-09, 2010-11, 2011-12,
2012-13, 2013-14 and 2014-15 from the Company. The amount relates to various matters relating to
deductions of tax at source, depreciation claim and minimum alternate tax (MAT).
(ii) Sales tax/VAT/Entry tax demand mainly relate to issues of applicability, submission of relevant forms etc.
GST demand mainly relate to mismatch of input tax credit pertaining to FY 2018-19 and 2019-20.
(iii) Service Tax amount represents demand notices and show cause notices received in relation to input credit
taken on Tower, Shelters and other related assets, for period upto June 2017 which have been replied to.
The Company has preferred an appeal for Rs.772.82 (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 772.82) (excluding penalties and
interest as may be imposed). Also, a sum of Rs. 139.44 relating to period April 2015 to June 30, 2017 (March
31, 2021 : Rs. 139.44) have been availed and utilised, is shown as contingent liability, which is in line with
above demands and notices.
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(iv) In the matter of levy of property tax on towers, the
Supreme Court (SC) of India, on December 16,
2016, set aside the judgement of Gujarat High Court and clarified that, though tower is certainly not a
in common parlance, but for purposes of taxes on lands and buildings, tower will be building and
thus tower is amenable to property tax.
At the same time, the Hon'ble SC allowed the Companies to go back to appropriate forums to agitate the
issue of retrospectively and quantum, thus allowing the Company a window to legally object to the demands
of the municipalities. The Company considers the exposure of these amounts as not quantifiable mainly in
view of the retrospective application and method of computation. However, the Company has recorded the
estimated provision for Property Tax and Municipal Charges at the end of the period is Rs. 366.05 (March 31,
2021 : Rs. 334.09) net of expected recovery of Rs. 399.66 (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 340.50) as per Master
Service Agreement (MSA) in respect of these contingencies.
(v) On December 5, 2016, the Company received an income tax assessment order of Essar Telecom
Infrastructure Private Limited (ETIPL) from the Income Tax Department (the Tax Department) for the year
ended on March 31, 2008 for the amount of Rs. 475 (on the date of assessment) related to capital
contributions. The Company challenged the assessment before the Office of Commissioner of Income Tax Appeals, which ruled in the
favour during January 2018. However, the Tax Department appealed
against this ruling at a higher appellate authority. The Company estimates that there is a more likely than not
probability that the
position will be sustained upon appeal. Additionally, the assessment was
made with respect to transactions that took place in the tax year commencing in 2007, prior to the
acquisition of ETIPL. Under the
definitive acquisition agreement of ETIPL, the seller is
obligated to indemnify and defend the Company with respect to any tax-related liability that may arise from
activities prior to March 31, 2010.
Footnotes to note 35 above:
(a) Future ultimate outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in respect of the matters which are
uncertain as it depends on the final outcome of the matters involved.
(b) As per terms of
Agreement dated November 13, 2017 with Idea Cellular Limited, the Company
can claim loss from all contingent liabilities related to Idea Cellular Infrastructure Services Limited (now
known as ATC Infrastructure Services Private Limited) in excess over Rs. 32.50 from Idea Cellular Limited
subject to conditions mentioned in Agreement.
(c) As per terms of 'Business Transfer Agreement' (BTA) dated November 13, 2017 with Vodafone India Limited
and Vodafone Mobile Services Limited (both the entities subsequently merged with Idea Cellular Limited,
now known as Vodafone Idea Limited), the Company can claim loss, if any, from acquired contingent
liabilities in excess over Rs. 32.50 from Vodafone Idea Limited subject to conditions mentioned in BTA.
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36 Related party disclosures
In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS - 24
Party
the names of the related parties where control
exists and/ or with whom transactions have taken place during the year and description of relationships, as identified and
certified by the management.
A. Names of Related parties and descriptions of relationship where control exists:
(i) Ultimate Holding Company
(ii) Intermediate Holding Company
(iii) Holding Company
(iv) Subsidiary Company

: American Tower Corporation, USA
: American Towers LLC, USA
: American Towers International Inc., USA
: ATC Asia Pacific Pte Ltd, Singapore
: ATC CSR Foundation India

(v) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place:
a. Fellow Subsidiary Company

: ATC International Financing B.V., Netherlands
: ATC India Infrastructure Private Limited

b. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

: Amit Sharma, Director (upto February 28, 2021)
: Vijay Agarwal, Chief financial officer
: Ashwani Khillan, Managing Director
: Geeta Puri Seth, Company Secretary (upto December 27, 2021)
: Vinod Negi, Company Secretary (w.e.f. February 11, 2022)
: Rajesh Madan (Alternate director to Ms Brenna Dugan Jones)
(upto December 31, 2021)

c. Enterprise having significant influence

: Tata Teleservices Limited (upto December 16, 2020)
: Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited (upto December 16, 2020)

B. Details of transactions during the year with the above parties:
Nature of transactions
I. Transactions during the year
a. Infrastructure provisioning fees (including exit fee)
Enterprise having Significant Influence
Tata Teleservices Limited
Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited
b. Provision for doubtful debts created/(written back)
Enterprise having Significant Influence
Tata Teleservices Limited
Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited
c. Energy and other recoveries
Enterprise having Significant Influence
Tata Teleservices Limited
Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited
d. Communication expenses
Enterprise having Significant Influence
Tata Teleservices Limited
e. Security deposits Received
Enterprise having Significant Influence
Tata Teleservices Limited
Tata Teleservices (Maharashtra) Limited
f. Finance charges (Interest)
Fellow Subsidiary
ATC International Financing B.V., Netherlands
g. Reimbursement of TDS paid by the Company on behalf of related
party on RSUs granted by the related party
Ultimate Holding Company
American Tower Corporation, USA
h. Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company
Ultimate Holding Company
American Tower Corporation, USA

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

-

220.45*
55.92*

-

(8.78)*
(1.19)*

-

34.68*
4.77*

-

0.14*

-

7.77*
2.49*

721.43

735.76

192.82

42.92

60.49

55.37
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i. Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of
Fellow Subsidiary
ATC India Infrastructure Private Limited
Subsidiary Company
ATC CSR Foundation India
j. Reimbursement of deduction from salaries under ESPP to
Ultimate Holding Company
American Tower Corporation, USA
k. Allocation (net) of employees remuneration, administrative and other expenses from
Fellow Subsidiary
ATC India Infrastructure Private Limited (for Management support services)
l. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expense
Subsidiary Company
ATC CSR Foundation India
m. Fee for professional services
Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Rajesh Madan
II. Balances at the end of the year
Assets
a) Other non-current financial assets
Subsidiary Company
ATC CSR Foundation India
b) Other current/financial assets
Ultimate Holding Company
American Tower Corporation, USA
Subsidiary Company
ATC CSR Foundation India [# Rs. 36,632
(absolute amount)]
Liabilities
a) ECB Loan outstanding
Fellow Subsidiary
ATC International Financing B.V., Netherlands
b) Debenture (NCD) outstanding
Fellow Subsidiary
ATC International Financing B.V., Netherlands
c) Trade Payables
Ultimate Holding Company
American Tower Corporation, USA
C. Key Management Personnel**
Particulars
Short term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan
Defined benefit plan
Other Long term benefits
Stock based compensation (refer note 32)

0.12

0.20

0.01

0.05

3.70

3.66

1.38

14.71

22.50

15.15

0.14

0.18

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

0.01

0.01

22.52

20.71

0.01

#

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

4,154.50

4,331.70

4,200.00

4,200.00

62.78

55.89

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
7.28
6.35
0.19
0.79
0.33
24.91
33.50

0.19
0.64
0.39
28.35
35.92

* refer A(v)(c) above. Transactions disclosed for the period from April 01, 2020 to December 16, 2020.
** excludes management support services from fellow subsidiary as disclosed in B(I)(k) above.
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37 The Group is engaged primarily in the business of providing Passive Telecom Site Infrastructure Service termed as
to cellular mobile telephony operators and other licensed telecom infrastructure providers in India.
Information is reported to and evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessing performance focusses on the business as a whole and accordingly, there is single reportable segment in
the context of Operating Segment as defined under Ind AS 108.
Out of total customers, revenue from 3 customers (telecom operators), contributing individually 10% or more to the Company
revenue, aggregates 90% of total revenue for the year (March 31, 2021 : 3 customers aggregate 88% of total revenue).
38 Ind AS 116 "Leases"
i) As Lessor:
As contracts with customers have escalation clause over the lease term, the rental escalations over the remaining period of the
lease term are straight-lined in the form of Revenue Equalisation Reserve (RER). In the initial years of the customer leases, the
revenue from RER will be higher and will be lower as it approaches the expiry term. During the year ended March 31, 2022,
revenue from operations includes Rs. 83.76 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 77.30) on account of RER.
ii) As Lessee:
a. The right-of-use assets represent the present value of future lease payments over the lease term, from the commencement
of the lease. The right-of-use assets are amortized over the lease term on straight line basis as reflected in these financial
statements under depreciation and amortization. During the year ended March 31, 2022, depreciation and amortization
includes Rs. 975.48 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 976.63) as amortization of right-of-use assets.
b. The Lease Liabilities represents present value of the remaining lease payments as at the date of adoption. Interest is charged
on the outstanding Lease Liabilities at the end of each period. During the year, finance cost includes Rs. 476.48 (March 31,
2021: Rs. 488.58) as interest on lease liability.
c. Lease/License expense for the year Rs. 1,288.05 (March 31, 2021: Rs.1,269.23).
d. Net impact of cost and income on profit before tax for the year amounts to a loss of Rs. 80.15 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 118.68).
e. The weighted-average remaining lease terms and incremental borrowing rates as at March 31, 2022 are as follows:
Weighted-average remaining lease term (years)
Weighted-average incremental borrowing rate

8.48
8.17%

f. As at March 31, 2022, the Company does not have any material related party leases as a lessee. The Company does not have
any sale-leaseback arrangements as lessee and typically does not enter into leveraged leases.
Following are the changes in the carrying value of right-of-use assets:
Particulars
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Additions
Deletions/Adjustments
Depreciation expense
Impairment
Balance as at the end of the year

March 31, 2022
5,198.79
1,133.86
(211.02)
(975.48)
(7.64)
5,138.51

March 31, 2021
5,504.68
969.19
(295.41)
(976.63)
(3.04)
5,198.79
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The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:
Particulars
Current lease liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities
Balance as at the end of the year

March 31, 2022
803.03
4,973.34
5,776.37

March 31, 2021
766.85
4,917.34
5,684.19

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

The following is the movement in lease liabilities:
Particulars
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Additions
Deletions/Adjustments
Finance cost accrued during the year
Payment of lease liabilities
Balance as at the end of the year

5,684.19
1,133.86
(231.59)
476.48
(1,286.57)
5,776.37

5,788.12
969.19
(296.22)
488.58
(1,265.48)
5,684.19

Lease commitments
a) Where the Company is a lessee/licensee
The Company has entered into various lease/license agreements for leased/licensed premises, which expire at various dates
over the next twenty years. There are no contingent lease/license fees payments. The details of the contractual maturities of
lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis are as follows :
(I) not later than one year
(ii) later than one year and not later than five years
(iii) later than five years

March 31, 2022
1,223.14
3,669.66
3,384.40
8,277.20

March 31, 2021
1,254.85
3,907.82
3,384.45
8,547.12

b) Where the Company is a infrastructure service provider
The service revenue recognized during the year includes income from infrastructure provisioning fees over the year relating to
passive infrastructure sites.
Infrastructure provisioning fees recognised during the year

March 31, 2022
5,425.52

Future minimum infrastructure provisioning fees receivables for non-cancellable period under infrastructure
service agreement are as follows:
March 31, 2022
(I) not later than one year
3,687.83
(ii) later than one year and not later than five years
10,447.60
(iii) later than five years
3,121.42
17,256.85

March 31, 2021
5,199.04

March 31, 2021
3,227.64
8,575.80
3,036.84
14,840.28
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39 One of our large customers, in its declared audited results for quarter and year ended March 31, 2022, had expressed its ability to continue as a going
concern to be dependent on raising additional funds as required, successful negotiations with lenders for continued support and generation of cash flow
from operations that it needs to settle its liabilities as they fall due.
Various relief provisions were announced by Government of India during September 2021 subsequent to Adjusted Gross Revenue (AGR) judgement issued
by
Supreme Court, such reliefs among other things included (i) a four year moratorium on the payment of AGR fees owed and (ii) a change in the
definition of AGR on a prospective basis. The said customer has availed the moratorium with respect to the AGR and Deferred Spectrum Obligations.
The Group will continue to monitor the impact, if any, of above mentioned financial condition with respect to the aforesaid customer on its business
operations and financial position, as it is possible that the estimated future cash flows may differ from current estimates, and changes in estimated cash
flows from the said customer could have an impact on recorded Property, plant and equipment (PP&E), capital work in progress, intangible assets
including tenant-related intangibles, Right-of-use assets, Revenue equalisation reserve and Goodwill.
The carrying amounts as at March 31, 2022 of PP&E, capital work in progress, intangible assets including tenant-related intangibles, Right-of-use assets,
Revenue equalisation reserve and Goodwill are Rs. 7,230.35, Rs. 90.12, Rs. 4,020.49, Rs. 5,138.51, Rs. 300.75 and Rs. 1,748.20 respectively.
40 Revenue from operations includes exit charges amounting Rs. 14.82 (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 309.69) recognised based on settlement terms agreed with the
customers.
41 As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the
immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities.
Breakup of expenses included in CSR expenditure is as under:
Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

i) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year

22.82

24.05

ii) Amount of expenditure incurred during the year

22.82

24.08

iii) Shortfall at the end of the year
iv) Total of previous years shortfall

Promoting digital literacy and skill development for
underprivileged communities with focus on
increased employability and promoting e-health
programs in rural communities

v) Nature of CSR activities

vi) Details of related party transactions: Donation to ATC CSR Foundation India, Wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company [refer note 36 (B)(I)(l)]
vii) The movements in the provision where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by
entering into a contractual obligation
42 Ratios
Following are the analytical ratios:
Particulars
(a) Current ratio

Refer foot
note
(i)

March 31,
2022
3.29

March 31,
2021
2.60

% Variance
26.65%

(b) Debt-Equity ratio
(c) Debt Service Coverage ratio
(d) Return on Equity ratio

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

0.87
3.42
7.15%

0.95
3.30
5.34%

-8.57%
3.46%
33.78%

(e) Inventory turnover ratio
(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio

(v)

n/a
3.93

n/a
4.17

n/a
-5.78%

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio
(h) Net capital turnover ratio
(i) Net profit ratio

(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

5.09
186.68%
7.05%

4.53
233.91%
5.30%

12.45%
-20.19%
33.10%

(j) Return on Capital employed
(k) Return on investment
n/a - not applicable

(ix)
(x)

9.38%
n/a

7.98%
n/a

17.55%
n/a

22.50

15.15

NA

NA

Reason for variance where % of variance is greater
than 25%
Increase in Trade receivable due to lower collection.

Increase in Revenue from IP fees resulted in increase
in Net profit after tax as compared to previous year.

Increase in Revenue from IP fees resulted in increase
in Net profit after tax as compared to previous year.

Formula used for calculation of above ratios are as under:
(i) Current ratio = total current assets ÷ current liabilities excluding lease liabilities.
(ii) Debt equity ratio = Total debt ÷ Shareholders' Equity
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(iii) Debt service coverage ratio = {(Profit before tax, depreciation/amortization, finance costs (excluding unwinding of discount on ARO provisions and
interest on lease liabilities), Provision/write off/impairment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and Revenue equalisation reserve) (repayment of lease liabilities)} ÷ [(finance costs (excluding unwinding of discount on ARO provisions) and long term debt repayment excluding
prepayment]
(iv) Return on Equity ratio= Net Profit after tax ÷ Average Shareholders equity
(v) Trade receivable turnover ratio = Revenue from operations ÷ Average (of opening and closing) trade receivables.
(vi) Trade payable turnover ratio = Purchase of services + Other expense ÷ Average (of opening and closing) trade payables.
(vii) Net capital turnover ratio = Revenue from operations ÷ Working capital (Working capital = current asset - current liabilities excluding lease liabilities)
(viii) Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax ÷ Revenue from operations
(ix) Return on Capital Employed ratio = {(Profit before tax, and finance costs (excluding unwinding of discount on ARO provisions and interest on lease
liabilities) ÷ Capital Employed (Tangible net worth + Total Debt+ Deferred Tax Liability)
(x) The Company had made investment in subsidiaries which are strategic in nature and accordingly this ratio is not computed.
43 Relationship with struck off companies
Name of, relationship and balances, with the companies which have been struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956, during the year ended March 31, 2022 or in an previous period and with whom transaction has taken place during the year, are as
under:
Name of the struck off
company

Nature of transactions
with struck off company

Agadi Enterprises Private
Limited

Payables

Ankit Builders Pvt. Ltd.
Arbindo Liquors Ltd
Knorr Bremse India Private
Limited
Precious Shelters Private Ltd.

Payables
Payables
Payables

Raj Mahal Motels (P)Ltd.
Satguru Cement Private
Limited
Teletech Telecom Private
Limited

Balance outstanding as at
March 31, 2022

-

Relationship
with the
struck off
company
Vendor

Balance outstanding as at
March 31, 2021

Vendor
Vendor
Vendor

Payables
Payables
Payables

Relationship with
the struck off
company
-

Vendor
Vendor

0.01
Payables

Vendor
Vendor
Vendor

Vendor

-

Vendor

Vendor
-

Vendor
Vendor

Vendor

-

Vendor
-

The above parties are not related parties and transactions are in ordinary course of business.
44 The Group does not have any immovable properties (other than properties where the Group is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the Group.
45 No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Group as at 31 March 2022 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
46 The Group is not a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
47 The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Intermediary shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
48 The Group has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
49 The Group has no borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
50 There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered by the Group with ROC beyond the statutory period.
51 The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017.
52 The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in
September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified.
The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.
53 Based on assessment made by the Group, there is no significant impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the financial position and performance of the Group.
Further, the Group is not expecting any significant change in estimates as of now as the Group is running its business and operations as usual without any
major disruptions.
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54 Additional information as required under Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013
Following table indicates detail pertaining to share in net assets, profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2022:

Name of
the entity
in the
Group
Parent:
ATC Telecom Infrastructure
Private Limited, India
Subsidiary:
Activex Telebroadband
Services Private Limited

Net Assets i.e.,
total assets
minus total
liabilities
As % of
consolidatAmount
ed net
assets
100.01%

9,262.14

-0.01%

Share in profit
or loss
As % of
consolidated profit or
loss
100.08%

(0.58)

-0.08%

Share in other
comprehensive income

Amount

639.88

(0.53)

As % of
consolidat-ed
other
comprehensive

Amount

100.00%

0.85

0.00%

-

Share in total
comprehensive income
As % of
consolidat-ed Total
other
comprehensive
income

Amount

100.08%

640.73

-0.08%

(0.53)

55 The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on May 26, 2022.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of ATC Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited
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